
 

John M. Colmers 
Chairman 

 
Herbert S. Wong, Ph.D. 

Vice-Chairman 
 

George H. Bone, 
 M.D. 

 
Stephen F. Jencks, 

 M.D., M.P.H. 
 

Jack C. Keane 
 

Bernadette C. Loftus, 
 M.D. 

 
Thomas R. Mullen 

 

 
Donna Kinzer 

Executive Director 

Stephen Ports 
Principal Deputy Director 

Policy and Operations 

David Romans 
Director 

Payment Reform 
and Innovation 

Gerard J. Schmith 
Deputy Director 

Hospital Rate Setting 

Sule Calikoglu, Ph.D. 
Deputy Director 

Research and Methodology 

Health Services Cost Review Commission 
4160 Patterson Avenue, Baltimore, Maryland 21215 

Phone: 410-764-2605 · Fax: 410-358-6217 
Toll Free: 1-888-287-3229 

 hscrc.maryland.gov 

State of Maryland 
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene 

  524th MEETING OF THE HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 
November 18, 2015 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 

12:00 p.m. 
(The Commission will begin in public session at 12:00 p.m. for the purpose of, upon motion and approval, 

adjourning into closed session.  The open session will resume at 1PM.) 
 

1. Update on Contract and Modeling of the All-payer Model vis-a-vis the All-Payer Model Contract – 
Administration of Model Moving into Phase II - Authority General Provisions Article, §3-104 

2. Consultation with Legal Counsel on Legal Authority for Rate Application Moratorium – General 
Provisions Article -  §3-305(b)(7) 

3. Personnel Matters - General Provisions Article, §3-305 (b)(1)(ii) 
 

PUBLIC SESSION OF THE HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 
1:00 p.m. 

1. Review of the Minutes from the Public Meeting and Executive Session on October 14, 2015  
 

2. Executive Director’s Report  

3. New Model Monitoring  
 
4. Docket Status – Cases Closed 

2300R – Washington Adventist Hospital  2309A - University of Maryland Medical Center 
2312A -  University of Maryland Medical Center 2313A - University of Maryland Medical Center 
 

5. Docket Status – Cases Open 
     
2304N – UM St. Joseph Medical Center 2307A – Maryland Physician Care 
2308A – Priority Partners  2310A – MedStar Family Choice  
2311A – MedStar Family Choice  2314A – Riverside Health of Maryland 
2315A – Johns Hopkins Health System 2316A – Johns Hopkins Health System 
2317R – Holy Cross Health  2318A – University of Maryland Medical System   

  
6. Preliminary Staff Report Regarding Health Job Opportunity Program Proposal 

 
7. Update from Performance Measurement Work Group 

 
8. Disclosure of the Hospital Financial and Statistical Data for Fiscal Year 2014 

 
9. Legal Report 

 
10. Hearing and Meeting Schedule 

 



 
Closed Session Minutes 

of the 
Health Services Cost Review Commission 

October 14, 2015 

Upon motion made in public session, Chairman Colmers call for adjournment into 
closed session to discuss the following items: 

1. Update on Contract and Modeling of the All-Payer Model vis-à-vis the All-
Payer Model Contract;  
 

 
The Closed Session was called to order at 12:02 p.m. and held under authority of -
§ 3-104 of the General Provisions Article. 
 
In attendance, in addition to Chairman Colmers, were Commissioners Bone, 
Jencks, Keane, Mullen and Wong. Commissioner Loftus participated by telephone. 
 
In attendance representing Staff were Donna Kinzer, David Romans, Steve Ports, 
Sule Gerovich, Ellen Englert, Jessica Lee, and Dennis Phelps. 
 
Also attending were Deborah Gracey of Health Management Associates and Stan 
Lustman, Commission Counsel. 
 

Item One 
 

Steve Ports, Principal Deputy Director, updated the Commission on a shared 
stakeholder process with the Department of Health and Mental Hygiene in order 
to develop a vision for Phase 1.5 and 2.0 of the Model. 
 

Item Two 
 
Donna Kinzer, Executive Director, and David Romans, Director-Payment Reform 
and Innovation, presented and the Commission discussed an updated analysis of 
Medicare per beneficiary data. 
 
 
The Closed Session was adjourned at 1:02 p.m. 
   



 

MINUTES OF THE 
523rd MEETING OF THE 

HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 
 

October 14, 2015 
 
Chairman John Colmers called the public meeting to order at 12:02 pm. Commissioners George 
H. Bone, M.D., Stephen F. Jencks, M.D., MPH, Jack C. Keane, Thomas Mullen, and Herbert S. 
Wong, Ph.D. were also in attendance. Bernadette C. Loftus, M.D., joined the meeting via 
telephone. Upon motion made by Commissioner Jencks and seconded by Commissioner Wong, 
the meeting was moved to Executive Session. Chairman Colmers reconvened the public meeting 
at 1:10 pm. 

 
REPORT OF THE OCTOBER 14, 2015 EXECUTIVE SESSION 

 
Mr. Dennis Phelps, Associate Director-Audit & Compliance, summarized the minutes of the 
October 14, 2015 Executive Session. 
 

 
ITEM I 

REVIEW OF THE MINUTES FROM SEPTEMBER 9, 2015 EXECUTIVE SESSION 
AND PUBLIC MEETING AND OCTOBER 1, 2015 EXECUTIVE SESSION  

       
The Commission voted unanimously to approve the minutes of the September 9, 2015 Executive 
Session and Public Meeting and the October 1, 2015 Executive Session. 
    

ITEM II 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

 
Ms. Donna Kinzer, Executive Director, provided an update on the Health Job Opportunity 
Program Proposal (the Proposal) introduced at last month’s public meeting. The Proposal 
suggests that the HSCRC provide up to $40 million through hospital rates to establish about 
1,000 entry level health jobs in areas of extreme poverty and unemployment. This proposal came 
about due to the unrest in Baltimore City and the belief that employment is an important element 
needed to change the current situation. The Proposal seeks to create community based jobs that 
can contribute to improved community health, as well as hospital jobs that create employment 
opportunities in economically challenged areas. 
 
Ms. Kinzer noted that the Payment Model Workgroup held a meeting on October 5th to discuss 
the Proposal and other topics. Program description materials and a series of questions were sent 
out prior to the meeting and are posted at the HSCRC website. Comments were also accepted 
from individuals attending the meeting. 
 
The work group members and commenters expressed their appreciation for the leadership in 
bringing forward this job proposal. 



 

 
Comment letters received noted the following concerns: 
 

•  It was important to define success. Success would need to be framed not only in creating 
jobs but also in the context of the New All Payer Model and Triple Aim of improving 
care, improving health, lowering costs. 
 

• It would be important to focus on jobs outside of the hospitals such as Community Health 
Workers. The concern was raised that the reduction of avoidable utilization in hospitals 
might reduce the need for some of the hospital jobs that were part of the Proposal. 
 

• That the infrastructure adjustments already provided to hospitals or the additional amount                         
that is slated for award in January 2016, which focuses on similar activities, would be a 
duplicate effort.   
 

• It was suggested that other funding sources be considered for Proposal implementation 
 

• If the Proposal were to move forward, much more detailed design work needs to take 
place.       
 

Mr. Melvin Wilson, Executive Director of Turnaround Tuesday a jobs movement of Baltimore 
United in Leadership Development (BUILD), expressed support for the job proposal.                                            

 
Staff is currently considering all oral and written comments and will report back to the 
Commission at the November Commission meeting.    
 
Ms. Kinzer stated that Staff has been paying attention to Medicare growth in charges and 
utilization. Ms. Kinzer noted that there has been an uptick in Medicare volumes, and that this 
increase is likely affecting Medicare savings. Staff will continue to monitor the situation closely 
and consider whether any special actions or policy changes are necessary. 
 
 Ms. Kinzer stated that from fiscal year 2013 to 2014, there were increases in orthopedic surgery 
and oncology service lines for Medicare patients. She noted that these increases were more than 
offset by decreases in avoidable utilization such as readmissions and Prevention Quality 
Indicator (PQI) admissions, with a net reduction in Equivalent Case Mix Adjusted Discharges 
(ECMADs). 
 
Ms. Kinzer stated that from fiscal year 2014 to 2015, there were larger increases in orthopedic 
surgery and oncology services for Medicare patients with a modest reduction in readmissions; 
however, there was an increase in PQI admissions as well as other medical admissions for the 
period. The result was an increase of 2.09% in ECMADs in FY 2015. She noted that the rate 
adjustments provided by the Commission for July 1, 2014 and July 1, 2015 are based on the 
assumption that Medicare per capita growth will be lower than the All Payer growth by 2%. The 
calendar year per capita growth per resident in All Payer revenue through August 2015 versus 
the same period in 2014 was 2.5%. The Medicare growth for the same period was 1.71%, with a 



 

gap at .79% rather than the projected 2%. 
 
Ms. Kinzer noted that success of the All Payer Model is dependent on reducing avoidable 
utilization. Hospitals will need to accelerate their efforts to reduce avoidable utilization in order 
to achieve the volume levels that support the savings requirements for Medicare. Staff notes that 
a number of planning efforts are underway, and some hospitals have implemented significant 
interventions. However, there is significant work to be done to reduce avoidable utilization, 
including working closely with primary care physicians to coordinate care and address chronic 
conditions more effectively, implementing comprehensive care coordination for high needs and 
complex patients, and working with post-acute and long term care facilities to reduce avoidable 
hospitalizations. In addition, Ms. Kinzer noted at the same time Medicare hospital utilization 
increased, there was also an increase in payments to SNFs. HSCRC staff will investigate these 
two trends and consider the implications.                                                                                                                   
           
Ms. Kinzer stated that CMS has granted Maryland an exemption from the national Medicare 
Value Based Purchasing Program for FY 2016. CMS notes that Maryland significantly lags 
national performance in patient experience of care in the Hospital Consumer Assessment of 
Healthcare Providers and System surveys. As a result of this lagging performance, HSCRC has 
assigned a higher proportion of the weighting to this domain and has increased the amount of 
revenue at risk for this program. 
 
Ms. Kinzer noted that Staff is currently focused on the following activities: 
 

• Issuing amended rate orders that adjust for final reconciliation of GBR/TPR and rate 
compliance and Quality Based Reimbursement (QBR ) program performance 

• Reviewing radiation therapy, infusion, and chemotherapy market shift adjustments with 
stakeholders 

• Reviewing Certificate of Need applications that have been filed 
• Moving forward on updates to value based performance measures, including efficiency 

measures 
• Turning to focus on per capita costs and total cost of care, for purposes of monitoring and 

also to progress toward a focus on outcomes and cost across the health care system. 
• Preparing to finalize and implement a stakeholder process that will be executed together 

with DHMH and other agencies, focused on developing a vision for Phase 2 of the All 
Payer Model and developing interim approaches that will provide progression toward 
Phase 2. Medicaid is evaluating formation of an ACO like model for dual eligible 
enrollees (beneficiaries with both Medicare and Medicaid coverage). This process will be 
combined with the stakeholder process for progressing on the All Payer Model. 

• Staff is evaluating proposals received for support of the Phase 2 application development 
and application process with CMMI, together with other state agencies. 

 
Ms. Kinzer introduced Ms. Erin Schurmann as the new Project Manager. Ms. Kinzer also 
introduced Ms. Andrea Zumbrum as the new Policy Analyst and Mr. William Hoff as the new 
Assistant Chief of Audit and Compliance. 

 



 

Steve Ports, Deputy Director Policy and Operations, updated the Commission on staff’s plans to 
use the HSCRC’s Advisory Council to shape the vision and guiding principles for the next  
phases of the All Payer Model and presented staff‘s recommendation that new members be 
added to the Advisory Council. These new members would have expertise in acute and long term 
care as well as physician expertise. The Commission voted unanimously to approve staff’s 
recommendation. 
                                                                                                                                                                                    

ITEM III 
NEW MODEL MONITORING 

 
Mr. David Romans, Director Payment Reform and Innovation, stated that Monitoring Maryland 
Performance (MMP) for the new All-Payer Model for the month of August focuses on fiscal year 
(July 1 through June 30) as well as calendar year results.  
 
Mr. Romans reported that for the two month period ended August 30, 2015, All-Payer total gross 
revenue increased by 3.86% over the same period in FY 2014. All-Payer total gross revenue for 
Maryland residents increased by 4.15%; this translates to a per capita growth of 3.57%. All-
Payer gross revenue for non-Maryland residents increased by 1.05%. 
 
Mr. Romans reported that for the eight months of the calendar year ended August 30, 2015, All-
Payer total gross revenue increased by 2.68% over the same period in FY 2014. All-Payer total 
gross revenue for Maryland residents increased by 3.07%; this translates to a per capita growth 
of 2.50%. All-Payer gross revenue for non-Maryland residents decreased by 1.25%.  
 
Mr. Romans reported that for the two months ended August 30, 2015, Medicare Fee-For-Service 
gross revenue increased by 4.77% over the same period in FY 2014. Medicare Fee-For-Service 
gross revenue for Maryland residents increased by 5.13%; this translates to a per capita growth 
of 2.03%. Maryland Fee-For-Service gross revenue for non-residents increased by 0.80%. 
 
Mr. Romans reported that for the eight months of the calendar year ended August                                                  
30, 2015, Medicare Fee-For-Service gross revenue increased by 4.35%. Medicare Fee-For-
Service gross revenue for Maryland residents increased by 5.01%; this translates to a per capita 
growth of 1.71 %. Maryland Fee-For-Service gross revenue for non-residents decreased by 
2.89%.                                                                                                                                                                         
                                                                                                                                                                                    
According to Mr. Romans, for the two months of the fiscal year ended August 30,  
2015, unaudited average operating profit for acute hospitals was 4.29%. The median hospital 
profit was 4.26%, with a distribution of 1.24% in the 25th percentile and 7.48% in the 75th 

percentile. Rate Regulated profits were 8.40%. 
                                                                                                                                                                                    
Dr. Sule Gerovich Ph.D., Deputy Director Research and Methodology, presented a quality report 
update on the Maryland Hospital Acquired Conditions program based upon Potentially 
Preventable Complications (PPCs) data and discharges through June 2015 and readmission data 
on discharges through July 2015. 
 



 

Readmissions 
 

• The All-Payer risk adjusted readmission rate was 12.87 % for the period of January 2015 
to July 2015. This is a cumulative decrease of 6.84% from the July 2013 risk adjusted 
readmission rate. 

• The Medicare Fee for Service risk adjusted readmission rate was 13.72% for the period 
January 2015 to July 2015 YTD. This is an accumulated decrease of 5.81% from the July 
2013 risk adjusted readmission rate. 

• Based on the New-Payer Model, hospitals must reduce Maryland’s readmission rate to or 
            below the national Medicare readmission rate by 2018. The Readmission Reduction 
            incentive program has set the goals for hospitals to reduce their risk adjusted readmission 
            rate by 9.3% during CY2015 compared to CY2013. Currently, only 15 out of 46 
            hospitals have reduced their risk adjusted rate by more than 9.3%. 
 
Potentially Preventable Complications 
 

• The All-Payer risk adjusted PPC rate was 0.83 for June 2015 YTD. This is a decrease of 
35.66% from the June 2013 YTD risk adjusted PPC rate. 

• The Medicare Fee for Service risk adjusted PPC rate was 0.96 for June 2015 YTD. This 
is a decrease of 38.46% from the June 2013 YTD risk adjusted PPC rate. 

                                                                                                                                                                                    
ITEM IV 

DOCKET STATUS CASES CLOSED 
 
2306A – University of Maryland Medical Center 

 
ITEM V 

DOCKET STATUS- OPEN CASES 
 

2300R Washington Adventist Hospital 
 

Jerry Schmith, Deputy Director Hospital Rate Setting, summarized Staff ’s final 
recommendation for the Washington Adventist Hospital (WAH) rate application request  that 
rates be increased in FY 2019 to help pay for a large capital cost increase associated with  the 
construction of a replacement facility in a new location in White Oak, Maryland. This partial rate 
application is being filed during the Certificate of Need (CON) review, which is underway at the 
Maryland Health Care Commission (MHCC). This rate request is being filed in advance of CON 
approval because WAH represented in its CON application that it will require a rate increase to 
make the project feasible. After the rate application is acted upon, the HSCRC staff will provide 
a feasibility evaluation on the project to MHCC. If WAH finances the project through 
MHHEFA, it would to seek a Comfort Order from the HSCRC.                                                                               
 
The total cost of the proposed project is $330,829,524. WAH proposes to contribute $50,575,175 
in cash and $11,000,000 in land towards the project. It will also fundraise an additional 
$20,000,000 and finance the remainder with the sale of $244,750,000 in bonds and $4,504,349 of 



 

related interest earnings.      
 
WAH requests a permanent revenue increase of $19,700,000 or 7.3 percent of its total approved 
permanent revenue. WAH is requesting that 50 percent of the revenue increase be effective on 
January 1, 2019, the anticipated opening date of the new facility in White Oak, Maryland. WAH 
is requesting that the remaining 50 percent of the revenue increase be effective on July 1, 2019. 
The requested revenue increase represents approximately 80 percent of the estimated additional 
depreciation and interest costs associated with the project. 
 
Staff recommends the following: 
 

• That $15,391,282 be added to WAH’s permanent rate base at the time the facility opens, 
estimated to be January 1, 2019. This revenue adjustment will be reduced if the actual 
interest rate incurred is different from the projected 6 percent used in these calculations. 

• That revenue approved is based on the information and representations contained within 
the Hospital’s CON application. Should the information and representations change 
materially in the view of HSCRC staff, staff reserves the right to bring this matter back to 
the HSCRC for reevaluation and potential modification to the approved revenue. 

• That WAH will continue to be subject to any revenue adjustments related to the Global 
Budget Revenue or any new rate setting system developed in response to changes in 
health care delivery or payment methodologies in Maryland. Staff is in the process of 
developing new rate methodologies over the next few years that will account for 
operational efficiencies and ongoing efforts to reduce potentially avoidable utilization. 

• That staff recommendation should not be construed in any way as staff’s rendering any 
opinion at this time on the financial feasibility of the capital project. 

 
The Commission voted unanimously to approve staff’s recommendation. 
 

2307A- Maryland Physician Care 
 
Mr. Ports summarized staff’s draft recommendation on the application filed by Saint Agnes 
Health System, Western Maryland Health System, Holy Cross Health, and Meritus Health (the 
“Hospitals”). The Hospitals are seeking approval for continued participation of Maryland 
Physician Care in the Medicaid Health Choice Program. The Hospitals are requesting to renew 
the contract for one year beginning on January 1, 2016.                                                                                            
 
Mr. Ports announced that the final recommendation will be presented at the November public 
meeting. 
 

2308A- Priority Partners 
 
Mr. Ports summarized staff’s draft recommendation on the application filed by Johns Hopkins 
Health System (the “System”) on behalf of John Hopkins Hospital, Johns Hopkins Bayview 
Medical Center, Howard County General Hospital, and Suburban Hospital (the “Hospitals”). The 
System is seeking approval for continued participation of Priority Partners, Inc. in the Medicaid 



 

Health Choice Program. The Hospitals are requesting to renew the contract for one year 
beginning on January 1, 2016.                                                                                                                                    
 
Mr. Ports announced that the final recommendation will be presented at the November public 
meeting. 
 

2309A- University of Maryland Medical Center 
 
The University of Maryland Medical Center (the “Hospital”) filed an application on September  
18, 2015 requesting continued participation in a global rate arrangement for solid organ and 
blood and bone marrow transplant services with OptumHealth Care Solutions, Inc. beginning  
November 1, 2015. 
 
Staff recommends that the Commission approve the Hospital’s application for an alternative  
method of rate determination for solid organ and blood and bone marrow transplant services for  
one year beginning November 1, 2015, and that the approval be contingent upon the execution of  
the standard Memorandum of Understanding.     
                                                                                                                                                                                    
 The Commission voted unanimously to approve staff’s recommendation.   
 

2310A- MedStar Family Choice 
 

Mr. Ports summarized Staff’s draft recommendation on the application of the MedStar Health  
System on behalf of Franklin Square Hospital, Good Samaritan, Harbor Hospital and Union  
Memorial Hospital. MedStar Health seeks renewal for continued participation of MedStar  
Family Choice (“MFC”) in the Medicaid Health Choice Program for one year beginning in  
January 1, 2015. 
 
Mr. Ports announced that the final recommendation will be presented at the November public 
meeting. 
 

2312A-University of Maryland 
 

The University of Maryland Medical Center (the “Hospital”) filed an application on September  
28, 2015 requesting continued participation in a global rate arrangement for solid organ and bone  
marrow transplant services with Blue Cross Blue Shield Blue Distinction Centers beginning  
November 1, 2015. 
 
Staff recommends that the Commission approve the Hospital’s application for an alternative  
method of rate determination for solid organ and bone marrow transplant services for one year  
beginning November 1, 2015, and that the approval be contingent upon the execution of the  
standard Memorandum of Understanding.      
                                                                                                                                                                                    
The Commission voted unanimously to approve staff’s recommendation.  
   



 

2313A-University of Maryland Medical Center 
 
The University of Maryland Medical Center (the “Hospital”) filed a renewal application with the 
HSCRC on September 28, 2015 seeking approval to participate in a new global rate arrangement 
with Humana for solid organ and blood and bone marrow transplant services for a one year 
period beginning November 1, 2015. 
 
Staff recommends that the Commission approve the Hospital’s application for an alternative  
method of rate determination for solid organ and blood and bone marrow transplant services for  
one year beginning November 1, 2015, and that the approval be contingent upon the execution of  
the standard Memorandum of Understanding.      
 
The Commission voted unanimously to approve staff’s recommendation.  
 

2314A University of Maryland Medical Systems   
 
Mr. Ports summarized Staff’s draft recommendation on the application of Riverside Health  
(“Riverside”), a Medicaid Managed Care Organization (MCO), on behalf of the University of  
Maryland Medical System Corporation (the “Hospitals). Riverside and the Hospitals seek  
approval for the MCO to continue to participate in the Medicaid Health Choice Program  
for one year beginning January 1, 2016. 
                                                                                                                                                                                    
Mr. Ports announced that the final recommendation will be presented at the November public 
meeting. 

 
ITEM VI 

FINAL RECOMMENDATIONS ON REVISIONS TO THE QUALITY BASED 
REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM FOR RATE YEAR 2018 

 
Ms. Dianne Feeney, Associate Director Quality Initiative, presented Staff’s Final 
recommendation on  updating the Quality Based Reimbursement (QBR) Program for FY2018 
(See “Final Recommendation for Updating the Quality Based Reimbursement Program for FY 
2018” on the HSCRC website). 
 
HSCRC quality based measurement initiatives, including the scaling methodologies and 
magnitudes of revenue “at risk” for those programs, are important tools for providing strong 
incentives for hospitals to improve their quality performance over time. HSCRC implemented 
the first hospital adjustments for the QBR Program performance in July 2009. Current 
Commission policy calls for measurement of hospital performance scores across clinical 
processes of care, outcome and patient experience of care domains, and scaling of hospital 
performance results in allocating rewards and penalties based on performance.   
 
“Scaling” for QBR refers to the differential allocation of a pre-determined portion of base 
regulated hospital inpatient revenue based on assessment of the quality of hospital performance. 
The rewards (positive scale amounts) or penalties (negative scaled amounts) are then applied to 



 

each hospital’s update factor for the rate year; these scaled amounts are applied on a “one-time” 
basis and are not considered permanent revenue. 
 
For FY 2018, HSCRC staff final recommendations include adjusting the weights and updating 
the measurement domains to be consistent as possible with the Centers for Medicare and 
Medicaid Services (CMS) Value Based Purchasing Program. They also include holding steady 
the amount of total hospital revenue at risk for scaling for the QBR Program                                                          
                                                                                                                  
The proposed final recommendations for the QBR Program are as follows: 
 

• Continue to allocate 2 percent of hospital approved inpatient revenue for QBR 
performance in FY 2018 to be finalized by the Aggregate Revenue “at risk” 
recommendation. 

• Adjust measurement domain weights to include: 50 percent for Patient Experience Care 
Transition, 35 percent for Safety, and 15 percent for Clinical Care. 

 
The Commission voted unanimously to approve staff’s recommendation.  
 

ITEM VII 
LEGAL REPORT 

 
Regulations 
 
Final Action 
 
Rate Application and Approval Procedures – COMAR 10.37.10.26-1 
 
The purpose of this action is to impose a moratorium on the Commission’s Maryland Health 
Insurance Plan (MHIP) assessment for Fiscal Year 2016 in response to the Budget 
Reconciliation Act of 2015 changes to the program as of July 1, 2015. This proposed regulatory 
change appeared in the July 24, 2015 issue of the Maryland Register (42:15 Md. R. 1026-1027). 
 
The Commission voted unanimously to approve the final adoption of the proposed regulation. 
 

ITEM VIII 
HEARING AND MEETING SCHEDULE  

                                              
November 18, 2015             Times to be determined, 4160 Patterson Avenue 
                                             HSCRC Conference Room 
 
December 9, 2015               Times to be determined, 4160 Patterson Avenue 
                                            HSCRC Conference Room 
 
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:35 pm. 



1 
 

 Executive Director's Report 

Health Services Cost Review Commission 

November 18, 2015 
 

  

Volume Changes   
The HSCRC staff has been paying attention to volume changes in hospitals.  A core approach for 
the success of the All-Payer Model is to reduce unplanned hospitalizations that could be 
avoided with better care, care coordination, and care integration.  By reducing avoidable 
utilization, funds are freed up to allow for investing in care coordination, delivering new 
services, and implementing other initiatives.  We are also attentive to Medicare growth in 
charges and utilization as the All-Payer Model has specific savings requirements for Medicare.   

HSCRC staff will provide reports on utilization trends to the Commission on a regular basis. 

Year 1 Results 
Last week, CMS released the Year 1 (CY 2014) results for Maryland’s All-Payer Model.  The 
results were as follows: 



2 
 

Performance 
Measures

All-Payer Revenue Growth

Medicare Savings in Hospital 
Expenditures

Medicare Savings in Total 
Cost of Care

All-Payer Quality 
Improvement Reductions in 
PPCs under MHAC Program

Readmissions Reductions for 
Medicare

Hospital Revenue to Global 
or Population-based

Targets

≤ 3.58% per capita

≥ $330m over 5 years 

Lower than the 
national average

30% reduction over 5 
years

≤ National average over 
5 years 

≥ 80% by Year 5

CY 2014 
Results

1.47% per capita

$116m in Year 1 

1.5% lower than the 
national average

26% reduction in
Year I 

0.21% gap decrease 
between Maryland & 

the Nation

> 95% in Year 1

 

Maryland had a good first year of performance, but there is significant work ahead to ensure 
the sustainability and progression of the model and targeted improvements. 

Planning for Ongoing Implementation and Application to Extend the All 
Payer Model   
With the State’s new All-Payer Model nearing its second full year of operations, the 
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (DHMH) and the Health Services Cost Review 
Commission (HSCRC) are reconvening the Advisory Council.  The Council, originally charged with 
recommending guiding principles for the implementation of the new model, is now needed to 
provide advice on the potential future directions for Maryland’s health care improvement and 
population health initiatives and the All-Payer Model progression.   In order to create 
sustainability of the existing All-Payer model, the delivery system needs to develop partnerships 
and infrastructure that will help it improve care with a resulting reduction in avoidable 
hospitalizations and costs.  Additionally, the Agreement between the Centers for Medicare & 
Medicaid Services (CMS) and Maryland calls for Maryland to submit a proposal for a new model 
no later than January 2017, which shall limit, at a minimum, the Medicare beneficiary total cost 
of care growth rate.  HSCRC staff is engaged in a planning process with stakeholders to prepare 
for these upcoming meetings.  



3 
 

The HSCRC and DHMH staff members are also working with the Center for Medicare & 
Medicaid Innovation (CMMI) to amend the existing All-Payer Model Agreement to allow for 
alignment activities needed to support successful implementation and sustainability of the 
model. To support these integration components, tools that are available to Accountable Care 
Organizations (ACOs) and bundled payment programs need to be made available to support the 
integration and care coordination activities needed. These include: 

• Sharing internal cost savings  
• Pay-for-outcomes programs that share internal cost savings when avoidable and 

unnecessary utilization is decreased through improvements in care delivery; and 
• Investments in care coordination infrastructure that support care coordination in the 

community, some of which may be imbedded in practices or other provider settings 
To facilitate these activities, the model will need to be enhanced to provide protections similar 
to those granted to ACOs that permit these activities.  In addition, staff will seek access to data 
to support care coordination, evaluation, and monitoring of results by providers, similar to data 
provided by CMS to ACOs and bundled payment providers. 

DHMH is also considering the development of an approach to address the needs of dual eligible 
beneficiaries (those who have both Medicare and Medicaid coverage).  This process will be 
organized together with Work Groups for the All-Payer Model since the work needs to be 
integrated. 

Finally, HSCRC has issued an RFP for assistance with development of the proposal of a new 
model.  It is in the process of evaluating proposals, together with members of the leadership 
staff of DHMH and MHCC. 

Regulations on Rate Application Moratorium 
Staff is proposing a regulation to establish a temporary moratorium on full rate reviews.  The 
regulation is necessitated by the fact that the Commission’s current policy does not adequately 
reflect the existing global budget revenue structure that all acute care hospitals are currently 
under. As hospitals reduce potentially avoidable utilization (PAU) through care and quality 
improvements, unit costs may rise.  Under the existing Reasonableness of Charges (ROC) 
methodology, such an increase may increase the charge per case.  This would contribute to 
creating a higher charge per case benchmark as volumes fall.  HSCRC would want to remove the 
excess capacity and isolate the investment cost to produce the savings level in calculating an 
efficient hospital operating cost benchmark. The opposite is true if a hospital were to 
experience an increase in PAU. The hospital could appear to be more efficient as its charge per 
case decreases, even though it would not be meeting the goals of the model.   Staff has begun 



4 
 

working on new efficiency measures that aim to balance the goals of the All-Payer Model three-
part aim with operating efficiency concepts.  

Previously the Commission issued a moratorium of full rate reviews for three years to 
accommodate the development and coding changes necessary to implement APR-DRGs.  This 
regulation anticipates a much shorter moratorium while new efficiency measures are being 
developed.  We are targeting completion by July 2016. 

Staff will continue to evaluate capital applications under the current approach.  However, we 
will consider changes in PAU when evaluating efficiency changes beyond 2014.  At the current 
time, we are continuing to use a 2014 ROC calculation. 

Hospitals will continue to have all other rate relief approaches at their disposal. 

Extension of the Submission Date for Transformation Implementation 
Submissions 
Staff has received multiple requests from hospitals to extend the submission date of the 
Transformation Implementation Program applications for two weeks.  In order to give hospitals 
more time to refine the proposals, the staff has extended the submission date from December 
7, 2015 to December 21, 2015.   
 
The reports of Regional Partnership Planning Grantees that received funding through rates in 
June 2015 are still due on December 7, 2015.  Likewise, the Strategic Hospital Transformation 
Plans are due from all acute care hospitals on December 7, 2015. An updated Request for 
Proposal (RFP) for the Transformation Implementation Program and related Q&A may be found 
on the Commission website. 

Staff Focus 
HSCRC staff is currently focused on the following activities: 

• Continuing to review radiation therapy, infusion and chemotherapy market shift 
adjustments with stakeholders. 

• Reviewing Certificate of Need (CON) applications that have been filed.  Staff has recently 
provided comments to MHCC regarding two applications. 

• Moving forward on updates to value-based performance measures, including efficiency 
measures. 

• Turning to focus on per capita costs and total cost of care, for purposes of monitoring 
and progressing toward a focus on outcomes and cost across the health care system. 



5 
 

• Preparing to finalize and support a stakeholder process that will be executed together 
with DHMH and other agencies. It will be focused on ensuring the success of the All-
Payer Model and providing a proposal no later than January 2017 as required under the 
All-Payer Model Agreement with CMS.    

 



 

1 
 

John M. Colmers 
Chairman 

 
Herbert S. Wong, Ph.D. 

Vice-Chairman 
 

George H. Bone, 
 M.D. 

 
Stephen F. Jencks, 

 M.D., M.P.H. 
 

Jack C. Keane 
 

Bernadette C. Loftus, 
 M.D. 

 
Thomas R. Mullen 

 

 
Donna Kinzer 

Executive Director 

Stephen Ports 
Principal Deputy Director 

Policy and Operations 

David Romans 
Director 

Payment Reform 
and Innovation 

Gerard J. Schmith 
Deputy Director 

Hospital Rate Setting 

Sule Gerovich, Ph.D. 
Deputy Director 

Research and Methodology 

Health Services Cost Review Commission 
4160 Patterson Avenue, Baltimore, Maryland 21215 

Phone: 410-764-2605 · Fax: 410-358-6217 
Toll Free: 1-888-287-3229 

 hscrc.maryland.gov 

State of Maryland 
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene 

 
 

Memorandum 
 
Date:  November 6, 2015 
 
To:  Frances B. Phillips 

Commissioner/Reviewer, MHCC 

From:  Gerard J. Schmith  
  Deputy Director, Hospital Rate Setting, HSCRC 
 
Subject: Relocation of Washington Adventist Hospital (“WAH”) and Establishment of a 

Special Psychiatric Hospital on the Existing Takoma Park Campus 
  Docket No. 13-15-2349 

On August 31, 2015 you requested that we review and comment on the financial feasibility and 
underlying assumptions of the relocation of WAH from its existing location in Takoma Park to the 
White Oak area and establishment of a Special Psychiatric Hospital on the existing Takoma Park 
Campus.  Adventist HealthCare Incorporated, (“AHI”), the owner and operator of WAH, submitted 
an amended CON on September 29, 2014 with additional supplemental information including a letter 
dated July 27, 2015 from James Lee, Executive Vice President and CFO of AHI. 
 
This memorandum provides our general comments and addresses your specific questions regarding 
the project.   
 
General Comments on Financial Feasibility 
 
Data Reviewed 
 
We reviewed the revised financial portions submitted on October 21, 2015 as well as other pertinent 
supplemental information associated with the CON provided by WAH prior to that date.   The 
information submitted included audited financial data for the fiscal years ending December 31, 
2013 and 2014, actual and budgeted data for fiscal year ending 2015, and projected data for the 
fiscal years ending 2016 through 2020 (the second full year after the completion of the project.)  

 



 

2 
 

Along with these financial projections, we have also reviewed WAH’s audited financial 
statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 and the expected financing plan for this project.     
Revenue Projections  
 
We have reviewed the assumptions regarding the projections of operating revenue.  The assumed 
annual HSCRC approved revenue increases listed in the CON assumptions provided by WAH that 
were the basis for the revenue increases shown in the table below are as follows: 
 

Table 1 - Summary of Projected HSCRC Approved Revenue Increases 
Washington Adventist Hospital 

 
 Years Ending June 30, 
 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 
Update Factor 2.21% 2.17% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30% 2.30%
Age Adjusted Population Growth 0.00% .56% .56% .56% .56% .56%
Population Infrastructure 0.00% 1.05% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Market Shift 0.0% .23% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% -.05%
Other Reversals, One Time Adj, etc. -.75% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Total 1.46% 4.01% 2.86% 2.86% 2.86% 2.81%
 
Source:  Updated financial information and projections submitted by WAH on October 21, 2015. 
 
In addition to the revenue increases shown above, WAH assumed that revenue would increase by 
$15,391,282 (5.4%) on January 1, 2019 to reflect the HSCRC approved capital increase. 
 
Staff believes that the assumed increases are reasonable in light of the projected changes in 
population and approved revenue.   
 
WAH projected that charity write offs would equal 6.5% of gross patient revenue from 2015 through 
2020, an increase of .5% from the 2014 actual 6.0%.  WAH projected that bad debt expenses would 
equal 5.0% of gross patient revenue less Uncompensated Care Fund payments from 2015 to 2020, 
which represents a 1.7% decrease from the 2014 actual of 6.7%.  WAH attributes these changes to 
the changes brought about by the Affordable Care Act. 
 
WAH’s actual other deductions from revenue equaled 11.8% of gross patient revenue in 2014.  WAH 
projected that its other deductions from revenue would decrease to 9.5% of gross patient revenue in 
2015, decreasing to 9.4% from 2016 through 2018, and then decreasing to 9.3% in 2019 and 2020.  
WAH attributes this improvement to engaging a revenue cycle management firm to manage the 
revenue cycle operations and the reduction in HSCRC assessments due to the elimination of the 
Maryland Health Insurance Program (MHIP).   
 
The HSCRC staff also reviewed WAH’s projections of other operating revenue.  The projected other 
operating revenue is considered reasonable and achievable.  WAH did not project any non-operating 
revenue associated with this project. 
 
 
 



 

3 
 

 
 
Expense Projections 
 
Staff reviewed the assumptions regarding the projection of expenses.  WAH stated that it applied the 
following variable expense change assumptions in the CON projected financial statements 
 

Table 2 - Summary of Assumed Expense Increases 
Washington Adventist Hospital Revised CON Projections 

 
 Years Ending December 31, 
 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 
Salaries Excluding Overhead:       
   Inflation 2.3% 2.2% 2.3% 2.2% 2.3% 2.2%
   Change in FTE’s 2.0% 1.8% -.2% -.4% 1.8% .8%
Supplies Excluding Overhead:  
   Inflation 8.2% 2.0% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5% 3.5%
   Volume -.4% 1.8% 0.4% -.1% .7% 1.2%
Contract labor Excluding Overhead:  
   Inflation 2.3% 2.2% 2.3% 2.2% 2.3% 2.2%
   Change in FTE’s 17.1% -12.5% -.2% -.4% 1.8% 0.0%
Purchased Services Excluding Overhead:  
   Inflation -10.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0% 2.0%
   Volume 2.6% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% -.2% .7%
 
Source:  Updated financial information and projections submitted by WAH on October 21, 2015. 
 
For fixed expenses, WAH assumed a series of inflation factors for 2016 to 2020 ranging from 0% for 
professional fees to 2.5% for administrative and general expenses.  For 2015 inflation, WAH 
assumed 0.0% for professional fees, 11.5% for building and maintenance expense, negative (1.9%) 
for the overhead allocation from AHI, a negative (.2%) for general and administrative costs, and a 
negative (7.7%) for insurance costs. 
 
WAH assumed that it would reduce building and maintenance operating costs by 20%, or 
approximately $1,800,000, after the move to the new White Oak facility.  WAH has stated that it will 
contract with an unrelated party to provide utility services to the new White Oak facility through a 
Centralized Utility Plant (CUP).   
 
WAH is projecting that its number of FTE’s per Average Equivalent Occupied Beds (AEOB) will 
increase from an actual 4.1 in 2014 at the existing WAH facility to a projected 4.7 in 2020 at the new 
White Oak facility.  The reason for the large increase in projected FTE’s per AEOB is due to the fact 
that approximately 16% of WAH’s patient days are related to the psychiatric patients who will 
remain at the existing WAH facility.  The 2014 FTE’s per AEOB for other neighboring Montgomery 
and Prince Georges County hospitals range from 5.0 at Montgomery General Hospital to 5.8 at 
Prince Georges General Hospital.  Part of the reason for WAH’s lower  FTE’s per AEOB is due to 
the fact that WAH does not report FTE’s for all of the shared services that it purchases from AHI 
including patient billing and Information Technology Services. 



 

4 
 

 
Staff calculated the projected overall annual expense percentage variability with volume based on the 
percentage change in uninflated revenue compared to the annual change in total expenses including 
depreciation and interest depreciation and interest.  The results of staff’s analyses were as follows: 
 

Table 3 – Projected Expenses Percent Variability with Volume 
Washington Adventist Hospital Revised CON Projections 

 
 Years Ending December 31, 

  2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 
Including Depreciation and Interest 104.0% 14.2% 97.3% -11.8% 97.2%
   
Source: Updated financial information and projections submitted by WAH on October 21, 2015. 
 
The average variable cost change averages approximately 90% over the 5 year period.  However, 
since the overall volume change is very small during this period, any change to the variable cost 
percent would have little impact on the overall projection of expenses.  Staff believes that the 
assumptions used in the projections of ongoing annual expenses are reasonable and achievable.   
 
In the project budget for capital expenses, WAH made an assumption that it would incur $2,700,000 
in relocation costs for the move of the medical/surgical and obstetrics units and practically all 
outpatient services at the old facility to the new facility.  The $2,700,000 estimated relocation costs 
seem low.  WAH may incur cost at the new facility before it opens related to training, staffing, 
inventories, food, and other items related to relocation.  There may also be transportation costs of 
moving patients and staff from the old facility to the new facility.  If WAH needs to maintain some 
of the medical/surgical and obstetrics units and practically all outpatient services at the old facility 
after the new facility is open, then costs may be higher than the $2,700,000 WAH has projected. 
 
Financial Ratios 
 
WAH states on Page 128 of the CON that AHI will secure financing for the project pursuant to its 
amended and restated master trust indenture dated February 1, 2003.  WAH provided the projected 
financial information and ratios for the obligated group of AHI.  On a consolidated basis AHI 
projects that it will meet the ratio levels required under its bond documents.   
 
Listed below are the AHI projected ratios and the required ratios per the bond covenants provided by 
WAH: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

5 
 

 
 

Table 4 - Adventist HealthCare Obligated Group Key Financial Information and Ratios 
Washington Adventist Hospital Revised CON Projections  

 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Operating Income $8.7 $22.5 $34.4 $32.7 $28.4 $29.1 $17.4 $16.0 
Operating Margin 1.2% 3.1% 5.1% 4.8% 4.1% 4.1% 2.4% 2.1%

Excess of Revenue over Expenses $12.1 $25.8 $42.7 $41.8 $37.8 $38.7 $27.2 $25.9 
Excess Margin 1.7% 3.5% 6.3% 6.1% 5.5% 5.5% 3.7% 3.4%

Operating Cash Flow $54.2 $71.1 $74.7 $74.5 $70.9 $72.5 $87.4 $87.9 
Operating Cash Flow Margin 7.7% 9.7% 11.1% 10.9% 10.3% 10.3% 11.8% 11.6%

Debt Service Coverage-Projected 1.80x 2.13x 2.39x 2.08x 2.00x 2.04x 2.52x 2.79x
Debt Service Coverage --Required 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x 1.25x

Cash and Equivalents $225.9 $245.1 $213.5 $226.4 $230.3 $196.3 $212.7 $229.2 
Days Cash on Hand –Projected 124.6 132.4 127.8 133.8 133.2 111.1 114.8 120.6
Days Cash on Hand-Required 70 70 70 70 70 70 70 70

Long Term Debt $321.2 $319.8 $299.2 $523.5 $504.7 $502.7 $482.7 $464.1 
Net Assets $396.0 $419.0 $432.8 $480.4 $519.8 $575.4 $587.5 $604.0 
Debt to Capitalization-Projected 44.8% 43.3% 40.9% 42.1% 49.3% 46.6% 45.1% 43.4%

Total Liabilities to Unrestricted Net 
Assets-Projected 1.23x 1.15x 1.03x 1.38x 1.22x 1.11x 1.07 1.03

2.50x

Years Ending December 31, (in millions)

Total Liabilities to Unrestricted Net 
Assets-Required 2.50x 2.50x 2.50x 2.50x 2.50x 2.50x 2.50x

 
 
Source: Data Provided by WAH on November 2, 2015 
 
Based upon these projected ratios, Staff believes that AHI would be able to obtain financing for the 
project on terms that are consistent with those assumed in the plan of finance. 
 
Projected Volumes 
Even though hospital global budgets are fixed and are not sensitive to volume, Staff is concerned 
about potential declines in volumes that may occur as care models are changed and as population 
health is improved.  Even without these initiatives, there has been a steady decline in inpatient 
hospital utilization over decades, in spite of an aging population.   The introduction of DRGs, 
technological advances in surgery, radiation therapy, and new medications have contributed to this 
change.  While costs have not decreased, services have moved to outpatient settings.  Nationally and 
in Maryland, payment and delivery models are changing.  These models are likely to accelerate these 
trends toward lower inpatient utilization.  Our advice is that attention should be directed to making 
sure that bed need projections account for these trends and changes while the State is evaluating the 
size of the facility.  There is a risk that excess capacity could develop, and that this excess capacity 
could affect the feasibility of the WAH project.  For example, several of the TPR hospitals saw 
intensive inpatient volume decreases resulting in excess capacity, including capacity in new facilities.   
 



 

6 
 

One measure of the potential for utilization to fall is Potentially Avoidable Utilization (PAU).  This is 
a measurement of categories of unplanned hospital utilization that can be reduced through better care, 
better care coordination, and other interventions.  Staff is measuring several categories of PAUs.  Not 
all PAUs are avoidable, but Staff has not yet identified all categories of utilization that are avoidable.  
Staff is currently working with recognized national experts to add to the categories of avoidable 
utilization. 
 
In HSCRC’s recent calculations of PAUs used to update statewide revenues as of July 1, 2015, 
WAH’s percentage of PAU’s was 16.47% versus a statewide average of 13.65%.  This comparison 
of PAU’s has not yet been adjusted for socioeconomic status or other health disparities.  In the most 
recent ROC calculations, WAH had 29.3% of its patients classified as disproportionate share (poor 
patients) compared to an average of 17.8% for the total hospitals in its comparison group.  WAH’s 
significantly higher than average percentage of disproportionate share patients is likely contributing 
to its higher than average percentage of PAU’s.    
 
On a combined basis, the hospitals in Prince Georges County had 18.50% of their patients classified 
as PAU’s, while Montgomery County hospitals had 14.43% of their patients classified as PAUs.  
Therefore, not only does WAH have a high proportion of PAU’s but the hospitals surrounding WAH 
also have high proportions of PAU’s. Staff believes th  potential for volume declines in WAH’s 
service area related to future reductions in PAUs should be considered when evaluating bed need 
projections  as potentially affecting feasibility.  We understand that MHCC carries the responsibility 
for this effort and that it is difficult to predict the exact impact of change.  Nevertheless, Staff 
believes conservatism is warranted.  WAH is projecting the following discharges and observation 
patient volumes for CYs 2015 through 2020: 
 

Table 5 – Projected Volumes 
Washington Adventist Hospital Revised CON Projections 

 
 Year Ended December 31, 
 Actual Projected 
 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 
Inpatient Discharges Excl. Psych. 9,892 9,131 9,558 9,567 9,576 9,672 9,768
Outpatient Observation Patients 1,185 2,299 1,881 1,881 1,881 1,900 1,919

Totals 11,077 11,430 11,439 11,448 11,457 11,572 11,687
 
Source: Updated financial information and projections submitted by WAH on October 21, 2015. 
 
Included in WAH’s construction plans are 8 dedicated Short Stay Observation Beds in the lower 
tower and 12 Clinical Decision beds adjacent to the Emergency Department for a total of 20 
additional beds to treat patients classified as observation patients.  WAH is projecting 76,132 
observation hours in 2020, the second year of operations at the new White Oak facility.  Dividing 
these hours by 24 hours per day results in 3,172 days of observation care, or an average daily census 
of 8.7 patients.  Many patients stay less than 24 hours, so we are not certain how this translates into 
bed need or occupancy.  
Adding the 20 observation beds to the 152 proposed medical surgical (MSGA) beds results in a total 
of 172 beds to take care of patients requiring inpatient MSGA services at the new White Oak facility.  
Adding the projected 3,172 observation patient days to the projected 41,763 MSGA days projected 



 

7 
 

for 2020 results in a total of 44,935 patient days to be treated in the 172 total MSGA beds for an 
average occupancy rate of 71.6% in 2020.  For the 152 proposed MSGA inpatient beds only, WAH is 
projecting an occupancy rate of 75.3% in 2020.  The State Health Plan calls for a minimum 
occupancy level of 80% for hospitals with 100 to 299 medical surgical beds.  The use of all private 
rooms may increase the level of occupancy that can occur.  We understand that MHCC will evaluate 
occupancy in its review of bed need.   
Staff is concerned about future inpatient volume levels in the service area.  If WAH  is unable to 
achieve the projected volumes, the Hospital would be less efficient and would have higher rates, 
which in turn could affect the overall feasibility of the project.  In summary, Staff is suggesting that 
conservatism in bed need projection is warranted relative to project feasibility and efficiency, given 
the level of change in the delivery system that is underway nationally and in Maryland.   
 
Responses to Specific Questions: 
 

1. Are the sources of funds assumed by the applicant appropriate? In your opinion, is 
the equity contribution and the proportion of other non-debt sources of project funding 
adequate? 
 
WAH intends to finance the total project costs of $330,829,524 by incurring $244,750,000 in debt, 
fund raising $20,000,000, contributing cash of $50,575,175, and earning $4,504,349 in interest 
income during construction.  All of the $330,829,524 project cost is related to capital costs with no 
allowance made for working capital costs or transition costs. 
 
In addition to the $20,000,000 assumed fund raising and $50,575,175 cash contribution, WAH is 
assuming that the $11,000,000 previously expended for the purchase of the land for the project will 
also be a source of funds leaving the total equity contribution at $81,575,175, or approximately 25% 
of the project costs.   
 
Staff spoke with representatives of the Maryland Health and Higher Educational Facilities Authority 
(MHHEFA) who stated that AHI has a Baa2 debt rating.  WAH has assumed an interest rate of 6% 
for the debt associated with this project, which seems to be high given current interest rates.  If the 
actual interest rate is less than that assumed, the rate adjustment approved by the HSCRC would be 
modified to reflect the lower interest rate.  
 
Additionally, while the estimated annual depreciation, amortization, and interest is $24.6 million, the 
HSCRC only approved an additional $15.4 million revenue increase.  Therefore, AHI will be 
financing a significant portion of the borrowing.    
 
Given AHI’s debt situation, staff believes that WAH has provided a reasonable amount of equity 
contribution for the project to be financially feasible.  Ideally staff would like to see higher equity 
contributions so that the interest rate might be lower on the debt issued for the project resulting in 
overall lower costs to the patients. 
 

2. As you know, one of the applicant’s assumptions is that it will obtain a 7% increase in 
the hospital’s global budget revenue to account for the increased capital costs resulting from  
this project. In your opinion, is this increase necessary for this project to be feasible and for the 
replaced and relocated WAH to be financially viable? If, in your opinion, this increase is not 



 

8 
 

necessary for project feasibility and the viability of WAH, please provide the basis for this 
opinion. 
 
The 7.0% rate increase assumed by WAH represents approximately 80% of the additional 
depreciation and interest related to the new project.  As stated above, Staff has recommended a $15.4 
million (5.4%) increase to revenue instead of the 7.0% requested.  WAH had used projected 
operating results for FY 2014 in its original CON submission.  Its actual operating results for that 
year were much better than projected.  These results were incorporated in its projections submitted 
on October 21, 2015.  This improvement significantly offsets the impact of the lower approved 
revenue increase. 
 

3. Based on your analysis and the experience of HSCRC to date in implementing the 
new payment model for hospitals, what is the ability of the proposed replacement hospital to be 
competitively priced, when compared with general hospitals in its region of the state and when 
compared with similar (peer-group) hospitals throughout the state, if the project is 
implemented as proposed and the applicant’s utilization projections are realized? 
 
Competitive rates for proposed hospital – In order to evaluate the proposed rates of the relocated 
hospital, we developed a comparison of how WAH’s inpatient and outpatient hospital charges 
compared to its local competitors for the year ended June 30, 2014.  Staff’s analyses compared 
average inpatient charges per case by APRDRG broken down between the 4 severity levels within 
each APRDRG.  Staff’s analyses also compared average outpatient charges per case broken down by 
APG.   
 
Listed below are the percentage variances between WAH’s average charges per inpatient case and 
outpatient case and its neighboring hospitals for the year ended June 30, 2014: 
 

Table 6 
Comparison of Average Inpatient and Outpatient Charges per Case 

Washington Adventist Hospital and Neighboring Competitors 
Using Actual Charge Data 
Year Ended June 30, 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Hospital 

  
 

Percent 
Variance from 
WAH Average 

Inpatient 
Charges per 

Case 

  
Percent 

Variance from 
WAH’s 
Average 

Outpatient 
Charges per 

Case 

  
Combined 

Percent 
Variance from 

WAH’s 
Average  

Charges per 
Case 

Doctors Hospital  (8.4%) (4.3%)  (7.5%)
Howard County  (13.6%) (21.9%)  (17.9%)
Montgomery Medical Center  (13.1%) (8.4%)  (12.3%)
Suburban Hospital  (18.4%) (4.3%)  (14.4%)
Holy Cross Hospital  (14.1%) (7.8%)  (12.8%)
Laurel Regional Medical Center  (12.0%) 6.6%  (5.7%)
Average Difference  (13.3%) (6.1%)  (11.6%)



 

9 
 

 
Source:  HSCRC Market share data base.  Percentages were determined by first comparing to statewide averages 
and then comparing to WAH variances from statewide average. 
 
As this table indicates, the charges at WAH’s competitors were on average 13.3% below WAH’s 
charges for inpatients and 6.1% below for outpatients based on actual charge data for the year ended 
June 30, 2014.  Once WAH is granted an additional 5.4% rate increase for capital its competitors will 
have rates on average that may be more than 15% less than WAH’s new rates based on the 
comparisons of actual FY 2014 charges. However, these comparisons do not take into account the 
cost differences that may be attributable to taking care of populations with lower socioeconomic 
status.  The ROC comparison discussed below includes an adjustment to estimate the impact on costs 
of these population differences.  
 
Staff compared adjusted charges using information from the most recent ROC calculation, which 
utilized data from 2013 adjusted for revenue changes to 2014.  The adjusted charge comparison from 
the ROC data is as follows: 
 

Table 7 
Comparison of Average Combined Inpatient and Outpatient Charges per Case 

Washington Adventist Hospital and Neighboring Competitors 
Using Adjusted ROC Charges 

Year Ended June 30, 2014 
 

 
 
 
Hospital 

  Percent Variance from 
WAH’s Average 

Combined Adjusted 
Charges per Case 

Doctors Hospital   12.5%
Howard County   .5%
Montgomery Medical Center   10.4%
Suburban Hospital   9.9%
Holy Cross Hospital   (9.5%)
Laurel Regional Medical Center   (6.4%)
Average Difference                             7.5% 

 
Source:  HSCRC ROC data.  Percentages were determined by first comparing to statewide averages and then 
comparing to WAH variances from statewide average. 
 
As  noted above, the ROC analysis takes into account that WAH has a greater percentage of poor 
patients than the average of the hospitals in its peer group, which tends to cause higher costs and 
rates. 
 
Other requests: 
 
You also asked to receive comments on the financial feasibility of providing acute psychiatric 
hospital services in Takoma Park as a 40-bed special hospital. The project budget, five year pro 
forma schedule of revenues and expenses, and assumptions for this proposed special hospital 



 

10 
 

were submitted on December 12, 2014. Note that the project budget erroneously indicated that 
the source of funds for renovating space for behavioral health would be cash. The correct source 
of funds is debt, as specified in Exhibit 6 of the September 29, 2014 replacement application. 
This was confirmed by WAH in its response to my April 29, 2015 request for additional 
information. 
 
Financial Feasibility of 40 bed special psychiatric hospital on Takoma Park campus. 
 
Staff reviewed the pro forma income statement provided by WAH in the December 12, 2014 
supplemental submission letter for the 40 bed psychiatric unit that will remain at WAH after the 
relocation of the other beds to White Oak.  The 40 bed unit will be owned and operated by Adventist 
Behavioral Health (ABH), a psychiatric specialty hospital owned by AHI that is located in Rockville 
Maryland.  The pro forma is only for the 40 bed psychiatric unit and does not include any 
information on the other services that will exist at WAH after the relocation such as the 24-hour 
urgent care clinic and the Women’s Health Clinic.   
 
On August 24, 2015, the Maryland Medicaid program reduced reimbursements to free-standing 
psychiatric facilities larger than 16 beds because CMS withdrew a waiver that had been approved for 
the State of Maryland, which had allowed Maryland Medicaid to reimburse these facilities for acute 
psychiatric services.    Maryland’s Department of Health and Mental Hygiene is currently seeking a 
new federal waiver that would significantly expand the scope of treatment options available to 
Medicaid enrollees with substance abuse and mental health disorders.  WAH provided 
documentation showing that ABH has not been impacted by the reduction in Medicaid 
reimbursement, and that WAH, for a variety of reasons including the pending new waiver request, 
does not anticipate any reduction in projected Medicaid payments for the 40 bed psychiatric unit 
remaining in Takoma Park.  Staff believes that the projected net revenues for the 40 bed psychiatric 
unit are reasonable, assuming that Medicaid does not reduce payments to free-standing psychiatric 
hospitals in the future.   
 
Staff performed reasonableness tests of the direct costs for salaries and benefits and other expenses 
included in the December 12, 2014 pro forma for the 40 bed psychiatric unit.  Staff compared the 
projected 2019 costs per patient day in the pro forma to the regulated costs per patient day that ABH 
incurred during the year ended December 31, 2014 based on ABH’s HSCRC Annual Report 
provided to the HSCRC.  Staff inflated the actual ABH expenses for the year ended 2014 by 2.3% 
per year to 2019 based on the inflation assumptions included in WAH’s CON.   
 
The results of staff’s analysis are presented below: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

11 
 

Table 8 - Comparison of Projected Takoma Park Psychiatric Unit Costs to Adventist Behavioral 
Health Actual Costs on a per Equivalent Inpatient day Basis 
  

  Cost per Equivalent Inpatient Day 
 
 
 
 
Expense Category 

  
Takoma Park 

Psychiatric Unit 
Projected FY 

2019 

 Adventist 
Behavioral 

Health 
YE 12/31/2014 
Inflated to 2019 

  
 
 

Percent 
Variance 

Salaries and benefits  $574 $600  4.5%
Depreciation and interest  186 27  (85.5%)
Other  352 229  (65.1%)
Total Costs  $1,112 $837  (24.7%)
    
Equivalent inpatient days  10,578 32,467  

 
Sources: HSCRC Annual Report for the Year Ended December 31, 2014 and additional WAH CON information 
submitted December 12, 2014. 
 
Although Staff would expect that there would be economies of scale causing lower salary and 
benefits per patient day at ABH than at the Takoma Park site, the overall expenses per day appear 
reasonable.  Staff believes that ABH’s management team will be able to bring cost in line where 
appropriate.   
 
The income statements in the CON include projected net income of $5,465,000 in 2019 and 
$6,897,000 in 2020 for the new White Oak facility. The pro forma for the 40 bed psychiatric unit 
included a $210,000 projected profit in the first year of operations after the White Oak facility opens.  
The projected income statements provided by WAH in the July 27, 2015 letter from James Lee for 
both the White Oak facility and the services remaining at WAH show projected net income of only 
$747,000 in 2019 and $1,770,000 in 2020.  The approximate annual $5,000,000 difference between 
the two sets of projected financial statements represents the annual projected loss on the other 
services that will remain at Takoma Park.   
 
Staff reviewed additional information provided by WAH regarding the projected financial operations 
of services remaining at Takoma Park.  This financial information appears reasonable. 
  
Finally, you asked that we comment on Laurel Regional Hospital’s and MedStar Montgomery 
Medical Center’s submission of an analysis of the impact of the relocation on their discharges 
and the impact of such a reduction in volume on their revenues and bottom line profit. While you 
did not necessarily agree with the hospitals’ assessments of the impact on volume and you did 
not ask for our opinion on their calculation of the expected loss in discharges, you did ask for our 
comments on the methodology used to convert such losses in volume to reductions in revenue 
and impact on the hospitals’ bottom line profit (the relevant analysis submitted by the interested 
parties on May 29, 2015 was attached). 
 
Laurel Regional Hospital and MedStar Montgomery Medical Center Comments 



 

12 
 

 
The major issue with the analysis prepared on behalf of Laurel Regional Hospital (LRH) and 
MedStar Montgomery Medical Center (MMC) is that LRH and MMC are projecting a far greater 
number of discharges moving from their facilities than WAH has projected.  WAH is projecting that 
95 discharges will move to their new White Oak facility from LRH, while 91 discharges will move 
from MMC to the new White Oak facility.  LRH is projecting that it will lose 582 discharges to the 
new WAH facility at White Oak.  MMC is projecting that it will lose 284 discharges to the new 
WAH facility.   
 
Assuming that all of LRH’s and MMC’s assumptions regarding revenue, collection percentages, and 
variability of expenses are accurate, but substituting WAH’s projected changes in discharges,  the 
estimated impact at LRH would then decrease from ($1,123,000) annually to ($183,000.)  At MMC, 
the impact would be reduced from ($952,000) annually to ($305,000) if WAH’s projected changes in 
discharges are accurate. 
 
Another less important issue is the assumption of variability in expenses for supply and drug costs.  
Both LRH and MMC assume that supply and drug costs would vary at a 60% rate with changes in 
volumes.  Normally supplies and drugs should vary at or near 100% with changes in volumes.  
Assuming a higher variability factor for supplies and drugs would also reduce the projected impact 
on LRH and MMC. 
 
We also note that the submission by LRH may be irrelevant, given its recent announcement of 
facility reconfiguration and plans to eliminate much of the acute inpatient capacity of the hospital.   
 
Summary 
 
Staff believes that the overall assumptions regarding the financial viability of the new facility at 
White Oak are reasonable and achievable depending on WAH attaining the volumes projected in the 
CON.  The current environment of change in health care financing and delivery increase the 
probability that inpatient volumes will decline.  WAH and the surrounding hospitals in the area 
presently have substantial volumes of f PAUs. Staff recommends conservatism in evaluating need. If 
WAH does not attain the projected volumes in the CON its overall rate and revenue structure may be 
viewed as inefficient and may affect the overall financial viability of the project. 
 

 
 
 



1 
 

John M. Colmers 
Chairman 

 
Herbert S. Wong, Ph.D. 

Vice-Chairman 
 

George H. Bone, 
 M.D. 

 
Stephen F. Jencks, 

 M.D., M.P.H. 
 

Jack C. Keane 
 

Bernadette C. Loftus, 
 M.D. 

 
Thomas R. Mullen 

 

 

 

Donna Kinzer 
Executive Director 

 
Stephen Ports 

Principal Deputy Director 
Policy and Operations 

 
David Romans 

Director 
Payment Reform 
and Innovation 

 
Gerard J. Schmith 

Deputy Director 
Hospital Rate Setting 

 
Sule Gerovich, Ph.D. 

Deputy Director 
Research and Methodology 

Health Services Cost Review Commission 
4160 Patterson Avenue, Baltimore, Maryland 21215 

Phone: 410-764-2605 · Fax: 410-358-6217 

Toll Free: 1-888-287-3229 

State of Maryland 
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene 

Memorandum 
 
Date:  October 23, 2015 
 
To:  Robert E. Moffit, Ph.D. 

Commissioner/Reviewer, MHCC 
 
From:  Gerard J. Schmith 
  Deputy Director, Hospital Rate Setting, HSCRC 
 
Subject: Relocation of Prince George’s Hospital Center (“PGHC”) 
  Docket No. 13-16-2351 

This Memorandum is in response to your memo dated September 11, 2015 regarding the 
Certificate of Need (“CON”) filed by Dimensions Health Corporation (“DHC”) and Mount 
Washington Pediatric Hospital to replace and relocate PGHC.  A 15-bed Special Hospital-
Pediatric is operated by Mount Washington Pediatric Hospital, Inc. (“MWPH”) within leased space 
at the current PGHC, and this facility would also be replaced as part of the proposed project and 
operated under the same arrangement. 
 
The estimated project cost for the relocation and replacement of the general hospital and the 
special hospital-pediatric is $651,223,000. Dimensions proposes to finance the relocation of the 
hospital to Largo with approximately $206.7 million in debt, grants of $208 million from the 
State of Maryland and $208 million from Prince George’s County, and a total of $16.1 million in 
interest income from bond proceeds. $12.4 million is the recognized value of the donated land 
within this project cost estimate.  

 
You requested that HSCRC staff review the financial projections and the assumptions upon 
which these projections are based, as provided in the March 13, 2015 revisions to the January 16, 
2015 replacement CON application (Exhibit 50, Tables G1 and H1), and comment on the 
proposed project’s financial feasibility and the reasonableness of the assumptions. 
You also requested that we provide comments on these specific questions: 
 

1. Are the sources of funds assumed by the applicants appropriate? In your opinion, is the 
proportion of non-debt and non-grant sources of project funding adequate?  

 



 

 
 

 
2. The applicants have assumed that a 7.6% increase in the hospital’s global budget 

revenue (“GBR”) will be obtained to account for the increased capital costs resulting from this 
project. In your opinion, is this increase necessary for this project to be feasible and for the 
replaced and relocated PGHC to be financially viable? If, in your opinion, this increase is not 
necessary for project feasibility and the viability of PGHC, please provide the basis for this 
opinion.  
 

3. Based on your analysis and the experience of HSCRC to date in implementing the new 
payment model for hospitals, what is the ability of the proposed replacement hospital to be 
competitively priced, when compared with general hospitals in its region of the state and when 
compared with similar (peer-group) hospitals throughout the state, if the project is implemented 
as proposed and the applicants’ utilization projections are realized?  
 

4. Dimensions is assuming an increase in its GBR in each of the first three years of 
operation of the replacement hospitals resulting from market share shifts. A revenue increase of 
2.91% is projected for FY 2020, 2.75% for FY 2021, and 2.61% for FY 2022. Based on your 
analysis and the experience of HSCRC to date in implementing the new payment model for 
hospitals, what would be the impact of Dimensions not achieving these market shifts on the 
financial viability of the relocation and the ability of the proposed replacement hospital to be 
competitively priced, when compared with general hospitals in its region of the state and when 
compared with similar (peer-group) hospitals throughout the state.  
 

5. Dimensions also assumes that revenue adjustments for market share shifts would be 
recognized immediately in the year of the volume growth resulting from the shift in market share 
rather than in the year following the volume growth. In commenting on the financial feasibility 
of the project and the viability of PGHC after relocation, please indicate whether HSCRC will 
agree to this treatment of market share shift-related volume increases. If HSCRC will not agree 
to this, please address the impact on feasibility and viability and any impact on the size of the 
global budget adjustment for capital. (See Dimensions’ March 13, 2015 response to Question 22 
of MHCC staff’s February 10, 2015 completeness letter (page 31).  
 
HSCRC Staff has done an initial review of Prince George’s Hospital Center’s CON and current 
financial situation including its overall rate structure.  At this time, HSCRC Staff does not 
believe it has the data needed to perform an in-depth analysis of the PGHC CON.  For instance, 
we note that a substantial difference exists between actual operating profit for FY 2014 included 
in the CON financial projections and the actual operating profit from the Audited Financial 
Statements for FY 2014.  However, Staff makes the following comments at this time regarding 
the questions you have posed: 

 
1. The only sources of fund which are non-debt and non-grant are the $16.1 million interest 

income from bond proceeds and the $12.4 million recognized value of the donated land.   
We have not received a copy of DHC’s projected plan of finance; therefore, we cannot 
render an opinion on the $16.1 million, nor have we received an appraisal of the value of 



 

 
 

the donated land. According to the CON, DHC will need to borrow approximately $77 
million at the opening of the new facility in order to ensure that it maintains 100 days of 
cash on hand. Therefore, DHC has no cash available to help fund the project.  
   

2. The CON includes an assumption that the HSCRC would approve a $21.5 million (7.0%) 
increase to its approved revenue after the facility opens.  This increase represents 50% of 
the estimated additional depreciation, interest, and amortization related to this project.   
As of this date, PGHC has not filed a rate application with the HSCRC requesting any 
type of rate increase.  Without a rate application, Staff cannot determine if this 
contemplated rate increase is justified.  We have completed a pro forma analysis of our 
current policy, which permits a hospital to request additional revenue related to a major 
CON approved project. 1 The pro forma analysis does not produce any increase for 
additional capital for PGHC. 
 

3. The latest Reasonableness of Charges (“ROC”) calculation shows that PGHC is more 
than 14% above the average adjusted charges of its comparison peer group and nearly 
10% above adjusted average State-wide charges.  PGHC’s unadjusted charge difference 
for FY 2014 would be even greater.  The Hospital needs to achieve significant 
productivity improvements to improve its ROC position.  In the CON application, it 
proposes to do that through increasing its volumes at 50% variable cost.  The volume 
increase assumption creates a risk to competitiveness of rates if the volume increases are 
not achieved.  Additionally, the Hospital has not yet demonstrated the capability to 
deliver the incremental services at 50% variable cost.  This creates a second risk of 
whether the Hospital will be able to produce the services at 50% variable cost should the 
volumes increase. 
 

4. Staff is uncertain at this time as to the impact of the downsizing of Laurel Hospital on 
PGHC’s projections.  The CON filed by PGHC did not take into account the impact of 
the downsizing of Laurel Hospital which, staff believes, should have a positive impact on 
PGHC’s future financial projections.  Laurel Hospital had significant declines in 
utilization, which resulted in losses.  Addressing these losses and bed need in more 
comprehensive ways given declines in inpatient services should strengthen the viability 
of service offerings in Prince Georges County.  We have read the recommendations 
provided to Laurel Hospital by their consultants.  We stand prepared to review any 
additional information that is provided regarding future service reconfigurations as they 
evolve, recognizing that the environment is changing rapidly with consumer driven health 

                                                            
1 This is the same analysis that formed the basis of the HSCRC’s approval of $15.3 million for additional capital 
when Washington Adventist Hospital’s (“WAH’s”) new facility opens.  The HSCRC rate increase to WAH is 
contingent on MHCC’s final approval on WAH’s CON project.   



 

 
 

care transformation and increased emphasis on outpatient, telemedicine, retail, and virtual 
service delivery. 
 

5. PGHC has not requested any deviation from HSCRC’s normal methodology regarding 
the treatment of market shift adjustments. In the case of the new Holy Cross Germantown 
facility, for example, the HSCRC permitted an adjustment for market share to occur as 
volumes increase.  HSCRC Staff has not yet determined whether the adjustment would 
apply in this circumstance.  To make that determination, we will need additional 
information from PGHC. 
 

As to the methodology used by Doctors Hospital to convert volume losses to revenue reductions, 
we believe that while the method may produce a reasonable ‘ballpark’ estimate of lost revenue, 
the actual amount would most certainly be impacted by the types of lost cases.  Additionally, 
Doctors’ estimates of the impact on expenses and operating profits are questionable.  
 
Until HSCRC Staff receives more information regarding these aforementioned issues, we are not 
in a position to complete our normal CON review on the financial feasibility of the project. The 
project assumes and is dependent upon a revenue increase of $21.5 million.  Nothing has been 
provided to date that justifies this revenue increase.  
 

 

 

 



1

Monitoring Maryland Performance 
Financial Data

Year to Date thru 2015



2

Gross All Payer Revenue Growth
Year to Date (thru September 2015) Compared to Same Period in Prior Year

3.18%

2.58%

3.34%
2.92%

1.63%

-0.79%

-1.60%

-0.60%

0.40%

1.40%

2.40%

3.40%

4.40%

FY 2016 CY 2015

All Revenue
In State

Out of State

All 
Revenue

In State

Out of State



3

Gross Medicare Fee-for-Service Revenue Growth
Year to Date (thru September 2015) Compared to Same Period in Prior Year

4.05% 4.15%4.32%
4.75%

1.11%

-2.37%
-3.00%

-2.00%

-1.00%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

FY 2016 CY 2015

All 
Revenue

In State

Out of State Out of State

All
In State



4

Per Capita Growth Rates
Fiscal Year 2016 and Calendar Year 2015

 Calendar and Fiscal Year trends to date are below All-Payer Model Guardrail for per 
capita growth.   

3.57%

2.03%
2.50%

1.71%

-4.00%

-2.00%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

All-Payer In-State Fiscal Year YTD Medicare FFS In-State FY YTD All-Payer In-State Calendar Year
YTD

Medicare FFS In-State CY YTD

Population Data from Estimates Prepared by Maryland Department of Planning FFS = Fee-for-Service

Fiscal Calendar 

2.76%

1.30%

2.34%

1.51%

-4.00%

-2.00%

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

All-Payer In-State Fiscal Year YTD Medicare FFS In-State FY YTD All-Payer In-State Calendar Year
YTD

Medicare FFS In-State CY YTD

Population Data from Estimates Prepared by Maryland Department of Planning FFS = Fee-for-Service

Fiscal Calendar



5

Per Capita Growth – Actual and Underlying Growth
CY 2015 Year to Date Compared to Same Period in Base Year (2013)

 Two year per capita growth rate is well below maximum allowable growth rate of 7.29% 
(growth of 3.58% per year)

 Underlying growth reflects adjustment for FY 15 & FY 16 revenue decreases that were budget 
neutral for hospitals.  1.09% decrease from MHIP assessment and hospital bad debts in FY 15.  
Additional 1.41% adjustment in FY 16 due to further reductions to hospital bad debts and 
elimination of MHIP assessment.

4.48%

0.68%

6.02%

2.15%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

Per Capita  - All Payer Per Capita - Medicare

Net Growth Growth Before UCC/MHIP Adjustments



6

Operating Profits: Fiscal 2016 Year to Date (July-September) 
Compared to Same Period in FY 2015

 Year to date FY 2016 unaudited hospital operating profits shows little change compared 
to the same period in FY 2015. 

2.90%

1.43%

4.02%

6.94%

7.85%

3.32%

1.43%

3.99%

6.49%

7.68%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

5.00%

6.00%

7.00%

8.00%

9.00%

All Operating 25th Percentile Median 75th Percentile Rate Regulated Only

FY 2015 FY 2016



7

Operating Profits by Hospital
Fiscal Year to Date (July – September)

-20.00%

-15.00%

-10.00%

-5.00%

0.00%

5.00%

10.00%

15.00%

20.00%

25.00%



8

Purpose of Monitoring Maryland Performance
Evaluate Maryland’s performance against All-Payer Model
requirements:

 All-Payer total hospital per capita revenue growth ceiling
for Maryland residents tied to long term state economic growth
(GSP) per capita
 3.58% annual growth rate

 Medicare payment savings for Maryland beneficiaries compared
to dynamic national trend. Minimum of $330 million in savings over
5 years

 Patient and population centered-measures and targets to
promote population health improvement
 Medicare readmission reductions to national average
 30% reduction in preventable conditions under Maryland’s Hospital Acquired

Condition program (MHAC) over a 5 year period
 Many other quality improvement targets



9

Data Caveats
 Data revisions are expected.
 For financial data if residency is unknown, hospitals report this

as a Maryland resident. As more data becomes available, there
may be shifts from Maryland to out-of-state.

 Many hospitals are converting revenue systems along with
implementation of Electronic Health Records. This may cause
some instability in the accuracy of reported data. As a result,
HSCRC staff will monitor total revenue as well as the split of
in state and out of state revenues.

 All-payer per capita calculations for Calendar Year 2015 and
Fiscal 2016 rely on Maryland Department of Planning
projections of population growth of .56% for FY 16 and .56%
for CY 15. Medicare per capita calculations use actual trends
in Maryland Medicare beneficiary counts as reported monthly
to the HSCRC by CMMI.



10

Monitoring Maryland Performance 
Quality Data

November 2015 Commission Meeting Update



11

Monthly Risk-Adjusted Readmission Rates

Note: Based on final data for January 2012 – June 2015, and 
preliminary data through September 2015.

10%

11%

12%

13%

14%

15%

16%

Ja
n-

12
Fe

b-
12

M
ar

-1
2

A
pr

-1
2

M
ay

-1
2

Ju
n-

12
Ju

l-1
2

A
ug

-1
2

Se
p-

12
O

ct
-1

2
N

ov
-1

2
D

ec
-1

2
Ja

n-
13

Fe
b-

13
M

ar
-1

3
A

pr
-1

3
M

ay
-1

3
Ju

n-
13

Ju
l-1

3
A

ug
-1

3
Se

p-
13

O
ct

-1
3

N
ov

-1
3

D
ec

-1
3

Ja
n-

14
Fe

b-
14

M
ar

-1
4

A
pr

-1
4

M
ay

-1
4

Ju
n-

14
Ju

l-1
4

A
ug

-1
4

Se
p-

14
O

ct
-1

4
N

ov
-1

4
D

ec
-1

4
Ja

n-
15

Fe
b-

15
M

ar
-1

5
A

pr
-1

5
M

ay
-1

5
Ju

n-
15

Ju
l-1

5
A

ug
-1

5

All-Payer Medicare FFS Linear (All-Payer)

2013 2014 2015

Risk Adjusted 
Readmission Rate

All-Payer Medicare

Aug. 13 YTD 13.84% 14.59%
Aug. 14 YTD 13.45% 14.47%
Aug. 15 YTD 12.86% 13.72%

Percent Change 
CY13 vs. CY15 -7.10% -5.96%



12

-50%

-40%

-30%

-20%

-10%

0%

10%

20%

Change in All-Payer Risk-Adjusted 
Readmission Rates by Hospital

Note: Based on final data for January 2012 – June 2015, and preliminary data 
through September 2015.

Goal of 9.3% Cumulative 
Reduction 

16 Hospitals are on Track for 
Achieving Goal

Change Calculation compares Jan-Aug CY 2013 
compared to Jan-Aug CY2015



1

Monitoring Maryland Performance 
Preliminary Utilization Trends

Year to Date thru August 2015



2

All Payer ECMAD GROWTH -
Calendar Year to Date (thru August 2015) Compared to Same 
Period in Prior Year

-0.82%

-1.28%

-0.86%

-0.49%

-2.95%

-0.69%

-3.50%

-3.00%

-2.50%

-2.00%

-1.50%

-1.00%

-0.50%

0.00%
MD Resident NonResident Grand Total

CY 2014 CY 2015



3

Medicare ECMAD GROWTH -
Calendar Year to Date (thru August 2015) Compared to Same 
Period in Prior Year

-0.84%

-0.17%

-0.79%

1.53%

-3.52%

1.15%

-4.00%

-3.00%

-2.00%

-1.00%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%
MD Resident NonResident Grand Total

CY 2014 CY 2015



4

MD Resident ECMAD GROWTH by Location of Service -
Calendar Year to Date (thru August 2015) Compared to Same 
Period in Prior Year

-2.48%

-0.47%

-2.25%

1.66%

2.09%

-0.53%

2.82%

1.22%

-0.82%

-0.49%

-0.84%

1.53%

-3.00%

-2.00%

-1.00%

0.00%

1.00%

2.00%

3.00%

4.00%

CY 2014 CY 2015 CY 2014 CY 2015

All Payer Medicare
IP OP Total



5

Medicare MD Resident ECMAD GROWTH by 
Month

29,000

30,000

31,000

32,000

33,000

34,000

35,000

36,000

37,000

38,000

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug

2013

2014

2015



6

Medicare MD Resident ECMAD Growth by Service Line
Calendar Year to Date ECMAD Growth (thru August) 

20%

18%

11%

9%

9%

8%

 -  200  400  600  800  1,000  1,200  1,400  1,600

Infectious Disease

PQI

Rad/Inf/Chemo

Categorical
Exclusions_IP

Orthopedic Surgery

ED

CY 2015  Growth % Contribution to CY 15 Growth



7

32%

9%

12% 15% 7%

7%
7%

10%

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug

2013 2014 2015 % Contribution to CY15 Growth

Medicare MD Resident Infectious Disease 
Service Line ECMAD GROWTH by Month



8

Medicare MD Resident PQI Service Line 
ECMAD GROWTH by Month

34.0%

4.3%

14.5% 16.0%

6.2%

8.0% 15.2%
1.8%

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

3,000

3,500

Jan Feb March April May June July Aug

2013 2014 2015 % Contribution to CY15 Growth



9

Utilization Analytics – Data Notes
 Utilization as measured by Equivalent Case-mix Adjusted

Discharges (ECMAD)
 1 ECMAD Inpatient discharge=1 ECMAD OutpatientVisit

 Observation stays with more than 23 hour are included
in the inpatient counts
 IP=IP + Observation cases >23 hrs.
 OP=OP - Observation cases >23 hrs.

 Preliminary data, not yet reconciled with financial data
 Careful review of outpatient service line trends is needed
 TableauVisualization Tools



10

Service Line Definitions
 Inpatient service lines:
 APR DRG to service line mapping
 Readmissions and PQIs are top level service lines (include 

different service lines)

 Outpatient service lines: 
 Highest EAPG to service line mapping
 Hierarchical classifications (ED, major surgery etc)

 Market Shift technical documentation 



Cases Closed 

 

 

 

 

 

The closed cases from last month are listed in the agenda 



 

IN RE: THE PARTIAL RATE  * BEFORE THE HEALTH SERVICES 

APPLICATION OF THE     * COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND  *          DOCKET:                    2015 

ST. JOSEPH MEDICAL CENTER * FOLIO:         2114 

BALTIMORE, MARYLAND  * PROCEEDING:        2304N   

  

 

 

 

 

Staff Recommendation 

November 18, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Introduction 

On  July 17, 2015 University of Maryland St. Joseph Medical Center (the “Hospital”), a member of 
the University of Maryland Medical System, submitted a partial rate application to the Commission 
requesting a new rate for Definitive Observation (DEF) and Coronary Care (CCU) services.  The 
Hospital requests that the DEF and CCU rates be set at the lower of a rate based on its projected costs 
to provide DEF and CCU services or the statewide median and be effective November 1, 2015.         
 
Staff Evaluation 
 

To determine if the Hospital’s DEF and CCU rates should be set at the statewide median or at a rate 
based on its own cost experience, the staff requested that the Hospital submit to the Commission all 
projected cost and statistical data for DEF and CCU for FY 2015.  Based on information received 
from the Hospital, the DEF and CCU rates would be $1,349.80 per patient day and $2,965.00 per 
patient day respectively. The statewide median for DEF and CCU services are $1,120.45 per patient 
day and $2,038.36 per patient day respectively. 

This rate request is revenue neutral and will not result in any additional revenue to the Hospital, since 
it involves carving out DEF and CCU services from the current approved revenue for Med. /Surg. 
Acute (MSG) and Med/Surg. Intensive Care (MIS) services respectively.  The Hospital currently 
charges DEF as a rollup to its MSG rate and charges CCU as a rollup to its MIS rate.  The Hospital 
wishes to carve these services out to provide a more equitable charging of its patients.  The new 
proposed rates are as follows: 
 
 
                  Current        New  Budgeted          Approved
     Rate      Rate       Volume             Revenue 

 
Med./Surg. Acute $1,147.14 $1,162.16    30,671 $35,168,925 

Definitive Observation N/A $1,120.45    17,265 
 
  $19,682,434 

 
Med./Surg. Intensive Care  $2,433.09  $2,507.77    5,243 

 

 
  $13,249,849 

 
Coronary Care N/A  $2,038.36    992 

 

 
  $1,882,296 

     
  
 

 



 

Recommendation 

After reviewing the Hospital’s application, the staff recommends as follows: 

1. That a MSG rate of $1,162.16 per patient day be approved effective November 1, 2015; 

2. That a DEF rate of $1,120.45 per patient day be approved effective November 1, 2015;  

3. That a MIS rate of $2,507.77 per patient day be approved effective November 1, 2015; 

4. That a CCU rate of $2,038.36 per patient day be approved effective November 1,2015; 

5. That the MSG, DEF, MIS and CCU rates not be rate realigned until a full year’s cost 

experience data have been reported to the Commission; and 

6. That no change be made to the Hospital’s Global Budget Revenue. 

 



 
 
IN RE:  THE ALTERNATIVE   * BEFORE THE HEALTH  
 
RATE APPLICATION OF       * SERVICES COST REVIEW 
       
SAINT AGNES HEALTH 
 *         COMMISSION 
WESTERN MARYLAND     
HEALTH SYSTEM                           *          DOCKET:  2015 
                                                                          
MERITUS HEALTH     * FOLIO:   2117    
 
HOLY CROSS HEALTH * PROCEEDING: 2307A 
  
 
                                                                 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Final Recommendation 
 
 November 18, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This is a final recommendation and ready for Commission action.   
 
 



 

 
1 

I.  Introduction 
 
 On August 21, 2015, Saint Agnes Health System, Western Maryland Health System, Holy 

Cross Health, and Meritus Health (“the Hospitals”) filed an application for an Alternative Method 

of Rate Determination pursuant to  COMAR 10.37.10.06.  The Hospitals seek renewal for the 

continued participation of Maryland Physicians Care (“MPC”) in the Medicaid Health Choice 

Program.  MPC is the entity that assumes the risk under this contract.  The Commission most 

recently approved this contract under proceeding 2270A for the period January 1, 2015 through 

December 31, 2015.  The Hospitals are requesting to renew this contract for one year beginning 

January 1, 2016. 

II.  Background 

 Under the Medicaid Health Choice Program, MPC, a Managed Care Organization 

(“MCO”) sponsored by the Hospitals, is responsible for providing a comprehensive range of health 

care benefits to Medical Assistance enrollees.  The application requests approval for the Hospitals 

to provide inpatient and outpatient hospital services as well as certain non-hospital services, while 

the MCO receives a State-determined capitation payment.   MPC pays the Hospitals HSCRC-

approved rates for hospital services used by its enrollees.   MPC is a major participant in the 

Medicaid Health Choice program, and provides services to 18.2% of the total number of MCO 

enrollees in Maryland, which represents approximately the same market share as CY 2014. 

The Hospitals supplied information on their most recent experience as well as their 

preliminary projected revenues and expenditures for the upcoming year based on the revised 

Medicaid capitation rates.   

 



 

 
2 

III.    Staff Review 

 This contract has been operating under previous HSCRC approval (Proceeding 2270A). 

Staff reviewed the operating performance under the contract as well as the terms of the capitation 

pricing agreement.  Staff reviewed available final financial information and projections for CYs 

2014, 2015, and 2016.  In recent years, the financial performance of MPC has been favorable. The 

actual financial experience reported to staff for CY2014 was favorable; however, projections for 

CY 2015, like all of the provider-based MCOs, are unfavorable.  MPC is projecting to resume 

favorable performance in CY 2016.   

 

IV.  Recommendation  

  With the exception of CY 2013, MPC has generally maintained favorable performance in 

recent years. However, all of the provider-based MCOs are expecting losses in CY 2015.  Based 

on past and projected performance, staff believes that the proposed renewal arrangement for MPC 

is acceptable under Commission. 

Therefore: 

(1) Staff recommends approval of this alternative rate application for a one-year period 

beginning January 1, 2016. 

(2) Since sustained losses over an extended period  of time may be construed as a loss 

contract necessitating termination of this arrangement, staff will continue to monitor 

financial performance for CY 2015 and the MCO’s expected financial status into CY 

2016. Staff recommends that Maryland Physicians Care report to Commission staff 

(on or before the September 2016 meeting of the Commission) on the actual CY 2015 



 

 
3 

experience, preliminary CY 2016 financial performance (adjusted for seasonality) of 

the MCO, as well as projections for CY 2017.  

(3) Consistent with its policy paper outlining a structure for review and evaluatio n of  

applications for alternative methods of rate determination, the staff recommends that 

this appro val be co ntingent u pon the continued adherence to the stan dard 

Memorandum of Understanding with the Hospitals for the approved contract.  This 

document formalizes the understanding between the Commission and the Hospitals, 

and includes provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates, 

treatment of losses that may be attributed to the managed care contract, quarterly 

and annua l reporting, the confidentialit y of data submitted, penalties for  

noncompliance, project termination and/or  alteration, on-going monitoring, and 

other issues specific to the proposed contract.  The MOU also stipulates that operating 

losses under managed care contracts may not be used to justify future requests for 

rate increases. 



 
 
 
 
IN RE:  THE ALTERNATIVE   * BEFORE THE HEALTH  
 
RATE APPLICATION OF       * SERVICES COST REVIEW  
 
THE JOHNS HOPKINS HEALTH            *         COMMISSION 
 
SYSTEM                                                         *          DOCKET:  2015 
 
                                                                        * FOLIO:   2118  
 
 
BALTIMORE, MARYLAND  * PROCEEDING 2308A 
                                                                 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  Final Recommendation 
 
 November 18, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
This is a final recommendation and ready for Commission action. 
 
 



 

 
1 

I.  Introduction 
 
 On September 14, 2015, Johns Hopkins Health System (“JHHS,” or the “System”) filed an 

application for an Alternative Method of Rate Determination pursuant to COMAR 10.37.10.06 on 

behalf of Johns Hopkins Hospital, Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center, Suburban Hospital, 

and Howard County General Hospital (“the Hospitals”).  The System seeks renewal for the 

continued participation of Priority Partners, Inc. in the Medicaid Health Choice Program.  Priority 

Partners, Inc. is the entity that assumes the risk under the contract. The Commission most recently 

approved this contract under proceeding 2269A for the period from January 1, 2015 through 

December 31, 2015.  The Hospitals are requesting to renew this contract for a one-year period 

beginning January 1, 2016. 

II. Background 

 Under the Medicaid Health Choice Program, Priority Partners, a provider-sponsored 

Managed Care Organization (“MCO”) sponsored by the Hospitals, is responsible for providing a 

comprehensive range of health care benefits to Medical Assistance enrollees.  Priority Partners was 

created in 1996 as a joint venture between Johns Hopkins Health Care (JHHC) and the Maryland 

Community Health System (MCHS) to operate an MCO under the Health Choice Program.  Johns 

Hopkins Health Care operates as the administrative arm of Priority Partners and receives a 

percentage of premiums to provide services such as claim adjudication and utilization management. 

MCHS oversees a network of Federally Qualified Health Clinics and provides member expertise in 

the provision of primary care services and assistance in the development of provider networks.  

 The application requests approval for the Hospitals to continue to provide inpatient and 



 

 
2 

outpatient hospital services, as well as certain non-hospital services, while the MCO receives a 

State-determined capitation payment.  Priority Partners pays the Hospitals HSCRC-approved rates 

for hospital services used by its enrollees.  The Hospitals supplied information on their most recent 

experience as well as their preliminary projected revenues and expenditures for the upcoming year 

based on the initially revised Medicaid capitation rates. 

 Priority Partners is a major participant in the Medicaid Health Choice program, providing 

managed care services to 23.6% of the State’s MCO population, up from 22.8% in CY 2014.  

III.    Staff Review 

 This contract has been operating under the HSCRC’s initial approval in proceeding 2269A.  

Staff reviewed the operating performance under the contract as well as the terms of the capitation 

pricing agreement. Staff reviewed available final financial information and projections for CYs 

2014, 2015, and 2016. The statements provided by Priority Partners to staff represent both a “stand-

alone” and “consolidated” view of Priority’s operations. The consolidated picture reflects certain 

administrative revenues and expenses of Johns Hopkins Health Care.  When other provider-based 

MCOs are evaluated for financial stability, their administrative costs relative to their MCO business 

are included as well; however, they are all included under the one entity of the MCO.  

 In recent years, the consolidated financial performance of Priority Partners has been 

favorable. The actual financial experience reported to staff for CY2014 was positive. However, 

projections for CY 2015, like all of the provider-based MCOs, are unfavorable.  Priority Partners 

is projecting to resume favorable performance in CY 2016. 

 



 

 
3 

 

IV. Recommendation 

            Priority Partners has continued to achieve favorable consolidated financial performance in 

recent years.  However, all of the provider-based MCOs are expecting losses in CY 2015.  Based 

on past and projected performance, staff believes that the proposed renewal arrangement for Priority 

Partners is acceptable under Commission. 

Therefore: 

1) Staff recommends approval of this alternativ e rate application for a one-year period  

beginning January 1, 2016.   

2) Since sustained losses over an extended peri od of time may be construed as a loss 

contract necessitating termination of this arrangement, staff will continue to monitor 

financial performance in CY 2015, and the MC Os expected financial status in to CY 

2016. Therefore, staff recommends that Priority Partners report to Commission staff 

(on or before the September 2016 meeting of  the Commission) on the actual CY 2015 

experience, and preliminary CY 2016 financial performance (adjusted for seasonality) 

of the MCO, as well as projections for CY 2017.  

3) Consistent w ith its policy paper outlining a s tructure fo r review  and evaluatio n of  

applications for alternative methods of rate determination, the staff recommends that 

this approval be contingent upon the continued adherence to the stan dard 

Memorandum of Understanding w ith the Hospitals for the approved contract.  This 

document formalizes the understanding be tween the Commission and the Hospitals, 



 

 
4 

and includes provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates, 

treatment of losses that may be attributed to the managed care contract, quarterly and 

annual reporting, the confidentiality of data submitted, pe nalties for noncompliance, 

project termination and/or al teration, on-going monitoring, and other issues specific 

to the proposed contract.  The MOU also  stipulates that operating losses under 

managed care contracts may not be used to justify future requests for rate increases.  

 



 
             
IN RE:  THE ALTERNATIVE  * BEFORE THE HEALTH   
 
RATE APPLICATION OF      * SERVICES COST REVIEW 
 
MEDSTAR HEALTH                         * COMMISSION    

  
SYSTEM                                                    * DOCKET:  2015 
 
               * FOLIO:  2120 
 
COLUMBIA, MARYLAND        * PROCEEDING: 2310A 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Final Recommendation 
 
 November 18, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This is a final recommendation and ready for Commission action. 



 

 
1 

I.  Introduction 
 
 On September 21, 2015, MedStar Health filed an application for an Alternative Method of 

Rate Determination pursuant to COMAR 10.37.10.06 on behalf of Franklin Square Hospital, Good 

Samaritan Hospital, Harbor Hospital, and Union Memorial Hospital (“the Hospitals”).  MedStar 

Health seeks renewal for the continued participation of MedStar Family Choice (“MFC”) in the 

Medicaid Health Choice Program.  MedStar Family Choice is the MedStar entity that assumes the 

risk under this contract.  The Commission most recently approved this contract under proceeding 

2257A for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015.  The Hospitals are 

requesting to renew this contract for one year beginning January 1, 2016. 

II. Background 

 Under the Medicaid Health Choice Program, MedStar Family Choice, a Managed Care 

Organization (“MCO”) sponsored by the Hospitals, is responsible for providing a comprehensive 

range of health care benefits to Medical Assistance enrollees.  The application requests approval 

for the Hospitals to provide inpatient and outpatient hospital services, as well as certain non-

hospital services, while MFC receives a State-determined capitation payment.   MFC pays the 

Hospitals HSCRC-approved rates for hospital services used by its enrollees.   MFC provides 

services to 6.2% of the total number of MCO enrollees in Maryland, which represents 

approximately the same market share as CY 2014. 

The Hospitals supplied information on their most recent experience as well as their 

preliminary projected revenues and expenditures for the upcoming year based on the Medicaid 

capitation rates.  

 



 

 
2 

 

III.    Staff Review 

 This contract has been operating under previous HSCRC approval (proceeding 2257A). 

Staff reviewed the operating performance under the contract as well as the terms of the capitation 

pricing agreement.  Staff reviewed available final financial information and projections for CYs 

2014, 2015, and 2016. In recent years, the financial performance of MFC has been favorable. The 

actual financial experience reported to staff for CY 2014 was positive.  However, projections for 

CY 2015, like all of the provider-based MCOs, are unfavorable.  MFC is projecting to resume 

favorable performance in CY 2016. 

IV.  Recommendation 

  MFC has continued to achieve favorable financial performance in recent years. However, 

all of the provider-based MCOs are expecting losses in CY 2015.   Based on past performance, 

staff believes that the proposed renewal arrangement for MFC is acceptable under Commission 

policy.   

Therefore: 
 

(1) Staff recommends approval of this alternative rate application for a one-year period 

beginning January 1, 2016.  

(2) Since sustained losses may be con strued as a loss contract necessitating termination 

of this arr angement, staff w ill continue  t o monitor  financial performanc e to 

determine whether favorable financia l performance resumes in CY 2016. Staff 

recommends that MedStar Family Choice repo rt to Commission staff (on or before 

the September 2016 meeting of th e Commission) on the actual CY 2015 experience 



 

 
3 

and preliminary CY 2016 financial performa nce (adjusted for seasonality) of the  

MCO, as well as projections for CY 2017.  

(3) Consistent with its policy paper outlining a structure for review and evaluatio n of  

applications for alternative methods of rate determination, the staff recommends that 

this appro val be co ntingent u pon the continued adherence to the stan dard 

Memorandum of Understanding with the Hospitals for the approved contract.  This 

document formalizes the understanding between the Commission and the Hospitals, 

and includes provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates, 

treatment of losses that may be attributed to the managed care contract, quarterly 

and annua l reporting, the confidentialit y of data submitted, penalties for  

noncompliance, project termination and/or  alteration, on-going monitoring, and 

other issues specific to the proposed contract.  The MOU also stipulates that operating 

losses under managed care contracts may not be used to justify future requests for 

rate increases. 

 

 



 
             
IN RE:  THE ALTERNATIVE  * BEFORE THE HEALTH   
 
RATE APPLICATION OF      * SERVICES COST REVIEW 
 
MEDSTAR HEALTH                         * COMMISSION    

  
SYSTEM                                                    * DOCKET:  2015 
 
               * FOLIO:  2121 
 
COLUMBIA, MARYLAND        * PROCEEDING: 2311A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Amended 
  

Final Recommendation 
 
 November 18, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
1 

I.  Introduction 
 
 On September 23, 2015, MedStar Health filed an application for an Alternative Method 

of Rate Determination pursuant to COMAR 10.37.10.06 on behalf of Franklin Square Hospital, 

Good Samaritan Hospital, Harbor Hospital, and Union Memorial Hospital (the “Hospitals”).  

MedStar Health seeks approval for MedStar Family Choice (“MFC”) to continue to participate in 

a Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) approved Medicare Advantage Plan.  

MedStar Family Choice is the MedStar entity that assumes the risk under this contract.  The 

Hospitals are requesting an approval for one year beginning January 1, 2016. 

II. Background 

 MFC has been operating a CMS-approved Medicare Advantage Plan under the plan name 

of MedStar Medicare Choice for the last three years in the District of Columbia. Last year CMS 

granted MFC permission to expand under the same Medicare Advantage plan number to provide 

coverage to Maryland eligible residents in Anne Arundel, Baltimore, Charles, Howard, Prince 

George’s, St. Mary’s counties and Baltimore City for CY 2015.  The application requests 

continued approval for MFC to provide inpatient and outpatient hospital services, as well as 

certain non-hospital services, in return for a CMS-determined capitation payment.  MFC will 

continue to pay the Hospitals HSCRC-approved rates for hospital services used by its enrollees.  

MFC supplied financial projections for its operations in Maryland for CY 2016. 

 

III.    Staff Review 

 Staff reviewed the reviewed the financial projections for CY 2016, as well as MFC’s 

experience and projections for CY 2015. The information reflected the anticipated negative 



 

 
2 

financial results associated with start-up of a Medicare Advantage Plan.   

 

IV. Recommendation 

  Based on the financial projections and the fact that MFC has achieved favorable 

financial performance in its Maryland Medicaid’s Health Choice Program, staff believes that the 

continued approval of the arrangement between CMS and MFC is acceptable under Commission 

policy. Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission approve the Hospitals’ request to 

continue to participate in CMS’ Medicare Part C Medicare Advantage Program for a period of 

one year beginning January 1, 2016. The Hospitals must file a renewal application annually for 

continued participation. In addition, MFC must meet with HSCRC staff prior to August 31, 2016 

to review its financial projections for CY 2017. In addition, UMHA must submit a copy of its 

quarterly and annual National Association of Insurance Commissioner’s (NAIC’s) reports within 

30 days of submission to the NAIC. 

 Consistent with its policy paper regarding applications for alternative methods of rate 

determination, the staff recommends that this approval be contingent upon the execution of the 

standard Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with the Hospitals for the approved contract.  

This document would formalize the understanding between the Commission and the Hospitals, 

and would include provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates, treatment 

of losses that may be attributed to the contract, quarterly and annual reporting, confidentiality of 

data submitted, penalties for noncompliance, project termination and/or alteration, on-going 

monitoring, and other issues specific to the proposed contract. The MOU will also stipulate that 

operating losses under the contract cannot be used to justify future requests for rate increases. 



 

 
3 

  

  
 



 
 
IN RE:  THE ALTERNATIVE   * BEFORE THE HEALTH  
 
RATE APPLICATION OF       * SERVICES COST REVIEW 
       
UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND MEDICAL        *         COMMISSION 
 
SYSTEM CORPORATION 
                                                                         *          DOCKET:  2015 
 
 * FOLIO:   2124    
 
 * PROCEEDING: 2314A 
 
                                                                 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Final Recommendation 
 
 November 18, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
This is a final recommendation and ready for Commission action. 
 
 
 



 

 
1 

I.  Introduction 
 
 On September 30, 2015, Riverside Health of Maryland, Inc. (“Riverside”), a Medicaid 

Managed Care Organization (“MCO”), on behalf of The University of Maryland Medical System 

Corporation (“the Hospitals”), filed an application for an Alternative Method of Rate 

Determination (“ARM”) pursuant to  COMAR 10.37.10.06.   Riverside and the Hospitals seek 

approval for the MCO to continue to participate in the Medicaid Health Choice Program.  Riverside 

is the entity that assumes the risk under this contract.  The Commission most recently approved 

this contract under proceeding 2281A for the period from January 1, 2015 through December 31, 

2015. Under that arrangement, Riverside’s hospital partners were LifeBridge Health, and 

Adventist Healthcare, Inc.  In August of 2015, Riverside was purchased by University of Maryland 

Medical System Corporation. The MCO and Hospitals are requesting to implement this new 

contract for one year beginning January 1, 2016. 

II.  Background 

 Under the Medicaid Health Choice Program, Riverside, a MCO owned by the Hospitals, 

is responsible for providing a comprehensive range of health care benefits to Medical Assistance 

enrollees.  The application requests approval for the Hospitals to provide inpatient and outpatient 

hospital services as well as certain non-hospital services, while the MCO receives a State-

determined capitation payment.  Riverside pays the Hospitals HSCRC-approved rates for hospital 

services used by its enrollees.  Riverside is a relatively small MCO providing services to 2.4% of 

the total number of MCO enrollees in the HealthChoice Program, which represents approximately 

the same market share as CY 2014. 

Riverside supplied information on its most recent financial experience as well as its 



 

 
2 

preliminary projected revenues and expenditures for the upcoming year based on the revised 

Medicaid capitation rates.  

III.    Staff Review 

 This contract has been operating under previous HSCRC approval (proceeding 2281A). 

Staff reviewed the operating financial performance under the contract.  Staff reviewed available 

final financial information and projections for CYs 2014, 2015, and 2016.   In its second year of 

operation, Riverside reported positive financial performance for CY 2014.    However, projections 

for CY 2015, like all of the provider-based MCOs, are unfavorable.  Riverside is projecting to 

resume favorable performance in CY 2016. 

 

IV. Recommendation  

  Due to startup costs, Riverside’s financial performance in its first year (CY 2013) was 

negative.  Its financial performance in CY 2014 was favorable.  However, all of the provider-based 

MCOs are expecting losses in CY 2015. Riverside is projecting a positive margin in CY 2016.  

Staff believes that the proposed renewal arrangement for Riverside is acceptable under 

Commission policy but will continue to monitor as the organization has recently changed its 

ownership arrangement.   

Based on the information provided, staff believes that the proposed arrangement for Riverside is 

acceptable.   

Therefore: 

(1) Staff recommends approval of this alternative rate application for a one-year period 

beginning January 1, 2016. 



 

 
3 

(2) Since sustained losses over an extended period  of time may be construed as a loss 

contract necessitating termination of this arrangement, staff will continue to monitor 

financial performance for CY 2015 and the MCO’s expected financial status into CY 

2016. Staff recommends that Riverside report to Commission staff (on or before the 

September 2016 meeting of the Commissio n) on the actual CY 2015 experience, 

preliminary CY 2016 financial performance (a djusted for seasonality) of the MCO, 

as well as projections for CY 2017.  

(3) Consistent with its policy paper outlining a structure for review and evaluatio n of  

applications for alternative methods of rate determination, the staff recommends that 

this appro val be co ntingent u pon the continued adherence to the stan dard 

Memorandum of Understanding with the Hospitals for the approved contract.  This 

document formalizes the understanding between the Commission and the Hospitals, 

and includes provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates, 

treatment of losses that may be attributed to the managed care contract, quarterly 

and annua l reporting, the confidentialit y of data submitted, penalties for  

noncompliance, project termination and/or  alteration, on-going monitoring, and 

other issues specific to the proposed contract.  The MOU also stipulates that operating 

losses under managed care contracts may not be used to justify future requests for 

rate increases. 



 
             
IN RE:  THE ALTERNATIVE  * BEFORE THE HEALTH   
 
RATE APPLICATION OF      * SERVICES COST REVIEW 
 
JOHNS HOPKINS HEALTH                      * COMMISSION    

  
SYSTEM                                                    * DOCKET:  2015 
 
               * FOLIO:  2125 
 
BALTIMORE, MARYLAND        * PROCEEDING: 2315A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Amended 
  

Final Recommendation 
 
 November 18, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
1 

I.  Introduction 
 
 On November 2, 2015, the Johns Hopkins Health System (JHHS) filed an application for 

an Alternative Method of Rate Determination pursuant to COMAR 10.37.10.06 on behalf of its 

constituent hospitals (the “Hospitals”).  JHHS seeks approval for Hopkins Health Advantage. 

Inc. (“HHA”) to participate in a Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) approved 

Medicare Advantage Plan.  HHA is the JHHS entity that assumes the risk under this contract.  

JHHS is requesting an approval for one year beginning January 1, 2016. 

II. Background 

 On September 1, 2015, CMS granted HHA approval to operate a Medicare Advantage 

Plan to provide coverage to Maryland eligible residents in Anne Arundel, Baltimore, Calvert, 

Carroll, Howard, Montgomery, Somerset, Washington, Wicomico, Worcester counties and 

Baltimore City.  The application requests approval for the HHA to provide inpatient and 

outpatient hospital services, as well as certain non-hospital services, in return for a CMS-

determined capitation payment.  HHA will pay the Hospitals HSCRC-approved rates for hospital 

services used by its enrollees.  

HHA supplied a copy of its contract with CMS and financial projections for its 

operations. 

 

III.    Staff Review 

 Staff reviewed the CMS contract and the financial information and projections for CYs 

2016 and beyond. 

 



 

 
2 

IV. Recommendation 

  Based on the financial projections, staff believes that the proposed arrangement for HHA 

is acceptable under Commission policy.Therefore, staff recommends that the Commission 

approve the Hospitals’ request to participate in CMS’ Medicare Part C Medicare Advantage 

Program for a period of one year beginning January 1, 2016. The Hospitals must file a renewal 

application annually for continued participation. In addition, HHA must meet with HSCRC staff 

prior to August 31, 2016 to review its financial projections for CY 2017. In addition, UMHA 

must submit a copy of its quarterly and annual National Association of Insurance 

Commissioner’s (NAIC’s) reports within 30 days of submission to the NAIC. 

  Consistent with its policy paper regarding applications for alternative methods of 

rate determination, the staff recommends that this approval be contingent upon the execution of 

the standard Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with the Hospitals for the approved 

contract.  This document would formalize the understanding between the Commission and the 

Hospitals, and would include provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates, 

treatment of losses that may be attributed to the contract, quarterly and annual reporting, 

confidentiality of data submitted, penalties for noncompliance, project termination and/or 

alteration, on-going monitoring, and other issues specific to the proposed contract. The MOU 

will also stipulate that operating losses under the contract cannot be used to justify future 

requests for rate increases. 

  

  
 



 

IN RE: THE APPLICATION FOR * BEFORE THE MARYLAND HEALTH 

ALTERNATIVE METHOD OF RATE * SERVICES COST REVIEW 

DETERMINATION * COMMISSION  

JOHNS HOPKINS HEALTH        * DOCKET:   2015        

SYSTEM                           * FOLIO:  2126   

BALTIMORE, MARYLAND * PROCEEDING: 2316A 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Staff Recommendation 

November 18, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



I.  INTRODUCTION  

 

 Johns Hopkins Health System (“System”) filed a renewal application with the HSCRC on 

October 30, 2015 on behalf of the Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center (the “Hospital”) 

requesting approval from the HSCRC for continued participation in a capitation arrangement 

among the System, the Maryland Department of Health and Mental Hygiene (DHMH), and the 

Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). The Hospital, doing business as Hopkins 

Elder Plus (“HEP”), serves as a provider in the federal “Program of All-inclusive Care for the 

Elderly” (“PACE”). Under this program, HEP provides services for a Medicare and Medicaid 

dually eligible population of frail elderly. The requested approval is for a period of one year 

effective December 1, 2015.    

 

II.   OVE RVIEW OF APPLICATION 

 

 The parties to the contract include the System, DHMH, and CMS. The contract covers 

medical services provided to the PACE population. The assumptions for enrollment, utilization, 

and unit costs were developed on the basis of historical HEP experience for the PACE 

population as previously reviewed by an actuarial consultant. The System will assume the risks 

under the agreement, and all Maryland hospital services will be paid based on HSCRC rates.  

 

III. STAFF EVALUATION 

 

 Staff found that the experience under this arrangement for FY 2015 to be slightly 

unfavorable. The PACE Program Administrator explained that the relatively poor performance 

was attributable to several factors that have been addressed in this year’s budget. The Program 

should produce a small profit in FY 2016. However, because the membership in the Program is 

restricted, one or two outlier hospital admissions could eliminate the surplus. Therefore, in taking 

a conservative approach, the Program is projecting a breakeven year in FY 2016.    

 

III.   STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

 

 Staff recommends that the Commission approve the Hospital’s renewal application for an 

alternative method of rate determination for one year beginning Decmber 1, 2015. The Hospital 



will need to file a renewal application for review to be considered for continued participation.  

 Consistent with its policy paper regarding applications for alternative methods of rate 

determination, the staff recommends that this approval be contingent upon the execution of the 

standard Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with the Hospital for the approved contract.  

This document formalizes the understanding between the Commission and the Hospital, and 

includes provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates, treatment of losses 

that may be attributed to the contract, quarterly and annual reporting, confidentiality of data 

submitted, penalties for noncompliance, project termination and/or alteration, on-going 

monitoring, and other issues specific to the proposed contract. The MOU also stipulates that 

operating losses under the contract cannot be used to justify future requests for rate increases. 



 
             
IN RE:  THE ALTERNATIVE  * BEFORE THE HEALTH   
 
RATE APPLICATION OF      * SERVICES COST REVIEW 
 
UNIVERSITY OF MARYLAND                * COMMISSION    

  
MEDICAL SYSTEM                                  * DOCKET:  2015 
 
               * FOLIO:  2128 
 
BALTIMORE, MARYLAND        * PROCEEDING: 2318A 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Amended 
 

Final Recommendation 
 
 November 18, 2015 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 
1 

I.  Introduction 
 
 On November 9, 2015, the University of Maryland Medical System (UMMS) filed an 

application for an Alternative Method of Rate Determination pursuant to COMAR 10.37.10.06 

on behalf of its constituent hospitals (the “Hospitals”).  UMMS seeks approval for University of 

Maryland Health Advantage, Inc. (“UMHA”) to participate in a Centers for Medicare and 

Medicaid Services (CMS) approved Medicare Advantage Plan.  UMHA is the UMMS entity that 

assumes the risk under this contract.  UMHA is requesting an approval for one year beginning 

January 1, 2016. 

II. Background 

 On September 1, 2015, CMS granted UMHA approval to operate a Medicare Advantage 

Plan to provide coverage to Maryland eligible residents in Anne Arundel, Baltimore, Caroline, 

Cecil, Carroll, Dorchester, Harford, Howard, Kent, Montgomery, Queen Anne’s, Talbot counties 

and Baltimore City.  The application requests approval for UMHA to provide inpatient and 

outpatient hospital services, as well as certain non-hospital services, in return for a CMS-

determined capitation payment.  UMHA will pay the Hospitals HSCRC-approved rates for 

hospital services used by its enrollees.  

UMHA supplied a copy of its contract with CMS and financial projections for its 

operations. 

 

III.    Staff Review 

 Staff reviewed the CMS contract and the financial information and projections for CYs 

2016 and beyond. 



 

 
2 

 

IV. Recommendation 

  Based on the financial projections, staff believes that the proposed arrangement for 

UMHA is acceptable under Commission policy. Therefore, staff recommends that the 

Commission approve the Hospitals’ request to participate in CMS’ Medicare Part C Medicare 

Advantage Program for a period of one year beginning January 1, 2016. UMHA must meet with 

HSCRC staff prior to August 31, 2016 to review its financial projections for CY 2017. In 

addition, UMHA must submit a copy of its quarterly and annual National Association of 

Insurance Commissioner’s (NAIC’s) reports within 30 days of submission to the NAIC. 

 Consistent with its policy paper regarding applications for alternative methods of rate 

determination, the staff recommends that this approval be contingent upon the execution of the 

standard Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") with the Hospitals for the approved contract.  

This document would formalize the understanding between the Commission and the Hospitals, 

and would include provisions for such things as payments of HSCRC-approved rates, treatment 

of losses that may be attributed to the contract, quarterly and annual reporting, confidentiality of 

data submitted, penalties for noncompliance, project termination and/or alteration, on-going 

monitoring, and other issues specific to the proposed contract. The MOU will also stipulate that 

operating losses under the contract cannot be used to justify future requests for rate increases. 

  

  
 



1 
 

Preliminary Staff Report for Commission Consideration  
Regarding Health Job Opportunity Program Proposal 

November 18, 2015 
 

Overview Health Job Opportunity Program Proposal  
At the Commission’s September 9, 2015 public meeting, a panel of several hospital 
representatives and the Maryland Hospital Association proposed that the HSCRC provide up to 
$40 million through hospital rates to establish about 1,000 entry level health care jobs in areas 
of extreme poverty and unemployment.  This staff report provides input on several options for 
Commission discussion, based on input from the Payment Models Workgroup, public comment, 
and staff policy analysis. 

Background 
The Health Job Opportunity Program Proposal (“Proposal”) came about as a result of the unrest 
in Baltimore City and the strong belief that employment is an important element needed to 
change the current situation.  Hospitals are among the largest employers in Baltimore City as well 
as in other areas of the State that have pockets of extreme poverty and unemployment.   The 
Proposal seeks to create community-based jobs that can contribute to improved community 
health as well as hospital jobs that create employment opportunities in economically challenged 
areas.   

All parties have acknowledged the importance of jobs in reducing economic disparities.  
However, there are critical differences in thinking about how creating job opportunities should 
be addressed and who should provide the funding for job creation. 

This report focuses on synthesizing input and providing staff policy analysis for consideration by 
the Commission in determining how to approach this important proposal. 

Analysis 
Summary of Input Received-- 
Payment Models Work Group 

The Payment Models Workgroup held a meeting to discuss this and other topics on October 5, 
2015.   Program description materials and a series of questions were sent out in advance of the 
meeting and posted to the website.  Comments were also accepted from other individuals 
attending the meeting. 



2 
 

The work group members and other commenters expressed their appreciation for the leadership 
in bringing forward this proposal.  All parties acknowledged the importance of jobs in reducing 
disparities.   

Following is a general summary of work group comments, as presented in the Executive 
Director’s report at the October 14, 2015 Commission meeting: 

• Several commenters expressed the view that if the Commission were to take on a 
program of this nature, that it would be very important to define success.  Success would 
need to be framed not only in creating jobs, but also in the context of the New All Payer 
Model and Triple Aim of improving care, improving health, and lowering costs. 

o A program that could not meet those requirements might be better implemented 
outside of the rate system. 

o Proposers of the Program indicated that evaluative criteria should be developed 
and that if the Program was not meeting those criteria, that it should be 
discontinued. 

o Because the jobs are entry level and for untrained workers, there was an 
indication that it might take some time to evaluate the impact on health and costs.  
Whether the jobs could be filled and the workers maintained could be determined 
much sooner. 

• Several commenters felt that it would be important to focus on jobs outside of hospitals, 
such as Community Health Workers.  The concern was expressed that the reduction of 
avoidable utilization in hospitals might reduce the need for some of the hospital jobs that 
were referred to in the Proposal. 

o One of the Academic Medical Centers felt that its utilization would not decrease 
with potentially avoidable utilization, but would backfill as out of state volumes 
increased or other referrals could be served. 

o One commenter expressed concern about the need for training of Community 
Health Workers, making sure they were prepared to be in the community working 
with frail and severely ill patients.  (Note that there was a work group that recently 
produced a set of recommendations regarding Community Health Workers.)  
More design and structure would need to be in place. 

• Several commenters felt that infrastructure adjustments already provided to hospitals, or 
the additional amount that is slated for award in January 2016,  were already focused on 
similar activities and that this effort would be duplicative. 

o Proposers expressed that the infrastructure funds were already committed in 
their budgets for other purposes, and that a new source of funding is needed for 
rapid deployment of additional jobs. 



3 
 

o Commenters indicated that a Return on Investment should be expected, similar 
to the recent infrastructure increases approved by the Commission. 

•  It was also suggested that other funding sources be considered for Program 
implementation. 

o The proposers indicated that this might slow the process down, or detract from 
the level of possible implementation and impact. 

• Several commenters indicated that if the Proposal were to move forward, much more 
detailed design work needs to take place. 

o One suggestion was to ask the hospitals to organize an effort with other 
stakeholders and experts to further develop potential design criteria. 

o Another commenter indicated that the Commission staff might take this on and 
organize a work group to develop the program. 

o One commenter expressed concerns about accountability to payers, including 
the need for a return on investment. 

Letters of Support and Public Comment 

There were a number of letters of support received.  Those include letters from public officials 
and other interested parties.  These letters outline the need for jobs and support for the Proposal. 

Letters were also received from DHMH-Medicaid and CareFirst.   These letters express support 
for the need for jobs, but express concerns similar to those expressed in the payment work group 
regarding funding mechanisms and other considerations as outlined above. 

All of these letters are attached to this report. 

The Commission also heard from representatives of a community group, Baltimoreans United in 
Leadership Development (BUILD), at the October 14, 2015 Commission meeting.  They stressed 
the importance of jobs in improving the situation in Baltimore.  The representatives described 
existing programs that are making progress in employing individuals in economically deprived 
areas and the process they have used to ensure that the individuals employed through these 
programs are successful.  The Staff and Commission were very appreciative of their presentation 
and advice regarding successful approaches that could be employed to make the Program work. 

HSCRC Staff Commentary  
The Commission and its staff are very concerned about health disparities and have focused 
extensive policy development around ensuring that resources are available for enhanced 
hospital care in areas of disparities.  This includes financial policies such as disproportionate 
share adjustments that provide additional revenues to hospitals in areas of the State where 
there is a higher estimated level of poverty.  These adjustments are derived from claims data 



4 
 

and indirect medical education allowances that provide revenues to hospitals, many of which 
are located in areas of the State with economic disparities.  These policies have been applied in 
developing hospital rates for many decades.  The HSCRC staff has also been attentive in 
developing value based performance measures to consider the impact of the social 
determinants of health. In fact, the HSCRC staff has been working on an Area Deprivation Index 
to enhance measurement of socioeconomic disparities and evaluating incorporating the index 
into its policies. 

More needs to be done, however.  In spite of significant amounts of additional funding 
provided to hospitals and a significantly higher amount of overall health care dollars being 
spent in areas of high socioeconomic disparities, serious disparities in health outcomes exist in 
Baltimore City as well as in other parts of the State.  These disparities have been measured and 
documented in the State Health Improvement Plan.  Hospitals have also recognized these 
disparities in their Community Health Needs Assessments. 

The new All Payer Model recognized that a new approach is needed to address population 
health and disparities in outcomes.  The Commission has approved numerous policies aimed at 
redirecting resources to this important objective including: 

• Working with hospitals to move payment to global budgets so that when care and 
health are improved and utilization reduced, hospitals will be able to reinvest retained 
savings in interventions that are focused on improving health and outcomes.  Hospitals 
have been accorded a great deal of flexibility in spending these resources. 

• The Commission approved the funding of eight regional partnership grants focused on 
planning of patient-centered care coordination initiatives involving hospitals and 
community providers and partners.  Out of $2.5 million of funding, 40% was provided to 
Baltimore City and Prince Georges County partnerships, counties where there are high 
levels of health disparities. 

• By July 1, 2015, the Commission had placed more than $200 million of funding in rates 
earmarked for providing infrastructure and support for interventions to improve health 
and outcomes and reduce avoidable utilization.  Hospitals have completed reports on 
historic expenditures, and strategic plans are due in December.   

• In December of 2015, HSCRC will review grant applications for up to $40 million of care 
coordination initiatives that would be funded through hospital rates.  

 
Others have devoted resources as well: 
• The State of Maryland has also invested in programs focused on addressing health 

disparities in economically deprived areas such as the expansion of Medicaid and 
investments in Health Enterprise Zones. 



5 
 

• Hospitals, government agencies, and other grantors have also dedicated resources to 
individuals with disparities, including free clinics, transportation, some housing, as well 
as other interventions.  

• Public health resources in Maryland are focused on similar needs. 
• The significant Medicaid expansion which took place effective January 1, 2014, provided 

coverage for numerous individuals in areas of high deprivation, providing a source of 
health coverage that has improved the access to health care services, including 
preventive care. 

• The federal government has provided grant awards, focused in part on workforce 
training.  Several of the hospital awardees include hospitals located in Baltimore City. 
 

With its new focus on chronic conditions and high needs patients, which are more prevalent in 
populations with health and economic disparities, HSCRC and hospitals will be directing funding 
toward reducing health disparities. 

Relative to the Proposal, HSCRC staff has several concerns. 

• Staff is concerned about including traditional jobs inside of hospitals in a grant program. 
These should be funded through hospital budgets.  Furthermore, if the health care 
transformation is successful, hospital usage should decline and there is a concern that 
individuals in need of jobs might be employed in jobs that would be eliminated, thereby 
defeating the purpose of the Program. 

• Staff supports expanding hospital resources deployed for positions that support the 
transitions anticipated in the All Payer Model-- care coordination, population health, 
health, information exchange, health information technology, alignment, and consumer 
engagement.  However, staff is concerned about the funding sources and the potential 
for overlap with the additional resources that are being provided through rates as noted 
above.  Furthermore, there are hospital community benefit dollars that could potentially 
be deployed in this effort.  Grants are another potential source of funding. 

• In order to implement programs such as those described above, significant amounts of 
training and coaching would be required.  The programs require significant design and 
dedication of resources.  HSCRC staff believes that considerable development needs to 
take place to plan, develop, and execute these programs successfully, similar to the 
planning and development that have gone into nursing education programs in the past. 

• The HSCRC staff acknowledges the importance of jobs creation in areas of high 
economic deprivation, but staff is concerned about HSCRC’s role in addressing this issue. 



6 
 

HSCRC Staff Options 
Based on the commentary received to date, HSCRC staff offers several options, in no particular 
order of preference, for discussion with the Commission and for further public input. 

Option 1—Earmark 25% (approximately $10 million) of the .25% pool for competitive 
transformation implementation grant funds for hospitals committing to hire workers from 
geographic areas of high socioeconomic deprivation to fill new care coordination, population 
health, health information exchange, alignment, consumer engagement, and related positions.  
Hospitals should provide matching funds to increase the resources that could be deployed.  
Under this option, staff would anticipate proposals for the $10 million from hospitals in March 
2016, with implementation beginning by July 2016. 

Option 2—Set aside $5 million of the .25% competitive transformation implementation grant 
funds to provide one time seed money for Program implementation once design is complete 
with expectation of implementation by July 2016.  Expect hospitals to fund positions from 
infrastructure in rates, community benefits funds, return on investment, hospital resources, 
and other grant, philanthropy, and foundation support.  Under this option, staff would expect 
that program design would commence as soon as possible.  The program design group would 
decide the best ways to deploy the $5 million in seed money including program development, 
training, coaching, funding of trainers, educators, coaches, etc.  Hospitals would apply for the 
funds in March 2016, with anticipated implementation beginning by July 2016. 

Option 3—Defer funding and have Proposers continue to develop Program design, 
implementation, and evaluation parameters by March 2016, together with AHECs and other job 
training resources, with a potential for future funding of some educational resources or seed 
funding in July 2016.  Funding could potentially include program development, training, 
coaching, funding of trainers and coaches, etc.   Expect hospitals to fund positions from 
infrastructure in rates, community benefits funds, hospital resources such as return on 
investment, and other grant, philanthropy, and foundation support.  HSCRC staff would expect 
that the resources provided would not be greater than the $5 million noted in Option 2 above.    

 

Any of these options would require considerable development and structuring for success and 
accountability, and a fully developed evaluation process.  If these or other options are pursued, 
resources will be needed to develop and administer the Program. 

In summary, HSCRC staff understands the need for expansion of employment and for 
improvement in health outcomes and reductions in disparities for populations living in 
economically deprived areas of the State.   The Commission has developed policies and 



7 
 

programs and provided funding that supports reducing health disparities under the All Payer 
Model.  Staff has provided several options for discussion by the Commission regarding 
additional progress that might be made in developing employment opportunities, while 
addressing changes in hospital employment that are needed to successfully reach the goals of 
the new All Payer Model and the State Health Improvement Plan.  



A - 1



A - 2



A - 3



A - 4



A - 5



A - 6



A - 7



A - 8



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 9, 2015 
 
 
John M. Colmers 
Chairman, Health Services Cost Review Commission 
4160 Patterson Avenue 
Baltimore, MD 21215 
 
Dear Chairman Colmers: 
 
I am writing to express my strong support of the Hospital Employment Program. As Chairman of the 
House Health and Government Operations Committee, I work with committee members to shape health 
policy for our state.  As we work to meet the goals of Maryland’s All-Payer Model Agreement, we must 
look to new sources of partnership and innovation. The Hospital Employment Program aligns with the 
new All-Payer Model Agreement’s focus on population health by creating community-based jobs 
targeting overall population health.  This program utilizes our unique waiver system to improve 
economic and health outcomes for the pockets of Maryland that need stability most.  As a 
representative of Baltimore City I welcome the opportunity to support a program poised to provide 
significant support to City residents. Additionally, this targeted employment program, focused on the 
State’s most disadvantaged communities, has the potential to produce savings from improved overall 
community health.  
 
The Maryland All-Payer Model Agreement provides Maryland with the unique opportunity for 
innovation. The Hospital Employment Program is a strong example of the type of collaboration we need 
to be successful under the new agreement. I strongly support this innovative approach to population 
health.  
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
 
Peter A. Hammen 
 
 
cc:  Herbert Wong, PhD, Vice Chairman 

George H. Bone, MD 
Stephen F. Jencks, MD, MPH 
Jack C. Keane 
Donna Kinzer, Executive Director 
Bernadette Loftus, MD 
Thomas R. Mullen 

A - 9



 

 
 

A - 10



A - 11



HuKhy
P»v(>>a
Haanhy
Communities

STATE OF MARYLAND

DHMH
Maryland Department of Health and Mental Hygiene
Larry Hogan, Governor - BoydRutherford, it. Governor - Van Mitchell, Secretary

September 8, 2015

John M. Colmers

Chairman

The Health Services Cost Review Commission

4160 Patterson Avenue

Baltimore, MD 21215 /

Dear Chairman Colmei:;s)"

The Department has reviewed the Health EmploymentProgram document prepared
by the Maryland Hospital Association. In short, the proposal will build into hospital rates $40
million in additional funds to hire about 1,000 workers. The types of workers include
community health workers, Medicaid and Health Benefit Exchange enrollment assistors, peer
support specialists, as well as more traditional hospital employees, including environmental
services, dietary staff, nursing assistants, escorts, and security personnel. We are writing to
express our concern about the Health Employment Program and urge the HSCRC to conduct
a comprehensive review of the hospital proposal before moving forward.

A Mechanism Already Exists for Funding this Initiative

The HSCRC has already made infrastructure adjustments to the hospitals rates totaling
almost $200 million. These adjustments are not one-time adjustments; rather, they have been
built permanently into hospital global budgets. Hospitals will receive these infrastructure
monies every year unless the Commission takes action to end it.

The HSCRC built a 0.325 percent infrastructure adjustment into global budgets for FY 2014
and FY 2015, for a cumulative amount of roughly $100 million. Another 0.4 percent
infrastructure adjustment was built into FY 2016 rates, and the hospitals have the potential to
receive another 0.25 percent adjustment starting January 1, 2016. The additional 0.25
percent will be competitive, meaning that a hospital's ability to receive the additional 0.25
percent will depend on the quality of the hospital proposal or plan submitted on December 1,
2015. Nothing precludes the hospitals from submitting a proposal that includes a Health
EmploymentProgram. The estimated impact on the FY 2016 infrastructureadjustment is
$100 million, meaning that in FY 2016 and every year thereafter, hospitals will receive $200
million in additional infrastructure monies.

Costs Will Not Be Offset Without Return on Investment from Hospital Global Budgets

We disagree that the savings will be largely offset from fewer people utilizing public
programs such as Medicaid. Under federal eligibility requirements, and depending a number

201 W. Preston Street - Baltimore, Maryland 21201
Toll Free l-877-4MD-DHMH-TTY/Maryland Relay Service 1-800-735-2258

Web Site: www.dhmh.maryland.gov



HSCRC| Health Employment Program
September 8, 2015
Page 2

of factors, including the income, cost of other coverage offered and household size of the
individuals participating, they or their family members could remain eligible for Medicaid.

Additionally, during our Community HealthWorkers workgroup sessions, manyparticipants
questioned whether additional Community Health Workers would have the opposite effect on
the Medicaid budget—that is, create more opportunities to enroll individuals on
Medicaid. In the past, the Department has seen the utilization of CommunityHealth Workers
as a way to better coordinate care for our high cost populations more effectively. We
believe, notwithstanding the potential outreach impact that additional Community Health
Workers could result in additional savings to the overall program. A largecomponent of
those savings would come from hospital services. The proposal does not mention any of
these savings beingpassedonto payers through a reduction in fiiture hospital global budget
revenues. Without a formula in place for payers to realize a return on investment accrued by
the savings achieved by hospitals, there will be no offsetting of costs.

Applicants for the competitive 0.25 infrastructure rate increase are required to submit a
calculation for the expected return on investmentfor their proposed interventions; should a
separate Hospital Employment Program be created, it is the Department's position that a
similar costing exercise should be produced.

Proposal Lacks Accountability to the Pavers

The proposal outlines that hospitals receiving monies through the Health Employment
Program will be required to submit biannual reports to HSCRC detailing the incremental
employees hired and the costs associated with these hires. The proposal does not include a
process where payers can provide feedback and recommendations on the new positions or the
program in general. Medicaid pays for roughly 20 percent of hospital charges in
Maryland. In other words, Medicaid will pay roughly $8 million of the $40 million proposal
annually. The Department wants to ensure that an equal portion of any monies is devoted to
employees who benefit the Medicaid population. The current proposal lacks this feedback
mechanism or any measures to evaluate the program's impact.

The Department looks forward to working with the HSCRC on his important
initiative. Please contact Shannon McMahon, Deputy Secretary of Health Care Financing at
410-767-5807 should you have any questions.

Sincerely,

/ Van T. Mitchell

{^Secretary















 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 13, 2015 
 
John M. Colmers,  
Chair 
Health Services Cost Review Commission  
 4160 Patterson Avenue 
Baltimore, Maryland 21215 
 
Re: Hospital Job Opportunity Proposal 
 
Dear Mr. Colmers: 
 
The League of Life and Health Insurers of Maryland, Inc. (the League) is the trade association 
representing carriers who write life and health insurance in Maryland.   Through our various 
membership categories, we work with every carrier writing major medical health insurance in this 
State.  The League has had an opportunity to review the Health Employment Program proposal 
put forward by the Maryland Hospital Association and under consideration by the HSCRC. While 
we appreciate the effort to identify creative ways to address the daunting issue of poverty and 
unemployment in Baltimore and other areas of the State, especially as it relates to disadvantaged 
youth, for the reasons articulated below, we must oppose this program and urge the Commission 
to decline the request to support it through an increase in hospital rates. 
 

 
Hospitals Have the Ability to Pay for the Program out of Existing Revenue Budgets 

Two years into the implementation of the new waiver, hospitals are making record profits on 
regulated business – 5.86% for FY2015, up from 4.28% in FY2014.   In fact, there are only five 
hospitals in the state that failed to realize a profit during that time period. In addition and more 
significantly, the HSCRC has already made infrastructure adjustments to the hospitals’ rates 
totaling almost $200 million. These are not one-time adjustments; rather, they have been built 
permanently into hospital global budgets. That means unless the Commission takes action, 
hospitals will receive this money year after year.  As a result, a portion of these funds could - and 
should- adequately fund this proposed program without the need for an additional increase. 
 

 

Cost of E mployment Programs for Hospital Wor kers S hould Not b e Born by Consumers 
and Businesses 

Every additional increase to hospital rates has a direct impact on premiums paid by individuals, 
and employers - small and large, insured and self funded - in the State of Maryland.  This 
proposal comes at a time of increased concern for rising insurance premiums, stringent Medical 
Loss Ratio requirements which must be met by carriers and a need to see a reduction of overall 
healthcare costs.   At a time when all stakeholders in the health care community are working to 

The  
League 
of 
Life and 
Health  
Insurers 
of 
Maryland 
 
200 Duke of Gloucester Street 
Annapolis, Maryland 21401 
410-269-1554 
 
 



identify ways to reduce costs to the system, this program achieves the opposite effect, adding yet 
another layer of expense to premiums that have already experienced significant increases on 
average over the past several years.   
 

 

Using the Rate Setting System to Cover the Costs of an Employment Program Goes Beyond 
the Purposes of the Rate-Setting System 

While there have been instances in the past where “employment” programs have been funded 
through hospital rates, those initiatives were on a much smaller scale with a purpose that more 
closely aligned with health care and the provision of clinical services. For example, the nursing 
support programs were created in response to a real, near crisis in the form of a nursing shortage. 
In addition, the average cost provided through rates to fund these nurse support programs was far 
less than $40 million annually – averaging closer to $10 million on an annual basis. While one 
can argue that community health workers may extend the ability of the hospitals to provide care 
to the community, the current proposal envisions hiring positions that go well beyond community 
health workers, to include general facility support such as janitors and security guards. All 
hospital related expenses necessary to satisfy current hospital service area populations are already 
currently funded in hospital rates. 
 
The League supports the concept of this initiative which is intended to improve community health 
while addressing longstanding economic issues; however, as noted above, we cannot support the 
proposed funding arrangements which would increase hospital rates an additional $40 million to 
address issues that go beyond the scope of the all-payer system.   Funding of jobs necessary to 
conduct hospital operations should be covered within the hospitals’ current rate base.  Any 
additional jobs should have a direct impact on a hospital’s ability to improve population health 
and lower utilization of hospital services, all of which will improve hospitals’ global budget 
savings.   
 
For these reasons, we strongly urge the Commission to vote against any hospital rate increase to 
support this program.   
 
Very truly yours,  
 

 
 
Kimberly Y. Robinson, Esq, 
Executive Director 
 
Cc: Donna Kinzer, Executive Director, Health Services Cost Review Commission  
 









Performance Measurement Workgroup Update

HSCRC Commission Meeting 11/18/2015



2

Reviewed Guiding Principles For Performance-Based 
Payment Programs

 Program must improve care for all patients, regardless of payer

 Program incentives should support achievement of all payer model 
targets

 Program should prioritize high volume, high cost, opportunity for 
improvement and areas of national focus 

 Predetermined performance targets and financial impact 

 Hospital ability to track progress 

 Encourage cooperation and sharing of best practices

 Consider all settings of care



3

RY2018 Readmission Reduction Incentive Program 
Update Considerations
 Measure updates (e.g., planned admissions definitions, transfer logic)
 Medicare versus all payer rates
 Consideration of non-Maryland peer group rates
 Improvement target
 Payment adjustment structure and amounts
 Adjustments/protections based on socio-economic and other factors
 Draft recommendation in January 2016 and Final in February 2016



4

RY2018 MHAC Update Considerations
 Analysis of statistical validity and reliability and small hospital, small cell size 

issues
 Evaluation of PPC tier groups
 Setting the statewide target
 Maximum at risk determination
 Monitoring of ICD-10 Impact
 Draft recommendation in December 2015 and final in January 2016



5

Potentially Avoidable Utilization Measure
 Expanding the definition to other areas (9 Months)
 Nursing home admissions
 High risk patient utilization
 Sepsis admissions
 Avoidable Emergency Department Visits

 Risk adjusted measure of PAUs (18 months)



6

Measurement of Total Cost of Care (need all payer claims)
Risk Adjustment
Demographics (Age, Sex, Social/economic factors)
Risk Adjustment Methodology 

Denominator
Virtual Patient Service Area 

Out of State Utilization Adjustment
Benchmarks 
Timelines
 Per Case measure revisions (next 3 months)
 Per Capita Hospital Cost (next 9 months)
 Per Capita Total Cost (next 18 months)

Efficiency Measure Considerations



7

Prioritization
Leverage IT tools and measures
Use existing data and measures if possible

Care coordination 
Measures must be developed/adopted
Consider measures that are important to patients (functional status, quality of life)

Condition-specific bundles
Target high cost, common procedures
Cut across measurement domains and settings of care
Consider “value”

Key Strategic Considerations 



1 
 

  

 
 

Disclosure of Hospital Financial and 
Statistical Data: Fiscal Year 2014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Heath Services Cost Review Commission 
4160 Patterson Avenue 

Baltimore, Maryland  21215 
(410) 764-2605    
November 2015 

  



 

2 
 

Executive Summary 

The Maryland Health Services Cost Review Commission (HSCRC) has completed the 

annual hospital financial disclosure report for fiscal year (FY) 2014.   

 FY 2014 was a year of significant change for Maryland’s hospital industry. Under the 

terms of a long-standing agreement with the federal government, Maryland sought to constrain 

the growth in the charge per case for Medicare inpatient hospital stays. Effective January 1, 

2014, the State entered into a new agreement with the federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 

Services (CMS). Under the new All-Payer Model, the State’s focus shifted from controlling the 

charge per case for Medicare inpatient hospital stays to controlling per capita hospital revenue 

growth (combined inpatient and outpatient hospital costs) for all payers. The new Model will 

assess whether Maryland’s all-payer system for hospital payments is a successful model for 

achieving the three-part aim of: 

• Lower costs 

• Better patient experience 

• Improved health 

 Since FY 2014 straddles the January 2014 implementation date for the new waiver, this 

report focuses on performance on the new Model’s financial and quality metrics, as well as 

traditional measures of hospital financial health.   

 This new report shows that for Maryland acute hospitals in FY 2014: 

1) Gross all-payer per capita hospital revenues from services provided to Maryland 

residents grew 1.60 percent, slower than the per capita growth in the Maryland 

economy of about 2 percent in FY 2014.   

2) Medicare fee-for-service hospital charges per Maryland Medicare beneficiary 

dropped 0.86 percent. Under the new waiver agreement with the federal 

government, Maryland must generate savings for Medicare by holding the growth 

in Medicare fee-for-service hospital payments below the national growth rate 



 

3 
 

during the five-year period of the waiver (calendar year [CY] 2014 through CY 

2018). National data are not available for FY 2014, but CY 2014 data indicate that 

Maryland costs grew about two percentage points slower than the nation. 

3) Profits on regulated activities increased in FY 2014, from $677 million (or 5.3 

percent of regulated net operating revenue) in FY 2013 to $950 million (or 7.4 

percent of regulated net operating revenue). 

4) Profits on operations (which include profits and losses from regulated and 

unregulated day-to-day activities) increased from $164 million (or 1.2 percent of 

total net operating revenue) in FY 2013 to $424 million in FY 2014 (or 3.0 

percent of total net operating revenue). 

5) Total excess profits (which include profits and losses from regulated and 

unregulated operating and non-operating activities) increased substantially from 

$549 million in FY 2013 (or 3.8 percent of the total revenue) to $901 million in 

FY 2014 (or 6.1 percent of the total revenue). 

6) Total regulated net patient revenue rose slightly from $12.5 billion in FY 2013 to 

$12.7 billion in FY 2014, an increase of 1.8 percent. If two hospitals that reported 

only 6 months of data in FY 2014 due to the conversion from a December 31 

fiscal year end to a June 30 fiscal year end are removed from the calculation, then 

regulated net patient revenue grew from $12.2 billion in FY 2013 to $12.5 billion 

in FY 2014, an increase of 3.0 percent. 

7) In 2014, Maryland hospitals incurred $1.0 billion in uncompensated care, 

approximately seven cents of uncompensated care cost for every dollar of gross 

patient revenue;.   

8) Gross regulated revenue associated with potentially preventable complications 

(PPCs) occurring during a hospital admission declined from $391 million in FY 

2013 to $292 million in FY 2014, a decrease of 25 percent. The gross regulated 

revenues from readmissions fell from $1.306 billion in FY 2013 to $1.285 billion 

in FY 2014. This decline in revenue reflects improvement in the quality of care 



 

4 
 

delivered in Maryland hospitals, where readmissions rates declined faster than the 

national levels for Medicare. 

The HSCRC, the country’s pioneer hospital rate review agency, was established by the Maryland 

General Assembly in 1971 to regulate rates for all those who purchase hospital care. It is an 

independent Commission functioning within the Maryland Department of Health and Mental 

Hygiene. It consists of seven members who are appointed by the Governor. The HSCRC’s rate 

review authority includes assuring the public that: (a) a hospital's total costs are reasonable; (b) a 

hospital's aggregate rates are reasonably related to its aggregate costs; and (c) rates are set 

equitably among all purchasers of care without undue discrimination or preference. 



5 
 

Introduction 

 Effective January 1, 2014, Maryland entered into a new hospital All-Payer Model with 

the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS). Under the new Model, the State’s focus 

shifted from controlling the charge per case for a hospital stay to controlling the per capita total 

hospital cost growth. The new Model will assess whether Maryland’s all-payer system for 

hospital payments, which is now accountable for the total hospital cost of care on a per capita 

basis, is a successful model for achieving the three-part aim of: 

• Lower costs 

• Better patient experience 

• Improved health 

 

 To facilitate these goals, every acute care hospital in Maryland agreed to a global budget. 

Global budgets remove the incentives for hospitals to grow volumes and instead focus hospitals 

on reducing potentially avoidable utilization (PAU), improving population health, and improving 

outcomes for patients. Maryland’s performance under the waiver is measured by: 

• The growth in gross per capita all-payer hospital revenues since calendar year (CY) 2013. 

Maryland has committed to holding the average annual growth rate over the five-year life 

of the Model to 3.58 percent.   

• Generating savings for Medicare by holding the growth in Maryland Medicare fee-for-

service hospital payments per beneficiary below the national Medicare per beneficiary 

fee-for-service growth rate. Maryland has committed to saving Medicare $330 million 

over five years by beating the national per capita hospital growth rate.  

• Reducing potentially preventable complications (PPCs) by an aggregate of 30 percent 

over the five-year life of the Model. 

• Reducing Maryland’s Medicare readmission rate to the national average by the final year 

of the five-year Model.   



 

6 
 

 Since fiscal year (FY) 2014 straddles the January 2014 implementation date for the new 

waiver, this report focuses on performance on the new Model’s financial and quality metrics, as 

well as traditional measures of hospital financial health. FY 2014 also marks a transition year for 

two hospitals (University of Maryland Upper Chesapeake and University of Maryland Harford 

Memorial) that changed from a December 31 fiscal year end to a June 30 fiscal year end. This 

transition results in those hospitals reporting 12 months of data for FY 2013 and 6 months for FY 

2014. Unless noted in the text, all summary data referenced in the text include the FY 2013 and 

FY 2014 audited data submitted by these two hospitals. Statewide summary data are presented 

with and without the two hospitals in the tables on pages 1 and 1a of the data section of this 

report. 

In contrast to prior disclosure reports, this report includes hospital level data on revenues 

associated with readmissions and other forms of potentially avoidable utilization (PAU).  

Readmission and PAU charges provides a financial indicator of opportunity for improvements in 

selected areas if we successfully transform health care for the benefit of the consumers.  

Reducing charges for PAU and readmissions will also free hospital resources for additional 

investments in health care transformation.     

 Despite implementing the new waiver agreement halfway into FY 2014, Maryland’s 

performance on many of the new waiver metrics was favorable: 

• All-payer per capita hospital revenues grew 1.60 percent, which is below both the per 

capita growth of the Maryland economy in both CY 2013 and CY 2014 and well below 

the 3.58 percent annual growth gap contained in the waiver agreement. 

• Medicare fee-for-service hospital charges per Maryland Medicare beneficiary dropped 

0.86 percent. National data are not available for FY 2014, but CY 2014 data indicate that 

Maryland costs grew about two percentage points slower than the nation.   

• Gross regulated revenue associated with PPCs occurring during a hospital admission 

declined from $391 million in FY 2013 to $292 million in FY 2014, a decrease of 25 

percent. This decline reflects improvement in the quality of care delivered in Maryland 



 

7 
 

hospitals. Gross regulated revenues from readmissions also dropped, falling from $1.306 

billion in FY 2013 to $1.285 billion in FY 2014.   

• Spending on PAU also dropped, falling from $2.253 billion in FY 2013 to $2.184 billion 

in FY 2014, a decrease of 3 percent. 

Data on the collective financial performance of Maryland hospitals are summarized below. 

• Gross regulated revenue growth. Gross patient revenue on regulated services increased 

1.7 percent from $15.3 billion in FY 2013 to $15.5 billion in FY 2014.  

• Net regulated patient revenue. Total regulated net patient revenue rose slightly from 

$12.5 billion in FY 2013 to $12.7 billion in FY 2014, an increase of 1.8 percent. 

• Profits on regulated activities. Profits on regulated activities increased in FY 2014, from 

$677 million (5.3 percent of regulated net operating revenue) in FY 2013 to $950 million 

(7.4 percent of regulated net operating revenue). 

• Profits on operations. Profits on operations (which include profits and losses from 

regulated and unregulated day-to-day activities) increased from $164 million (or 1.2 

percent of total net operating revenue) in FY 2013 to $424 million in FY 2014 (or 3.0 

percent of total net operating revenue). 

• Total excess profit. Total excess profits (which include profits and losses from regulated 

and unregulated operating and non-operating activities) increased substantially from $549 

million in FY 2013 (or 3.8 percent of the total revenue) to $901 million in FY 2014 (or 

6.1 percent of the total revenue). 

In Maryland alone, uncompensated care is financed by all payers, including Medicare and 

Medicaid, as the payment system builds the predicted cost of uncompensated care into the rates, 

and all payers pay the same rates for hospital care. Because the rates cover predicted 

uncompensated care amounts, hospitals have no reason to discourage patients who are likely to 

be without insurance. Thus, Maryland continues to be the only State in the nation that assures its 

citizens that they can receive care at any hospital, regardless of their ability to pay. As a result, 



 

8 
 

there are no charity hospitals in Maryland; patients who are unable to pay are not transferred into 

hospitals of last resort. Because the actual uncompensated care is not reimbursed by the system, 

hospitals have incentives to pursue compensation from patients who generate uncompensated 

care expenses.  

Additionally, the mark-up in Maryland hospitals—the difference between hospital costs and 

what hospitals ultimately charge patients—remained the lowest in the nation.  The average mark 

up for hospitals nationally is more than 4.5 times that of Maryland Hospitals, according to the 

most recent data from the American Hospital Association (AHA). In the absence of rate setting, 

non-Maryland hospitals must artificially mark up their charges in order to cover shortfalls due to 

uncompensated care, discounts to large health plans and low payments from Medicare and 

Medicaid. 

Contents of Report 

Under its mandate to publicly disclose information about the financial operations of all 

hospitals, the Maryland Health Services Cost Review Commission (HSCRC) has prepared 

comparative financial information from the respective hospitals. 

Gross Patient Revenue, Net Patient Revenue, Other Operating Revenue, Net Operating 

Revenue, Percentage of Uncollectible Accounts, Total Operating Costs, Operating Profit/Loss, 

Non-Operating Revenue and Expense, and Excess Profit/Loss, as itemized in this report, were 

derived from the Annual Report of Revenue, Expenses, and Volumes (Annual Report) submitted 

to the HSCRC. The Annual Report is reconciled with the audited financial statements of the 

respective institutions.   

This year’s Disclosure Statement also includes the following three Exhibits: 

• Exhibit I - Change in Uncompensated Care (Regulated Operations) 

• Exhibit II - Change in Total Operating Profit/Loss (Regulated and Unregulated          

Operations) 

• Exhibit III – Total Excess Profit/Loss (Operating and Non-Operating Activities) 

 



 

9 
 

The following explanations are submitted in order to facilitate the reader’s understanding of this 

report:  

Gross Patient Revenue refers to all regulated and unregulated patient care revenue and 

should be accounted for at established rates, regardless of whether the hospital expects to collect 

the full amount. Such revenues should also be reported on an accrual basis in the period during 

which the service is provided; other accounting methods, such as the discharge method, are not 

acceptable. For historical consistency, uncollectible accounts (bad debts) and charity care are 

included in gross patient revenue. 

Net Patient Revenue means all regulated and unregulated patient care revenue realized by 

the hospital. Net patient revenue is arrived at by reducing gross patient revenue by contractual 

allowances, charity care, bad debts, and payer denials. Such revenues should be reported on an 

accrual basis in the period in which the service is provided.  

Other Operating Revenue includes regulated and unregulated revenue associated with 

normal day-to-day operations from services other than health care provided to patients. These 

include sales and services to non-patients and revenue from miscellaneous sources, such as rental 

of hospital space, sale of cafeteria meals, gift shop sales, research, and Part B physician services. 

Such revenue is common in the regular operations of a hospital but should be accounted for 

separately from regulated patient revenue. 

Net Operating Revenue is the total of net patient revenue and other operating revenue. 

Uncompensated Care is composed of charity and bad debts. This is the percentage 

difference between billings at established rates and the amount collected from charity patients 

and patients who pay less than their total bill, if at all. For historical consistency, uncollectible 

accounts are treated as a reduction in revenue.   

Total Operating Expenses equal the costs of HSCRC regulated and unregulated inpatient 

and outpatient care, plus costs associated with Other Operating Revenue. Operating expenses are 

presented in this report in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles with the 



 

10 
 

exception of bad debts. For historical consistency, bad debts are treated as a reduction in gross 

patient revenue.  

Operating Profit/Loss is the profit or loss from ordinary, normal recurring regulated and 

unregulated operations of the entity during the period. Operating Profit/Loss also includes 

restricted donations for specific operating purposes if such funds were expended for the purpose 

intended by the donor during the fiscal year being reported upon. 

Non-Operating Profit/Loss includes investment income, extraordinary gains, and other 

non-operating gains and losses. 

Excess Profit/Loss represents the bottom line figure from the Audited Financial 

Statement of the institution. It is the total of the Operating Profit/Loss and Non-Operating 

Profit/Loss. (Provisions for income tax are excluded from the calculation of profit or loss for 

proprietary hospitals.) 

Potentially Avoidable Utilization (PAU) is the general classification of hospital care that 

is unplanned and can be prevented through improved care, care coordination, effective 

community based care, or care cost increases that result from a PPC occurring in a hospital. The 

HSCRC intends to continue to refine the measurement of PAU. Currently, the following 

measures are included as PAU cost measures:  

• 30-day, all-cause, all-hospital inpatient readmissions, excluding planned 

readmissions, based on similar specifications for Maryland Readmission Reduction 

Incentive Program but applied to all inpatient discharges and observation stays 

greater than 23 hours.  

• Prevention quality indicators (PQI) as defined by the Agency for Healthcare Research 

and Quality (AHRQ) applied to all inpatient discharges and observation stays greater 

than 23 hours. The PQIs included are the 12 acute and chronic PQIs included in the 

PQI-90 Composite measure and PQI 02 (Perforated Appendix).  It does not include 

PQI 09 (low birth weight).  



 

11 
 

• 65 PPCs calculated under the Maryland Hospital Acquired Conditions Program and 

estimated average cost of PPCs.   

Readmissions refer to the methodology for the readmission incentive program that 

measures performance using the 30-day all-payer all-hospital (both intra- and inter-hospital) 

readmission rate with adjustments for patient severity (based on discharge APR-DRG Severity of 

Illness) and planned admissions.   

Potentially Preventable Complications (PPCs) consist of a list of 65 measures developed 

by 3M. PPCs are defined as harmful events (e.g., an accidental laceration during a procedure) or 

negative outcomes (e.g., hospital-acquired pneumonia) that may result from the process of care 

and treatment rather than from a natural progression of underlying disease. The conditions are 

excluded if present on admission (POA) indicators show that the patient arrived at the hospital 

with the condition. Hospital payment is linked to hospital performance by comparing the 

observed number of PPCs to the expected number of PPCs. 

Financial information contained in this report provides only an overview of the total 

financial status of the institutions. Additional information concerning the hospitals, in the form 

of Audited Financial Statements and reports filed pursuant to the regulations of the HSCRC, is 

available at the HSCRC’s offices for public inspection between the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 4:30 

p.m. and in PDF under Financial Data Reports/Financial Disclosure on the HSCRC website at 

http://www.hscrc.state.md.us. 

 
 Notes to the Financial and Statistical Data 

1.  Admissions include infants transferred to Neo-Natal Intensive Care units in the hospital 

in which they were born.  

2. Revenues and expenses applicable to physician Part B professional services are only 

included in regulated hospital data in hospitals that had HSCRC-approved physician rates 

on June 30, 1985, and that have not subsequently requested that those rates be abolished 

so that the physicians may bill fee-for-service.  



 

12 
 

3. The Specialty Hospitals in this report are: Adventist Behavioral Health Care-Rockville, 

Adventist Rehabilitation Hospital of Maryland, Brook Lane Health Services, Adventist 

Behavioral Health-Eastern Shore, Levindale Hospital, Mt. Washington Pediatric 

Hospital, Sheppard Pratt Hospital, St. Luke Institute, and University Specialty Hospital. 

4.  In accordance with Health-General Article, Section 19-3A-07, three free-standing 

medical facilities—Queen Anne’s Freestanding Medical Center, Germantown Emergency 

Center, and Bowie Health Center—fall under the rate-setting jurisdiction of the HSCRC. 

The HSCRC sets rates for all payers for emergency services provided at Queen Anne’s 

Freestanding Medical Center effective October 1, 2010, and at Germantown Emergency 

Center and Bowie Health Center effective July 1, 2011.  

5.      University Specialty Hospital ceased operations effective August 1, 2012. 

6. St. Luke Institute’s license was changed from a specialty hospital to a residential 

treatment center and is no longer under the jurisdiction of the HSCRC. 

7. Effective July 1, 2013, data associated with the University of Maryland Cancer Center 

was combined with that of the University of Maryland Medical Center. 

8. Effective January 1, 2014, Levindale Hospital was designated by CMS as an acute care 

hospital, rather than a specialty hospital.



13 
 

HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 1 

       ======================================================================================================= 

         All Acute Hospitals 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 20141           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                      15,518,095,671      15,264,777,897      14,871,078,832 

              Unregulated Services                     1,768,896,735       1,711,246,172       1,633,601,230 

              TOTAL                                   17,286,992,406      16,976,024,068      16,504,680,062 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                      12,728,114,584      12,507,457,797      12,275,982,668 

              Unregulated Services                       800,936,290         784,503,042         791,489,147 

              TOTAL                                   13,529,050,874      13,291,960,839      13,067,471,815 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         194,058,722         214,234,890         153,760,532 

              Unregulated Services                       470,074,651         447,891,664         401,398,299 

              TOTAL                                      664,133,374         662,126,554         555,158,830 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                      12,922,173,306      12,721,692,687      12,429,743,200 

              Unregulated Services                     1,271,010,942       1,232,394,706       1,192,887,446 

              Total                                   14,193,184,248      13,954,087,393      13,622,630,646 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                      11,971,929,258      12,044,797,691      11,649,000,119 

              Total                                   13,768,978,002      13,790,417,381      13,308,115,226 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                         950,244,066         676,894,996         780,743,081 

              Unregulated Services                      -526,037,747        -513,224,985        -466,227,662 

              Total                                      424,206,319         163,670,011         314,515,420 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):              476,672,214         379,251,306         -84,897,304 

              Non-Operating Revenue                      494,572,512         393,729,556          81,100,427 

              Non-Operating Expenses                      17,900,298          14,478,250         165,997,731 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                     900,878,596         549,062,753         229,618,116 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:               580,552             616,184             638,274 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                4,946,138           4,832,757           4,898,998 

 

          

Readmission Charges:                           1,305,914,959       1,284,930,707 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    13.74%              13.52%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs   292,048,845         391,921,691 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.03                1.36 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:       2,183,817,837       2,253,490,330 

 

 

 

                                                 
1 The totals for FY 2014 include 12 months for Levindale (now designated as an acute care hospital by CMS) and six (6) months for UM 
Harford Memorial and UM Upper Chesapeake, to accommodate changing from a December 31 fiscal year end to June 30 fiscal year end. 



 

14 
 

HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 1a 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         All Acute Hospitals 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 20142           June 20133           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                      15,306,904,471      14,871,277,796      14,871,078,832 

              Unregulated Services                     1,768,718,935       1,710,888,872       1,633,601,230 

              TOTAL                                   17,075,623,406      16,582,166,668      16,504,680,062 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                      12,544,666,384      12,185,162,458      12,275,982,668 

              Unregulated Services                       800,806,690         784,320,742         791,489,147 

              TOTAL                                   13,345,473,074      12,969,483,200      13,067,471,815 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         192,065,322         208,843,890         153,760,532 

              Unregulated Services                       468,623,952         444,769,664         401,398,299 

              TOTAL                                      660,689,275         653,613,554         555,158,831 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                      12,736,731,706      12,394,006,348      12,429,743,200 

              Unregulated Services                     1,269,430,643       1,229,090,406       1,192,887,446 

              Total                                   14,006,162,349      13,623,096,754      13,622,630,646 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                      11,816,338,858      11,747,619,679      33,649,000,119 

              Total                                   13,606,104,402      13,481,889,082      35,308,115,226 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                         920,392,866         646,386,669         780,743,081 

              Unregulated Services                      -520,334,847        -505,178,997        -466,227,662 

              Total                                      400,058,019         141,207,672         314,515,419 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):              474,569,414         367,789,306         -84,897,304 

              Non-Operating Revenue                      492,469,712         382,267,556          81,100,427 

              Non-Operating Expenses                      17,900,298          14,478,250         165,997,731 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                     874,627,496         515,138,414         229,618,116 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:               572,261             598,868             638,274 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                4,834,439           4,655,068           4,898,998 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                 
2 The six (6) months from UM Harford Memorial and UM Upper Chesapeake have been removed from the FY 2014 totals for comparison 
purposes. 
3 The twelve (12) months of Harford Memorial and Upper Chesapeake have been removed from the FY 2013 totals for comparison. 



 

15 
 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 2 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Anne Arundel Medical Center 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         554,132,400         541,867,800         523,717,000 

              Unregulated Services                         6,868,600           8,377,200          11,747,200 

              TOTAL                                      561,001,000         550,245,000         535,464,200 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         451,481,300         444,013,900         435,998,560 

              Unregulated Services                         6,553,400           7,464,500           8,958,100 

              TOTAL                                      458,034,700         451,478,400         444,956,660 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           7,047,500           8,188,700           8,841,100 

              Unregulated Services                        18,947,490          17,847,500          16,847,655 

              TOTAL                                       25,994,990          26,036,200          25,688,755 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         458,528,800         452,202,600         444,839,660 

              Unregulated Services                        25,500,890          25,312,000          25,805,755 

              Total                                      484,029,690         477,514,600         470,645,415 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         433,202,797         436,200,149         421,842,523 

              Total                                      471,917,600         476,400,000         461,597,285 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          25,326,003          16,002,451          22,997,137 

              Unregulated Services                       -13,213,903         -14,887,851         -13,949,007 

              Total                                       12,112,100           1,114,600           9,048,130 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):               27,091,100          44,226,600         -41,045,021 

              Non-Operating Revenue                       27,091,100          44,226,600         -41,045,021 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      39,203,200          45,341,200         -31,996,892 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                26,816              28,142              28,014 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  185,132             180,461             172,099 

 

 

 Readmission Charges:                              29,937,886          32,221,736 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.80%              12.68%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     9,612,798          10,811,675 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.04                1.16 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          58,578,209          63,462,083 

 

 

 

 



 

16 
 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 3 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Atlantic General Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         102,693,200          99,487,100          95,474,200 

              Unregulated Services                        25,414,008          20,124,652          16,165,328 

              TOTAL                                      128,107,208         119,611,752         111,639,528 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                          83,845,400          81,125,900          77,261,700 

              Unregulated Services                        13,780,408          11,081,452           9,419,228 

              TOTAL                                       97,625,808          92,207,352          86,680,928 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           1,310,947           1,917,695             203,836 

              Unregulated Services                         1,213,122           1,324,606             841,017 

              TOTAL                                        2,524,069           3,242,301           1,044,853 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                          85,156,347          83,043,595          77,465,536 

              Unregulated Services                        14,993,530          12,406,058          10,260,245 

              Total                                      100,149,877          95,449,653          87,725,781 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                          76,554,862          73,821,246          69,630,609 

              Total                                      101,635,006          94,222,926          87,169,172 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                           8,601,500           9,222,349           7,834,927 

              Unregulated Services                       -10,086,613          -7,995,621          -7,278,318 

              Total                                       -1,485,113           1,226,727             556,609 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                2,461,360           1,499,225             899,431 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        2,461,360           1,499,225             899,431 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                         976,248           2,725,952           1,456,040 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 3,342               3,086               3,054 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   57,024              57,507              57,546 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                               6,536,496           6,803,892 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.85%              12.50%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     1,168,922           1,018,245 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.03                0.87 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          13,229,885          13,145,463 

  



 

17 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 4 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Bon Secours Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            August 2014         June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         129,714,300         121,044,100         130,651,800 

              Unregulated Services                        26,341,350          27,611,031          29,355,513 

              TOTAL                                      156,055,650         148,655,131         160,007,313 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                          99,985,454          95,981,563         105,446,308 

              Unregulated Services                        15,078,939          14,547,696          15,297,999 

              TOTAL                                      115,064,392         110,529,259         120,744,306 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           1,585,024            -187,258            -311,199 

              Unregulated Services                         4,245,338           3,163,706           3,352,382 

              TOTAL                                        5,830,362           2,976,447           3,041,184 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         101,570,478          95,794,305         105,135,109 

              Unregulated Services                        19,324,277          17,711,401          18,650,381 

              Total                                      120,894,754         113,505,706         123,785,490 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                          85,614,206          93,233,875          90,614,221 

              Total                                      118,891,000         124,525,202         122,564,724 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          15,956,273           2,560,429          14,520,888 

              Unregulated Services                       -13,952,517         -13,579,925         -13,300,123 

              Total                                        2,003,755         -11,019,496           1,220,765 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                1,565,750           1,392,305             383,037 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        1,565,750           1,435,493             387,108 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0              43,188               4,072 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       3,569,505          -9,627,191           1,603,802 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 4,660               5,894               6,579 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   37,681              41,340              40,473 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              25,891,416          23,402,406 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    19.35%              19.32%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     1,457,874           2,774,845 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.69                1.35 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          36,187,844          34,240,166 

 

  



 

18 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 5 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Bowie Emergency Center 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                          16,513,400          13,677,900          11,999,900 

              Unregulated Services                         9,852,802          16,278,037          18,286,174 

              TOTAL                                       26,366,202          29,955,937          30,286,074 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                          12,399,706           9,812,164           8,676,283 

              Unregulated Services                         4,648,934           5,639,207           7,121,389 

              TOTAL                                       17,048,641          15,451,371          15,797,672 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                                 867               7,168              13,057 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0                   0 

              TOTAL                                              867               7,168              13,057 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                          12,400,574           9,819,332           8,689,340 

              Unregulated Services                         4,648,934           5,639,207           7,121,389 

              Total                                       17,049,508          15,458,539          15,810,729 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                          10,457,177          10,764,397           9,256,547 

              Total                                       15,071,710          16,611,645          16,353,968 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                           1,943,397            -945,065            -567,207 

              Unregulated Services                            34,401            -208,041              23,968 

              Total                                        1,977,798          -1,153,106            -543,239 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                        0                   0                   0 

              Non-Operating Revenue                                0                   0                   0 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       1,977,798          -1,153,106            -543,239 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                     0                   0                   0 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   35,566              36,040              35,932 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

19 
 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 6 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Calvert Memorial Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         141,935,300         138,862,900         135,740,500 

              Unregulated Services                        10,240,860           9,162,932          17,105,738 

              TOTAL                                      152,176,160         148,025,832         152,846,238 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         117,478,592         116,275,170         112,025,692 

              Unregulated Services                         4,675,516           4,562,155          13,276,082 

              TOTAL                                      122,154,108         120,837,325         125,301,775 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           5,148,688           4,305,853           3,698,312 

              Unregulated Services                           952,342             663,940           1,480,473 

              TOTAL                                        6,101,030           4,969,793           5,178,786 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         122,627,280         120,581,023         115,724,005 

              Unregulated Services                         5,627,858           5,226,095          14,756,556 

              Total                                      128,255,139         125,807,118         130,480,560 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         105,829,305         106,039,515         105,451,118 

              Total                                      119,797,306         118,896,903         130,770,372 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          16,797,976          14,541,508          10,272,886 

              Unregulated Services                        -8,340,143          -7,631,293         -10,562,698 

              Total                                        8,457,833           6,910,215            -289,812 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):               -1,655,105               6,414           3,063,317 

              Non-Operating Revenue                          514,608             504,618           3,063,317 

              Non-Operating Expenses                       2,169,713             498,204                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       6,802,728           6,916,629           2,773,506 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 5,756               6,835               7,405 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   65,430              30,762              67,610 

        

 

 Readmission Charges:                               6,912,639           7,732,586 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                     9.27%              10.37%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     1,238,388           2,462,748 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.87                1.33 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          16,559,469          18,957,422 

  



 

20 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 7 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Carroll County General Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         251,985,400         249,075,200         243,424,400 

              Unregulated Services                        74,612,637          77,746,543          74,684,611 

              TOTAL                                      326,598,037         326,821,743         318,109,011 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         211,421,290         208,787,942         203,507,315 

              Unregulated Services                        33,726,861          36,390,537          34,947,553 

              TOTAL                                      245,148,151         245,178,479         238,454,868 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           4,639,865           3,551,806             959,950 

              Unregulated Services                           961,456             905,052             874,246 

              TOTAL                                        5,601,321           4,456,858           1,834,196 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         216,061,155         212,339,748         204,467,265 

              Unregulated Services                        34,688,317          37,295,589          35,821,799 

              Total                                      250,749,472         249,635,337         240,289,064 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         189,824,332         187,052,755         182,701,684 

              Total                                      229,948,414         229,386,050         223,442,869 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          26,236,823          25,286,993          21,765,581 

              Unregulated Services                        -5,435,765          -5,037,706          -4,919,386 

              Total                                       20,801,058          20,249,287          16,846,195 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                6,354,928          10,424,416         -11,976,079 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        9,594,707          11,480,669           1,813,742 

              Non-Operating Expenses                       3,239,779           1,056,253          13,789,821 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      27,155,986          30,673,703           4,870,116 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                11,220              11,585              12,276 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   88,578              89,538              87,911 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              23,043,606          22,341,916 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    13.38%              12.48%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     5,232,274           5,035,941 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.14                1.13 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          42,072,962          41,334,083 

  



 

21 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 8 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Doctors Community Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         222,145,400         216,854,500         214,285,300 

              Unregulated Services                        21,497,124          15,472,076          14,287,965 

              TOTAL                                      243,642,524         232,326,576         228,573,265 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         178,102,639         171,977,743         176,759,733 

              Unregulated Services                        21,502,253          15,430,295          14,210,549 

              TOTAL                                      199,604,892         187,408,037         190,970,282 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           2,232,490           5,842,396             118,417 

              Unregulated Services                         3,242,342           3,333,007           6,543,172 

              TOTAL                                        5,474,832           9,175,403           6,661,589 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         180,335,129         177,820,138         176,878,150 

              Unregulated Services                        24,744,595          18,763,302          20,753,721 

              Total                                      205,079,724         196,583,440         197,631,871 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         170,083,752         173,397,492         170,336,837 

              Total                                      204,184,713         199,300,918         197,169,715 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          10,251,378           4,422,646           6,541,312 

              Unregulated Services                        -9,356,366          -7,140,124          -6,079,156 

              Total                                          895,012          -2,717,478             462,156 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                 -243,211           1,302,400            -156,352 

              Non-Operating Revenue                         -243,211           1,302,400             440,832 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0             597,184 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                         651,801          -1,415,078             305,804 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 9,709              10,857              12,052 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   68,199              62,700              97,540 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              25,008,330          26,574,120 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.98%              12.96%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     5,122,391           7,660,078 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.16                1.55 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          46,457,473          49,789,285 

  



 

22 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 9 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Fort Washington Medical Center 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            December 2014       June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                          48,565,970          46,156,625          46,176,442 

              Unregulated Services                           404,675             391,018             565,184 

              TOTAL                                       48,970,645          46,547,643          46,741,626 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                          40,450,576          37,357,875          37,540,675 

              Unregulated Services                           404,675             391,018             565,184 

              TOTAL                                       40,855,251          37,748,893          38,105,859 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           1,345,091           1,717,070           1,761,701 

              Unregulated Services                            39,088              41,245              39,910 

              TOTAL                                        1,384,179           1,758,315           1,801,611 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                          41,795,667          39,074,945          39,302,376 

              Unregulated Services                           443,763             432,263             605,094 

              Total                                       42,239,430          39,507,208          39,907,470 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                          39,766,800          37,851,168          37,600,240 

              Total                                       40,859,285          38,931,926          38,806,268 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                           2,028,867           1,223,777           1,702,136 

              Unregulated Services                          -648,722            -648,495            -600,935 

              Total                                        1,380,145             575,282           1,101,202 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                      607                 748                 808 

              Non-Operating Revenue                              607                 748                 808 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       1,380,752             576,030           1,102,010 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 2,177               2,306               2,185 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   43,635              42,300              45,263 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                               4,759,174           3,998,744 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    15.03%              14.69%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs       458,010             620,940 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.77                1.31 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:           9,249,582           8,695,159  



 

23 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 10 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Frederick Memorial Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         339,660,800         337,093,700         334,410,300 

              Unregulated Services                        69,997,055          98,857,274          93,637,680 

              TOTAL                                      409,657,855         435,950,974         428,047,980 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         274,540,716         276,164,675         267,942,036 

              Unregulated Services                        38,893,323          54,480,258          59,840,190 

              TOTAL                                      313,434,038         330,644,933         327,782,227 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           6,545,338           5,039,603           4,765,628 

              Unregulated Services                         3,683,661           4,678,290           4,623,611 

              TOTAL                                       10,228,999           9,717,893           9,389,239 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         281,086,054         281,204,278         272,707,664 

              Unregulated Services                        42,576,984          59,158,548          64,463,802 

              Total                                      323,663,037         340,362,826         337,171,466 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         264,760,912         263,988,130         263,435,625 

              Total                                      320,533,000         340,965,873         336,582,000 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          16,325,142          17,216,148           9,272,039 

              Unregulated Services                       -13,195,104         -17,819,196          -8,682,574 

              Total                                        3,130,038            -603,048             589,466 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):               13,863,000          11,341,981          -3,588,239 

              Non-Operating Revenue                       16,523,000          14,535,107           4,221,761 

              Non-Operating Expenses                       2,660,000           3,193,127           7,810,000 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      16,993,038          10,738,933          -2,998,773 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                16,383              17,954              19,107 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  118,058             103,642             100,619 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              24,352,223          26,296,569 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    11.38%              11.04%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     5,523,089           7,880,262 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.93                1.21 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          47,347,569          51,962,805 

  



 

24 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 11 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Garrett County Memorial Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                          45,202,600          42,302,400          42,709,900 

              Unregulated Services                         7,013,510           8,618,007           7,931,586 

              TOTAL                                       52,216,110          50,920,407          50,641,486 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                          36,914,781          34,358,738          33,399,378 

              Unregulated Services                         4,252,165           5,094,768           4,881,490 

              TOTAL                                       41,166,947          39,453,506          38,280,868 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           1,918,578             727,876             334,136 

              Unregulated Services                           299,663             267,413             302,418 

              TOTAL                                        2,218,241             995,289             636,554 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                          38,833,359          35,086,614          33,733,514 

              Unregulated Services                         4,551,828           5,362,181           5,183,908 

              Total                                       43,385,188          40,448,795          38,917,422 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                          34,661,815          32,516,478          31,978,077 

              Total                                       40,023,965          39,162,664          37,720,740 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                           4,171,544           2,570,135           1,755,437 

              Unregulated Services                          -810,322          -1,284,004            -558,755 

              Total                                        3,361,223           1,286,131           1,196,682 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                  877,732             754,939             425,243 

              Non-Operating Revenue                          877,732             754,939             601,391 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0             176,148 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       4,238,955           2,041,070           1,621,925 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 1,865               2,009               2,177 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   23,401              26,559              24,428 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                               1,527,265           2,124,416 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                     7.82%               8.53%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs       380,113             382,656 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.15                0.96 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:           4,824,184           5,108,663 

  



 

25 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 12 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Germantown Emergency Center 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                          14,059,900          12,992,000          14,429,600 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0                   0 

              TOTAL                                       14,059,900          12,992,000          14,429,600 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                           9,216,478           9,389,152          10,350,133 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0                   0 

              TOTAL                                        9,216,478           9,389,152          10,350,133 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                               7,567              14,865              20,575 

              Unregulated Services                           263,000                   0                   0 

              TOTAL                                          270,567              14,865              20,575 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                           9,224,045           9,404,017          10,370,708 

              Unregulated Services                           263,000                   0                   0 

              Total                                        9,487,045           9,404,017          10,370,708 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                          11,106,309          11,094,387          10,402,573 

              Total                                       11,406,414          11,289,944          10,758,951 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          -1,882,264          -1,690,370             -31,865 

              Unregulated Services                           -37,105            -195,557            -356,378 

              Total                                       -1,919,369          -1,885,927            -388,243 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                 -407,785            -378,665            -338,377 

              Non-Operating Revenue                         -407,785            -378,665            -338,377 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      -2,327,154          -2,264,592            -726,620 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                     0                   0                   0 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   34,623              34,599              33,815 

 

  



 

26 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 13 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Greater Baltimore Medical Center 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         426,965,000         421,137,700         426,432,400 

              Unregulated Services                        46,343,000          44,910,725          43,504,800 

              TOTAL                                      473,308,000         466,048,425         469,937,200 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         357,329,000         352,971,792         357,119,673 

              Unregulated Services                        21,736,100          21,816,956          21,597,046 

              TOTAL                                      379,065,100         374,788,748         378,716,719 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           8,765,799           7,062,683           8,535,246 

              Unregulated Services                        14,711,200          12,145,411          10,795,400 

              TOTAL                                       23,476,999          19,208,094          19,330,646 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         366,094,799         360,034,475         365,654,919 

              Unregulated Services                        36,447,300          33,962,367          32,392,446 

              Total                                      402,542,099         393,996,842         398,047,365 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         335,132,100         330,512,612         339,031,966 

              Total                                      381,697,400         379,062,165         384,772,902 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          30,962,700          29,521,863          26,622,953 

              Unregulated Services                       -10,118,000         -14,587,186         -13,348,490 

              Total                                       20,844,700          14,934,677          13,274,463 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):               19,695,000          18,295,933           5,101,873 

              Non-Operating Revenue                       20,282,900          18,792,504           6,816,966 

              Non-Operating Expenses                         587,900             496,571           1,715,093 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      40,539,700          33,230,610          18,376,336 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                16,896              17,180              18,386 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  104,016             101,310             103,539 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              23,875,059          24,069,438 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    11.51%              11.59%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     7,447,441          10,210,625 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.15                1.60 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          46,187,057          49,363,397 

  



 

27 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 14 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Holy Cross Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         468,876,700         461,351,200         453,731,600 

              Unregulated Services                        28,978,500          28,420,055          26,444,000 

              TOTAL                                      497,855,200         489,771,255         480,175,600 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         382,981,000         373,367,100         362,831,800 

              Unregulated Services                        14,213,000          13,422,946          12,252,600 

              TOTAL                                      397,194,000         386,790,046         375,084,400 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           6,272,300           6,119,000           4,593,400 

              Unregulated Services                        10,731,690          11,136,000          11,802,100 

              TOTAL                                       17,003,990          17,255,000          16,395,500 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         389,253,300         379,486,100         367,425,200 

              Unregulated Services                        24,944,690          24,558,946          24,054,700 

              Total                                      414,197,990         404,045,046         391,479,900 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         348,206,775         336,499,534         325,133,202 

              Total                                      390,903,000         379,895,000         364,822,000 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          41,046,525          42,986,566          42,291,998 

              Unregulated Services                       -17,751,525         -18,836,520         -15,634,098 

              Total                                       23,295,000          24,150,046          26,657,900 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):               23,263,000          13,278,000            -580,000 

              Non-Operating Revenue                       23,263,000          13,278,000            -580,000 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      46,558,000          37,428,046          26,077,900 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                27,507              27,676              27,918 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  114,641             121,384             122,355 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              39,862,724          36,734,667 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.72%              12.17%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs    10,526,156          11,557,939 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.18                1.26 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          69,379,005          65,899,561 

  



 

28 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 15 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Howard County General Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         281,805,600         278,901,600         275,201,900 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0                   0 

              TOTAL                                      281,805,600         278,901,600         275,201,900 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         232,598,600         232,449,101         228,528,424 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0                   0 

              TOTAL                                      232,598,600         232,449,101         228,528,424 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                              62,249              99,739              75,986 

              Unregulated Services                         1,995,674           1,681,428           1,921,290 

              TOTAL                                        2,057,923           1,781,167           1,997,276 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         232,660,849         232,548,840         228,604,410 

              Unregulated Services                         1,995,674           1,681,428           1,921,290 

              Total                                      234,656,523         234,230,268         230,525,700 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         222,265,553         214,010,558         210,259,612 

              Total                                      231,079,634         223,533,128         220,890,194 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          10,395,296          18,538,282          18,344,798 

              Unregulated Services                        -6,818,406          -7,841,142          -8,709,292 

              Total                                        3,576,890          10,697,140           9,635,506 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                6,309,706           8,692,566         -10,905,869 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        4,133,076           1,763,387           2,601,476 

              Non-Operating Expenses                      -2,176,630          -6,929,179          13,507,345 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       9,886,601          19,389,706          -1,270,363 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                16,270              16,001              15,680 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  104,460             102,700             106,272 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              26,597,084          25,008,934 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    13.28%              12.43%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     6,201,772           7,789,046 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.27                1.57 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          46,291,094          47,849,825 

  



 

29 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 16 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         605,106,300         596,807,300         584,860,100 

              Unregulated Services                         4,406,900           8,573,900           9,292,400 

              TOTAL                                      609,513,200         605,381,200         594,152,500 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         484,348,000         476,903,000         464,656,600 

              Unregulated Services                         3,663,900           8,006,900           8,655,400 

              TOTAL                                      488,011,900         484,909,900         473,312,000 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           9,049,099           9,832,500          10,640,600 

              Unregulated Services                        42,960,500          38,516,600          40,589,600 

              TOTAL                                       52,009,599          48,349,100          51,230,200 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         493,397,099         486,735,500         475,297,200 

              Unregulated Services                        46,624,400          46,523,500          49,245,000 

              Total                                      540,021,499         533,259,000         524,542,200 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         472,155,588         480,902,619         453,372,164 

              Total                                      530,603,000         541,313,000         515,400,000 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          21,241,512           5,832,881          21,925,036 

              Unregulated Services                       -11,823,012         -13,886,881         -12,782,836 

              Total                                        9,418,500          -8,054,000           9,142,200 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                1,686,500           1,258,000           1,483,500 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        1,686,500           1,258,000           1,483,500 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      11,105,000          -6,796,000          10,625,700 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                20,529              21,497              21,903 

     

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  440,573             434,814             458,827 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              50,884,040          51,725,255 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    16.05%              15.72%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     7,556,155          15,218,356 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.83                1.62 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          81,149,306          89,464,625 

  



 

30 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 17 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Johns Hopkins Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                       2,172,517,900       2,132,419,000       1,851,351,500 

              Unregulated Services                        12,351,327           7,919,391           7,839,714 

              TOTAL                                    2,184,869,227       2,140,338,391       1,859,191,214 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                       1,778,796,357       1,760,717,473       1,578,655,727 

              Unregulated Services                        10,509,115           6,115,491           6,586,531 

              TOTAL                                    1,789,305,472       1,766,832,964       1,585,242,258 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                          14,656,180          14,570,644          14,097,472 

              Unregulated Services                       155,742,900         131,724,408         124,914,611 

              TOTAL                                      170,399,080         146,295,052         139,012,083 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                       1,793,452,537       1,775,288,117       1,592,753,199 

              Unregulated Services                       166,252,015         137,839,899         131,501,142 

              Total                                    1,959,704,552       1,913,128,016       1,724,254,341 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                       1,768,501,426       1,757,360,894       1,560,026,965 

              Total                                    1,928,276,090       1,897,159,817       1,690,861,340 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          24,951,117          17,927,223          32,726,234 

              Unregulated Services                         6,477,361          -1,959,024             666,767 

              Total                                       31,428,478          15,968,199          33,393,001 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):               35,421,690          35,094,878          32,718,682 

              Non-Operating Revenue                       35,421,690          35,094,878          32,718,682 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      66,850,174          51,063,077          66,111,683 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                48,466              48,261              47,047 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  548,274             536,188             499,124 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                             172,736,442         169,582,297 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    15.64%              15.00%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs    35,869,802          60,288,690 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.98                1.64 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:         221,715,714         239,682,555 

  



 

31 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 18 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Laurel Regional Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         118,865,000         121,542,100         118,724,400 

              Unregulated Services                         5,189,156           3,766,780           3,961,730 

              TOTAL                                      124,054,156         125,308,880         122,686,130 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                          97,912,231          98,649,934          93,954,841 

              Unregulated Services                         1,501,121           1,477,821           1,273,246 

              TOTAL                                       99,413,352         100,127,755          95,228,087 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           2,735,242             118,373            -189,126 

              Unregulated Services                           306,036             283,265             249,353 

              TOTAL                                        3,041,278             401,638              60,227 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         100,647,473          98,768,306          93,765,714 

              Unregulated Services                         1,807,157           1,761,086           1,522,599 

              Total                                      102,454,630         100,529,393          95,288,314 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         104,245,610         101,679,156          96,874,582 

              Total                                      111,690,619         110,799,556         104,340,682 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          -3,598,137          -2,910,849          -3,108,868 

              Unregulated Services                        -5,637,852          -7,359,314          -5,943,501 

              Total                                       -9,235,989         -10,270,163          -9,052,368 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                8,550,000           8,700,000           9,150,000 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        8,550,000           8,700,000           9,150,000 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                        -685,989          -1,570,163              97,632 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 5,494               5,989               5,630 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   47,120              51,767              49,270 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              10,415,185          10,515,640 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    14.63%              13.96%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     1,619,668           1,704,415 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.03                0.91 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          17,174,878          17,074,036 

  



 

32 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 19 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Levindale4 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014                                 

                                                      --------------       

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                          54,541,800                    

              Unregulated Services                        35,343,587                    

              TOTAL                                       89,885,387                    

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                          47,571,840                    

              Unregulated Services                        28,791,830                    

              TOTAL                                       76,363,670                    

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           1,640,083                    

              Unregulated Services                            54,975                    

              TOTAL                                        1,695,058                    

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                          49,211,923                    

              Unregulated Services                        28,846,805                                       

              Total                                       78,058,728                                      

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                          41,997,200                                     

              Total                                       74,832,800                                     

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                           7,214,700                                      

              Unregulated Services                        -3,988,800                                       

              Total                                        3,225,900                                       

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                3,575,884                                       

              Non-Operating Revenue                        3,575,884                                      

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                                       

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       6,801,826                                       

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 1,315                                       

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                    3,391                                      

                                

 

  

                                                 
4 FY 2014 is the first year that Levindale was designated as an acute care hospital by CMS. 



 

33 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 20 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         McCready Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                          16,638,000          17,975,600          17,710,400 

              Unregulated Services                         1,397,602           1,661,066           1,964,859 

              TOTAL                                       18,035,602          19,636,666          19,675,259 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                          13,303,900          13,914,617          14,280,227 

              Unregulated Services                           863,487             923,548           1,051,180 

              TOTAL                                       14,167,387          14,838,165          15,331,407 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           1,301,193              90,951              42,511 

              Unregulated Services                            83,844               8,651               5,490 

              TOTAL                                        1,385,037              99,602              48,001 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                          14,605,093          14,005,568          14,322,738 

              Unregulated Services                           947,331             932,199           1,056,670 

              Total                                       15,552,424          14,937,767          15,379,408 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                          12,257,596          14,303,837          13,816,498 

              Total                                       13,788,378          14,472,624          13,999,158 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                           2,347,500            -298,269             506,240 

              Unregulated Services                          -583,451             763,412             874,010 

              Total                                        1,764,049             465,143           1,380,250 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                  107,518             -35,298           1,880,685 

              Non-Operating Revenue                          107,518             103,748           1,880,685 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0             139,046                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       1,871,567             429,845           3,260,935 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                   321                 297                 399 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   13,413              13,299              14,361 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                                 610,519             880,560 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    11.14%              13.27%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs             0                   0 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.00                0.00 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:           1,781,550           2,357,978 

  



 

34 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 21 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         MedStar Franklin Square 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         486,467,000         469,792,200         477,082,000 

              Unregulated Services                       192,175,314         149,321,525         127,868,522 

              TOTAL                                      678,642,314         619,113,725         604,950,522 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         407,447,444         385,021,682         391,379,153 

              Unregulated Services                        70,000,653          55,271,201          50,326,959 

              TOTAL                                      477,448,097         440,292,883         441,706,112 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           6,794,480           4,721,924           3,363,126 

              Unregulated Services                         6,316,130           5,404,183           4,553,768 

              TOTAL                                       13,110,610          10,126,107           7,916,894 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         414,241,924         389,743,606         394,742,279 

              Unregulated Services                        76,316,783          60,675,384          54,880,727 

              Total                                      490,558,707         450,418,990         449,623,006 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         373,444,124         363,168,650         363,245,385 

              Total                                      469,241,214         450,358,826         436,640,459 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          40,797,801          26,574,956          31,496,894 

              Unregulated Services                       -19,480,307         -26,514,792         -18,514,347 

              Total                                       21,317,494              60,164          12,982,547 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                  246,061             365,370             304,953 

              Non-Operating Revenue                          246,061             365,370             304,953 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      21,563,555             425,534          13,287,500 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                21,804              21,997              22,145 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  168,073             170,528             172,628 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              55,138,662          49,266,677 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    13.97%              13.75%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     9,643,067          11,211,987 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.00                1.11 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          91,907,129          89,871,664  



 

35 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 22 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         MedStar Good Samaritan 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         299,250,000         295,736,800         311,855,400 

              Unregulated Services                       142,342,915         143,520,878         127,393,726 

              TOTAL                                      441,592,915         439,257,678         439,249,126 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         242,965,630         239,029,241         251,566,429 

              Unregulated Services                        49,688,130          49,676,077          51,726,988 

              TOTAL                                      292,653,760         288,705,318         303,293,417 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           7,433,958           3,998,131           3,037,752 

              Unregulated Services                         7,188,325           6,882,784           1,023,745 

              TOTAL                                       14,622,283          10,880,915           4,061,497 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         250,399,588         243,027,372         254,604,181 

              Unregulated Services                        56,876,455          56,558,861          52,750,733 

              Total                                      307,276,043         299,586,233         307,354,914 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         224,965,932         230,253,466         232,260,097 

              Total                                      303,307,419         307,783,651         299,758,071 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          25,433,656          12,773,906          22,344,084 

              Unregulated Services                       -21,465,032         -20,971,324         -14,747,241 

              Total                                        3,968,625          -8,197,418           7,596,843 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                    3,219              71,034           1,008,235 

              Non-Operating Revenue                           43,284              56,644           1,013,557 

              Non-Operating Expenses                          40,065             -14,390               5,322 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       3,971,844          -8,126,384           8,605,078 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                11,759              13,416              14,948 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   90,430              88,921              84,859 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              33,353,859          36,816,669 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    15.19%              15.29%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     5,307,301           7,186,091 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.83                1.16 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          54,578,301          60,749,450 

  



 

36 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 23 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         MedStar Harbor Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         205,146,300         201,141,000         209,694,300 

              Unregulated Services                        78,505,062          72,945,343          66,803,107 

              TOTAL                                      283,651,362         274,086,343         276,497,407 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         171,046,194         165,007,143         166,004,244 

              Unregulated Services                        25,319,070          25,598,351          21,464,485 

              TOTAL                                      196,365,264         190,605,494         187,468,729 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           5,371,719           5,160,187           3,495,467 

              Unregulated Services                         8,195,974           8,819,001           8,367,663 

              TOTAL                                       13,567,693          13,979,188          11,863,130 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         176,417,913         170,167,330         169,499,711 

              Unregulated Services                        33,515,044          34,417,352          29,832,148 

              Total                                      209,932,957         204,584,682         199,331,859 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         146,516,583         157,878,796         166,965,434 

              Total                                      189,700,114         198,800,877         202,041,627 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          29,901,331          12,288,534           2,534,277 

              Unregulated Services                        -9,668,488          -6,504,729          -5,244,045 

              Total                                       20,232,843           5,783,805          -2,709,768 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                  506,890             277,299             220,219 

              Non-Operating Revenue                          506,890             198,723             220,219 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0             -78,576                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      20,739,733           6,061,104          -2,489,549 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 7,624               8,581              10,096 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   66,579              67,279              62,867 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              18,363,094          20,799,635 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    13.77%              14.40%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     4,674,145           4,827,281 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.09                1.06 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          33,760,818          37,080,813 

  



 

37 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 24 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         MedStar Montgomery General 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         167,893,100         166,869,100         165,915,000 

              Unregulated Services                         8,493,778           8,456,700           7,665,307 

              TOTAL                                      176,386,878         175,325,800         173,580,307 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         141,046,268         140,038,336         139,632,555 

              Unregulated Services                         4,590,335           4,357,068           3,286,403 

              TOTAL                                      145,636,603         144,395,405         142,918,959 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           2,796,922           5,386,913           2,680,765 

              Unregulated Services                           282,582             733,038             894,651 

              TOTAL                                        3,079,504           6,119,951           3,575,416 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         143,843,190         145,425,249         142,313,320 

              Unregulated Services                         4,872,917           5,090,107           4,181,054 

              Total                                      148,716,107         150,515,356         146,494,375 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         128,893,109         128,574,908         124,575,881 

              Total                                      141,655,632         143,428,725         137,669,098 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          14,950,082          16,850,341          17,737,440 

              Unregulated Services                        -7,889,606          -9,763,710          -8,912,163 

              Total                                        7,060,476           7,086,631           8,825,276 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                   15,370             175,895             179,353 

              Non-Operating Revenue                           15,370             175,895             179,353 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       7,075,846           7,262,526           9,004,630 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 8,230               8,615               9,247 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   74,747              72,298              67,026 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              13,130,641          14,208,780 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.70%              12.91%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     2,709,450           4,179,895 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.26                1.52 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          23,972,354          26,667,246 

  



 

38 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 25 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         MedStar Saint Mary's Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         157,936,000         154,603,000         151,897,000 

              Unregulated Services                        12,443,429          11,584,466          10,086,460 

              TOTAL                                      170,379,429         166,187,466         161,983,460 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         131,499,627         122,725,928         115,905,184 

              Unregulated Services                         6,799,669           8,136,699           9,418,294 

              TOTAL                                      138,299,296         130,862,627         125,323,478 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           2,960,850             252,484           4,778,880 

              Unregulated Services                         1,745,067           2,025,953           1,180,088 

              TOTAL                                        4,705,917           2,278,437           5,958,967 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         134,460,477         122,978,411         120,684,064 

              Unregulated Services                         8,544,736          10,162,653          10,598,382 

              Total                                      143,005,213         133,141,064         131,282,445 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         114,088,512         106,669,520         106,515,296 

              Total                                      131,503,457         122,895,946         121,640,602 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          20,371,965          16,308,891          14,168,767 

              Unregulated Services                        -8,870,208          -6,063,773          -4,526,924 

              Total                                       11,501,757          10,245,118           9,641,843 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                  769,829           2,103,498              -1,535 

              Non-Operating Revenue                          769,829             444,111             277,093 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0          -1,659,387             278,628 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      12,271,586          12,348,616           9,640,308 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 6,681               7,477               7,581 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   67,665              68,692              66,876 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              10,189,136          11,003,019 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.57%              13.55%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     1,196,713           1,444,025 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.82                0.96 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          20,431,617          21,907,808 

  



 

39 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 26 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         MedStar Southern Maryland 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         261,812,300         259,132,417         241,038,800 

              Unregulated Services                        10,051,455          15,399,200          31,423,033 

              TOTAL                                      271,863,755         274,531,617         272,461,833 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         207,161,288         200,413,856         199,310,186 

              Unregulated Services                         5,415,538           5,166,698          13,200,279 

              TOTAL                                      212,576,826         205,580,554         212,510,465 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                             402,847             114,400             269,077 

              Unregulated Services                           882,941             959,834             628,599 

              TOTAL                                        1,285,788           1,074,234             897,676 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         207,564,135         200,528,256         199,579,263 

              Unregulated Services                         6,298,479           6,126,532          13,828,878 

              Total                                      213,862,614         206,654,788         213,408,141 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         204,401,483         222,142,014         193,980,843 

              Total                                      219,466,790         234,305,692         217,937,158 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                           3,162,651         -21,613,758           5,598,420 

              Unregulated Services                        -8,766,828          -6,037,146         -10,127,437 

              Total                                       -5,604,177         -27,650,904          -4,529,017 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                   21,958            -104,289            -154,429 

              Non-Operating Revenue                           21,958                   0            -154,429 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0             104,289                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      -5,582,219         -21,613,758          -4,683,446 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                13,178              16,421              15,272 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   73,008              49,127              64,776 

         

 

         Readmission Charges:                              28,638,418          28,140,372 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.36%              12.57%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     7,003,192           7,624,243 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.25                1.46 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          54,853,857          54,084,796 

  



 

40 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 27 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         MedStar Union Memorial 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         415,164,300         406,581,900         422,530,700 

              Unregulated Services                       153,664,182         141,868,889         142,322,669 

              TOTAL                                      568,828,482         548,450,789         564,853,369 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         343,104,896         325,853,133         339,127,630 

              Unregulated Services                        52,362,138          51,680,296          48,461,245 

              TOTAL                                      395,467,034         377,533,429         387,588,875 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           4,836,762           6,118,228           4,132,978 

              Unregulated Services                         8,902,680           8,020,221           8,577,492 

              TOTAL                                       13,739,442          14,138,449          12,710,470 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         347,941,658         331,971,361         343,260,608 

              Unregulated Services                        61,264,818          59,700,517          57,038,737 

              Total                                      409,206,476         391,671,878         400,299,345 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         301,629,439         311,635,984         311,843,852 

              Total                                      394,669,299         397,895,616         397,245,796 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          46,312,220          20,335,376          31,416,756 

              Unregulated Services                       -31,775,042         -26,559,115         -28,363,207 

              Total                                       14,537,178          -6,223,738           3,053,549 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                5,852,483           4,750,979           1,030,745 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        5,852,483           4,750,979           1,030,745 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      20,389,661          -1,472,759           4,084,294 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                12,811              14,044              14,914 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  110,467             110,887             100,138 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              36,462,671          35,288,245 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    14.57%              15.01%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs    11,124,318          14,581,503 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.09                1.45 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          62,527,286          65,790,576 

  



 

41 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 28 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Mercy Medical Center 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         489,187,300         470,759,600         459,265,700 

              Unregulated Services                           749,899             627,139             683,968 

              TOTAL                                      489,937,199         471,386,739         459,949,668 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         408,619,365         398,432,064         385,649,759 

              Unregulated Services                           749,899             627,139             683,968 

              TOTAL                                      409,369,264         399,059,203         386,333,727 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           8,959,900           3,404,900           8,682,300 

              Unregulated Services                        14,885,430          14,337,643          13,322,987 

              TOTAL                                       23,845,330          17,742,543          22,005,287 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         417,579,265         401,836,964         394,332,059 

              Unregulated Services                        15,635,329          14,964,782          14,006,955 

              Total                                      433,214,594         416,801,746         408,339,014 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         403,467,951         386,407,071         372,534,729 

              Total                                      426,907,582         413,737,170         399,668,121 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          14,111,314          15,429,893          21,797,330 

              Unregulated Services                        -7,804,301         -12,365,317         -13,126,437 

              Total                                        6,307,013           3,064,576           8,670,893 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                9,709,384          27,955,631         -22,986,000 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        8,724,168          19,458,083             263,000 

              Non-Operating Expenses                        -985,216          -8,497,548          23,249,000 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      16,016,399          31,020,207         -14,315,107 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                15,231              16,473              16,740 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  185,353             189,379             201,117 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              29,798,310          26,898,977 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    15.65%              14.74%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     7,800,670           8,345,522 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.01                1.16 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          48,445,110          47,155,802 

  



 

42 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 29 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Meritus Medical Center 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         305,141,600         301,350,700         295,465,200 

              Unregulated Services                        59,470,600          56,210,900          56,964,400 

              TOTAL                                      364,612,200         357,561,600         352,429,600 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         247,293,500         247,469,100         244,455,300 

              Unregulated Services                        36,504,200          33,954,400          31,708,200 

              TOTAL                                      283,797,700         281,423,500         276,163,500 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           4,178,200           7,830,700           7,051,500 

              Unregulated Services                         8,868,100           7,696,600           2,896,900 

              TOTAL                                       13,046,300          15,527,300           9,948,400 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         251,471,700         255,299,800         251,506,800 

              Unregulated Services                        45,372,300          41,651,000          34,605,100 

              Total                                      296,844,000         296,950,800         286,111,900 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         246,754,400         244,991,246         247,646,762 

              Total                                      292,347,100         285,886,372         283,953,400 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                           4,717,300          10,308,554           3,860,038 

              Unregulated Services                          -220,400             755,874          -1,701,538 

              Total                                        4,496,900          11,064,428           2,158,500 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):               14,486,000          -1,948,200           2,553,900 

              Non-Operating Revenue                       14,486,000           9,342,900           2,553,900 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0          11,291,100                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      18,982,900           9,116,228           4,712,400 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                16,542              15,846              15,558 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  106,662             107,718             111,239 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              28,386,681          29,519,745 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.66%              11.60%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     5,950,468           8,664,950 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.96                1.46 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          51,126,663          55,866,659 

  



 

43 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 30 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Northwest Hospital Center 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         249,134,500         248,252,700         238,730,100 

              Unregulated Services                        40,289,193          36,074,239          31,341,808 

              TOTAL                                      289,423,693         284,326,939         270,071,908 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         198,880,687         197,370,392         193,159,085 

              Unregulated Services                        16,322,685          16,188,598          12,355,386 

              TOTAL                                      215,203,372         213,558,990         205,514,471 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           2,083,246           2,225,751           3,904,164 

              Unregulated Services                         6,071,930           5,389,249           4,202,790 

              TOTAL                                        8,155,176           7,615,000           8,106,954 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         200,963,933         199,596,143         197,063,249 

              Unregulated Services                        22,394,615          21,577,847          16,558,176 

              Total                                      223,358,548         221,173,990         213,621,425 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         177,499,465         179,749,164         178,234,237 

              Total                                      213,902,245         207,890,900         203,241,310 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          23,464,469          19,846,980          18,829,012 

              Unregulated Services                       -14,008,165          -6,563,890          -8,448,897 

              Total                                        9,456,304          13,283,090          10,380,115 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):               16,161,910          10,330,900           1,315,681 

              Non-Operating Revenue                       16,161,910           9,138,000           1,315,681 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0          -1,192,900                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      25,618,214          23,613,990          11,695,796 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                12,403              14,013              13,666 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   85,655              85,347              83,313 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              31,146,779          31,779,863 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    15.57%              15.69%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     4,911,932           8,195,596 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.06                1.78 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          53,810,791          58,233,463 

  



 

44 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 31 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Peninsula Regional Medical Center 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         416,388,900         412,641,500         414,765,500 

              Unregulated Services                        65,260,800          65,444,500          62,011,400 

              TOTAL                                      481,649,700         478,086,000         476,776,900 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         344,224,200         335,753,200         336,910,100 

              Unregulated Services                        24,311,800          23,926,300          24,508,400 

              TOTAL                                      368,536,000         359,679,500         361,418,500 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           4,808,700           5,401,400           1,238,700 

              Unregulated Services                         2,542,800           1,063,700           1,151,100 

              TOTAL                                        7,351,500           6,465,100           2,389,800 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         349,032,900         341,154,600         338,148,800 

              Unregulated Services                        26,854,600          24,990,000          25,659,500 

              Total                                      375,887,500         366,144,600         363,808,300 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         312,613,046         315,285,076         309,515,853 

              Total                                      368,196,500         369,279,600         357,522,300 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          36,419,854          25,869,524          28,632,947 

              Unregulated Services                       -28,728,854         -29,004,524         -22,346,947 

              Total                                        7,691,000          -3,135,000           6,286,000 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):               21,729,000          13,854,000           9,551,000 

              Non-Operating Revenue                       21,729,000          13,854,000           9,603,000 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0              52,000 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      29,420,000          10,719,000          15,837,000 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                17,344              17,915              19,139 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  120,004             118,568             118,097 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              32,271,933          30,595,588 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.36%              10.98%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs    11,250,126          12,821,039 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.29                1.43 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          61,274,484          61,470,269 

  



 

45 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 32 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Prince Georges' Hospital Center 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         267,282,400         249,192,555         255,903,800 

              Unregulated Services                        19,068,307          16,344,218          16,268,731 

              TOTAL                                      286,350,707         265,536,772         272,172,531 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         218,330,120         205,002,819         204,531,176 

              Unregulated Services                         7,067,837           6,571,695           6,303,810 

              TOTAL                                      225,397,957         211,574,515         210,834,986 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           3,683,713           3,652,361           1,273,509 

              Unregulated Services                         1,476,428           1,260,997             997,687 

              TOTAL                                        5,160,141           4,913,358           2,271,197 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         222,013,833         208,655,180         205,804,685 

              Unregulated Services                         8,544,265           7,832,692           7,301,497 

              Total                                      230,558,098         216,487,873         213,106,183 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         217,477,104         211,129,768         203,825,149 

              Total                                      249,691,862         237,801,774         227,988,386 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                           4,536,729          -2,474,588           1,979,536 

              Unregulated Services                       -23,670,492         -18,839,314         -16,861,740 

              Total                                      -19,133,763         -21,313,902         -14,882,204 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):               22,326,150          22,342,000          22,252,141 

              Non-Operating Revenue                       22,326,150          22,342,000          22,252,141 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       3,192,390           1,028,098           7,369,937 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                11,437              10,400              11,365 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   49,899              54,507              54,868 

 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              20,709,894          20,745,116 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    11.23%              11.30%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     4,193,046           5,840,172 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.86                1.13 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          41,964,827          42,274,789 

  



 

46 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 33 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Queen Anne’s Emergency Center 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           5,190,800           4,999,900           5,262,800 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0                   0 

              TOTAL                                        5,190,800           4,999,900           5,262,800 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                           4,257,207           4,038,910           4,141,820 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0                   0 

              TOTAL                                        4,257,207           4,038,910           4,141,820 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                               9,569              15,386                  -1 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0                   1 

              TOTAL                                            9,569              15,386                   0 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                           4,266,776           4,054,296           4,141,819 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0                   1 

              Total                                        4,266,776           4,054,296           4,141,820 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                           7,584,616           7,562,784           5,951,191 

              Total                                        7,584,616           7,562,784           5,951,191 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          -3,317,840          -3,508,488          -1,809,372 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0                   1 

              Total                                       -3,317,840          -3,508,488          -1,809,371 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                  -29,398              50,254            -116,436 

              Non-Operating Revenue                          -29,398              50,254            -116,436 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      -3,347,238          -3,458,234          -1,925,807 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                     0                   0                   0 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   14,793              14,434              14,713 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

47 
 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 34 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Saint Agnes Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         410,191,100         404,669,900         401,564,200 

              Unregulated Services                       164,764,875         166,822,313         158,452,693 

              TOTAL                                      574,955,975         571,492,213         560,016,893 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         336,783,777         331,731,681         330,910,826 

              Unregulated Services                        69,199,726          69,671,974          69,184,299 

              TOTAL                                      405,983,504         401,403,655         400,095,125 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           5,698,599           6,619,006           4,476,674 

              Unregulated Services                         5,273,683           5,465,872           5,432,666 

              TOTAL                                       10,972,282          12,084,878           9,909,340 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         342,482,376         338,350,687         335,387,500 

              Unregulated Services                        74,473,409          75,137,846          74,616,966 

              Total                                      416,955,786         413,488,533         410,004,465 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         289,084,013         282,897,718         286,983,653 

              Total                                      393,019,853         387,262,188         388,515,810 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          53,398,364          55,452,969          48,403,847 

              Unregulated Services                       -29,462,430         -29,226,624         -26,915,191 

              Total                                       23,935,933          26,226,345          21,488,655 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):               20,935,447          15,657,000          22,026,368 

              Non-Operating Revenue                       22,133,540          15,619,000             478,886 

              Non-Operating Expenses                       1,198,093             -38,000         -21,547,482 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      44,871,382          41,883,345          43,515,023 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                17,541              17,907              19,122 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  147,167             142,392             138,372 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              42,762,725          40,775,025 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    14.61%              14.28%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     7,664,552          10,793,024 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.03                1.43 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          74,655,695          75,344,635 

  



 

48 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 35 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Shady Grove Adventist Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            December 2014       June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         383,323,300         375,189,800         348,706,200 

              Unregulated Services                        21,122,086          27,614,020          30,434,434 

              TOTAL                                      404,445,386         402,803,820         379,140,634 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         322,939,414         306,717,029         294,975,318 

              Unregulated Services                        11,062,723          13,372,763          14,983,447 

              TOTAL                                      334,002,137         320,089,792         309,958,765 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           3,045,364           5,247,337           2,524,169 

              Unregulated Services                         6,356,051           5,820,855           6,341,040 

              TOTAL                                        9,401,415          11,068,192           8,865,209 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         325,984,778         311,964,366         297,499,487 

              Unregulated Services                        17,418,774          19,193,618          21,324,487 

              Total                                      343,403,552         331,157,984         318,823,974 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         294,301,624         283,029,117         277,340,979 

              Total                                      326,254,601         315,633,624         310,920,356 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          31,683,154          28,935,249          20,158,508 

              Unregulated Services                       -14,534,203         -13,410,889         -12,254,890 

              Total                                       17,148,951          15,524,360           7,903,618 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                1,178,041            -260,667           1,005,006 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        1,178,041            -260,667           1,802,328 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0             797,322 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      18,326,992          15,263,693           8,908,624 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                19,533              20,321              21,112 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   95,364              97,692              91,754 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              27,075,280          28,716,222 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    11.38%              11.95%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     6,401,554           5,832,026 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.81                0.79 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          48,070,854          43,249,842 

  



 

49 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 36 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Sinai Hospital of Baltimore 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         699,430,000         684,516,800         676,602,700 

              Unregulated Services                       193,082,993         169,421,934         153,761,069 

              TOTAL                                      892,512,993         853,938,734         830,363,769 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         565,895,246         564,285,587         565,251,457 

              Unregulated Services                        83,756,627          81,351,241          72,810,960 

              TOTAL                                      649,651,873         645,636,828         638,062,417 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                          11,819,850          16,233,000           6,501,576 

              Unregulated Services                        41,560,500          34,075,711          38,199,150 

              TOTAL                                       53,380,350          50,308,711          44,700,726 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         577,715,096         580,518,587         571,753,033 

              Unregulated Services                       125,317,127         115,426,952         111,010,110 

              Total                                      703,032,223         695,945,539         682,763,143 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         517,159,092         530,048,218         525,697,277 

              Total                                      675,091,241         680,645,621         668,599,780 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          60,556,006          50,470,369          46,055,756 

              Unregulated Services                       -32,615,013         -35,170,451         -31,892,393 

              Total                                       27,940,993          15,299,918          14,163,363 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):               29,800,000          18,967,000           8,966,054 

              Non-Operating Revenue                       29,800,000          18,967,000           8,966,054 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      57,740,993          34,266,918          23,129,417 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                24,549              25,871              27,229 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  183,290             168,467             165,707 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              57,482,479          57,115,974 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    14.97%              14.43%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs    14,774,950          20,703,914 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.97                1.47 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          89,495,796          94,620,833 

  



 

50 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 37 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Suburban Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         289,286,600         280,578,500         272,892,400 

              Unregulated Services                         9,632,810          10,147,116          10,349,192 

              TOTAL                                      298,919,410         290,725,616         283,241,592 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         239,648,239         232,362,800         229,323,220 

              Unregulated Services                         3,624,514           3,093,016           7,363,073 

              TOTAL                                      243,272,753         235,455,816         236,686,293 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           2,720,835           7,003,940           4,740,818 

              Unregulated Services                        18,648,960          42,394,260          11,768,869 

              TOTAL                                       21,369,795          49,398,200          16,509,687 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         242,369,074         239,366,740         234,064,038 

              Unregulated Services                        22,273,474          45,487,276          19,131,942 

              Total                                      264,642,548         284,854,016         253,195,980 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         225,204,531         218,871,188         216,882,253 

              Total                                      262,016,800         251,081,646         239,149,257 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          17,164,544          20,495,552          17,181,785 

              Unregulated Services                       -14,538,791          13,276,817          -3,135,062 

              Total                                        2,625,753          33,772,370          14,046,723 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):               13,775,934           4,362,488          -2,603,825 

              Non-Operating Revenue                       14,727,120           4,362,488          -2,603,825 

              Non-Operating Expenses                         951,186                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      16,401,687          38,134,858          11,442,898 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                13,183              13,210              14,172 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   76,845              79,694              78,221 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              23,638,589          20,834,542 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    11.83%              11.63%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     8,021,007          10,400,132 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.27                1.58 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          40,831,795          41,607,976 

  



 

51 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 38 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         UM Baltimore Washington 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         393,181,900         376,812,800         381,065,300 

              Unregulated Services                        28,963,224          10,944,461          11,077,953 

              TOTAL                                      422,145,124         387,757,261         392,143,253 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         320,033,920         308,070,323         312,825,359 

              Unregulated Services                        11,367,399          10,944,461          11,077,953 

              TOTAL                                      331,401,319         319,014,784         323,903,313 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           2,304,241           1,904,465           2,569,890 

              Unregulated Services                         1,694,936           1,670,068           1,558,022 

              TOTAL                                        3,999,177           3,574,533           4,127,912 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         322,338,161         309,974,788         315,395,249 

              Unregulated Services                        13,062,335          12,614,529          12,635,976 

              Total                                      335,400,496         322,589,317         328,031,225 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         296,252,216         307,055,161         301,328,290 

              Total                                      319,029,811         326,994,589         313,491,003 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          26,085,945           2,919,627          14,066,959 

              Unregulated Services                        -9,715,260          -7,324,899             473,264 

              Total                                       16,370,685          -4,405,272          14,540,222 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                3,103,362              24,629          -3,288,000 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        6,430,980           4,424,231           1,577,000 

              Non-Operating Expenses                       3,327,618           4,399,602           4,865,000 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      19,474,047          -4,380,643          11,252,222 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                17,827              18,921              18,543 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  133,823             134,995             138,344 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              45,706,674          40,162,146 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    14.93%              15.03%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     9,343,776          10,417,975 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.01                1.27 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          77,870,191          73,245,926 

  



 

52 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 39 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         UM Charles Regional Medical Center 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         144,785,724         137,003,900         126,393,900 

              Unregulated Services                           790,489             999,343             425,147 

              TOTAL                                      145,576,213         138,003,243         126,819,047 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         118,662,627         112,746,501         103,830,122 

              Unregulated Services                           579,067             842,746             215,805 

              TOTAL                                      119,241,694         113,589,247         104,045,927 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                              28,963            -156,758            -282,149 

              Unregulated Services                           481,289             483,220             474,202 

              TOTAL                                          510,252             326,462             192,054 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         118,691,590         112,589,742         103,547,973 

              Unregulated Services                         1,060,356           1,325,966             690,007 

              Total                                      119,751,946         113,915,709         104,237,981 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         105,796,706         100,889,258          94,890,378 

              Total                                      108,754,924         103,915,537          96,010,018 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          12,894,884          11,700,484           8,657,595 

              Unregulated Services                        -1,897,862          -1,700,312            -429,633 

              Total                                       10,997,022          10,000,172           8,227,962 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                 -828,000          -5,266,000          -8,884,000 

              Non-Operating Revenue                       -1,009,000          -5,266,000          -8,884,000 

              Non-Operating Expenses                        -181,000                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      10,169,022           4,734,172            -656,038 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 7,554               7,717               7,083 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   71,016              55,414              56,821 

 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              13,889,328          15,328,045 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.89%              13.01%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     1,300,292           2,626,956 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.80                1.23 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          26,418,723          28,229,604 

 

 



 

53 
 

HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 40 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         UM Harford Memorial Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 20145           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                          53,719,100         103,499,300         104,451,400 

              Unregulated Services                            60,300             130,700             163,300 

              TOTAL                                       53,779,400         103,630,000         104,614,700 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                          44,777,400          80,749,039          82,984,005 

              Unregulated Services                            44,700              61,300             104,000 

              TOTAL                                       44,822,100          80,810,339          83,088,005 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                             656,400           2,452,600           1,050,423 

              Unregulated Services                           175,100             479,400           2,361,577 

              TOTAL                                          831,500           2,932,000           3,412,000 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                          45,433,800          83,201,639          84,034,428 

              Unregulated Services                           219,800             540,700           2,465,577 

              Total                                       45,653,600          83,742,339          86,500,005 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                          39,181,300          77,131,271          80,495,251 

              Total                                       40,864,200          79,558,000          83,528,951 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                           6,252,500           6,070,368           3,539,177 

              Unregulated Services                        -1,463,100          -1,886,029            -568,123 

              Total                                        4,789,400           4,184,339           2,971,054 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                1,915,300           7,340,000           5,297,000 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        1,915,300           7,340,000           5,297,000 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       6,704,700          11,524,339           8,268,054 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 2,351               4,727               5,132 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   44,589              47,081              43,330 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              12,066,425          11,569,256 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.51%              12.26%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     1,533,980           1,862,884 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.16                1.47 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          21,069,537          20,207,171 

                                                 
5 UM Harford Memorial changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FYE report of six (6) 
months. 



 

54 
 

                                       

HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 41 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         UM Midtown 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         222,427,600         216,173,800         185,438,390 

              Unregulated Services                        15,808,226          19,029,350           8,054,159 

              TOTAL                                      238,235,826         235,203,150         193,492,549 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         174,389,612         177,185,337         154,041,944 

              Unregulated Services                         5,994,896           6,168,253           8,008,771 

              TOTAL                                      180,384,509         183,353,590         162,050,715 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           1,163,270             270,527             865,829 

              Unregulated Services                           998,502           1,212,224           1,157,473 

              TOTAL                                        2,161,772           1,482,751           2,023,301 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         175,552,882         177,455,864         154,907,773 

              Unregulated Services                         6,993,398           7,380,478           9,166,243 

              Total                                      182,546,280         184,836,341         164,074,016 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         152,556,172         159,502,922         144,339,647 

              Total                                      178,869,079         188,088,728         168,209,026 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          22,996,711          17,952,942          10,568,126 

              Unregulated Services                       -19,319,509         -21,205,328         -14,703,136 

              Total                                        3,677,202          -3,252,386          -4,135,010 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                 -599,000            -432,000            -678,000 

              Non-Operating Revenue                         -599,000            -432,000             100,000 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0             778,000 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       3,078,202          -3,684,386          -4,813,010 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 6,178               7,527               8,870 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   88,554              66,762              52,874 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              26,934,870          27,938,051 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    17.53%              16.94%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     2,231,434           3,787,589 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.99                1.53 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          36,430,004          39,977,045 

  



 

55 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 42 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         UM Rehabilitation & Orthopedic Institute 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         118,262,200         115,227,400         117,995,400 

              Unregulated Services                         1,205,991           1,438,975           1,667,820 

              TOTAL                                      119,468,191         116,666,375         119,663,220 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                          98,687,200          97,022,400          99,715,400 

              Unregulated Services                           611,991             806,975             916,820 

              TOTAL                                       99,299,191          97,829,375         100,632,220 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           2,099,610             705,340           1,040,606 

              Unregulated Services                         1,870,812           1,810,147           1,841,976 

              TOTAL                                        3,970,422           2,515,487           2,882,582 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         100,786,810          97,727,740         100,756,006 

              Unregulated Services                         2,482,803           2,617,121           2,758,796 

              Total                                      103,269,613         100,344,862         103,514,802 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                          99,422,003          98,425,900          95,494,655 

              Total                                      102,736,500         101,635,160          98,824,910 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                           1,364,808            -698,160           5,261,351 

              Unregulated Services                          -831,695            -592,139            -571,459 

              Total                                          533,113          -1,290,298           4,689,892 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                1,269,000             905,000            -317,000 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        1,269,000             905,000            -317,000 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       1,802,113            -385,298           4,372,892 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 3,602               3,662               3,465 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   34,302              35,399              36,125 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                               5,350,299           6,222,857 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.22%              13.23%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     1,367,772           1,824,710 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.01                1.30 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:           6,718,071           8,047,567 

  



 

56 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 43 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         UM Saint Joseph 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         362,415,700         337,661,500         354,785,600 

              Unregulated Services                         3,646,000          50,839,541          48,931,087 

              TOTAL                                      366,061,700         388,501,041         403,716,687 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         295,642,876         251,556,991         286,710,810 

              Unregulated Services                         3,416,124          24,022,541          23,504,013 

              TOTAL                                      299,059,000         275,579,532         310,214,823 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                             386,513             135,501             389,513 

              Unregulated Services                         2,769,487           8,677,499           5,934,776 

              TOTAL                                        3,156,000           8,813,000           6,324,288 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         296,029,390         251,692,492         287,100,323 

              Unregulated Services                         6,185,610          32,700,040          29,438,788 

              Total                                      302,215,000         284,392,532         316,539,111 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         288,320,773         284,063,416         286,684,281 

              Total                                      310,933,000         350,245,000         344,709,199 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                           7,708,617         -32,370,924             416,042 

              Unregulated Services                       -16,426,617         -33,481,543         -28,586,130 

              Total                                       -8,718,000         -65,852,468         -28,170,088 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):               -5,413,000          -6,660,000           3,763,186 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        1,897,000           5,113,000           3,763,182 

              Non-Operating Expenses                       7,310,000          11,773,000                  -4 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                     -14,131,000         -72,512,468         -24,406,902 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                15,747              15,176              16,217 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   89,366              87,511              92,717 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              22,275,798          23,781,364 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.30%              12.74%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     7,175,579          11,396,757 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.03                1.70 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          39,525,607          45,000,037 

  



 

57 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 44 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         UM Shore Medical Chestertown 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                          64,508,977          62,791,800          65,051,700 

              Unregulated Services                         3,555,824           3,590,997           3,579,369 

              TOTAL                                       68,064,801          66,382,797          68,631,069 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                          49,270,622          48,143,539          49,528,431 

              Unregulated Services                         3,379,824           3,231,997           2,157,309 

              TOTAL                                       52,650,446          51,375,536          51,685,740 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                              53,666              80,723             204,497 

              Unregulated Services                           230,078             223,432             251,867 

              TOTAL                                          283,744             304,155             456,364 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                          49,324,288          48,224,262          49,732,928 

              Unregulated Services                         3,609,902           3,455,429           2,409,176 

              Total                                       52,934,190          51,679,691          52,142,104 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                          40,990,213          46,820,546          50,318,541 

              Total                                       47,353,897          51,865,507          54,293,956 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                           8,334,074           1,403,716            -585,613 

              Unregulated Services                        -2,753,782          -1,589,533          -1,566,239 

              Total                                        5,580,293            -185,817          -2,151,852 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                  969,715           1,251,802             204,000 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        1,041,405           1,251,802             602,016 

              Non-Operating Expenses                          71,690                   0             398,016 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       6,550,008           1,065,985          -1,947,852 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 1,886               2,217               2,666 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   20,771              21,256              20,719 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                               5,346,104           5,751,989 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    13.79%              15.11%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs       499,904           1,268,429 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.49                1.22 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          10,843,377          12,317,063 

  



 

58 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 45 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         UM Shore Medical Dorchester 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                          58,994,300          59,897,900          59,359,900 

              Unregulated Services                         3,348,901           3,250,913           2,472,867 

              TOTAL                                       62,343,201          63,148,813          61,832,767 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                          44,745,961          46,893,694          47,614,371 

              Unregulated Services                           950,026           1,296,834             734,338 

              TOTAL                                       45,695,987          48,190,528          48,348,709 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                             144,703             113,804             222,340 

              Unregulated Services                           269,579             279,429             262,525 

              TOTAL                                          414,282             393,233             484,865 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                          44,890,664          47,007,498          47,836,711 

              Unregulated Services                         1,219,605           1,576,264             996,863 

              Total                                       46,110,269          48,583,761          48,833,574 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                          36,608,786          38,660,406          40,439,854 

              Total                                       39,673,868          42,329,887          43,070,521 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                           8,281,878           8,347,091           7,396,857 

              Unregulated Services                        -1,845,477          -2,093,218          -1,633,805 

              Total                                        6,436,401           6,253,874           5,763,053 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                 -211,918             376,979            -186,965 

              Non-Operating Revenue                         -211,918             376,979            -186,965 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       6,224,482           6,630,853           5,576,088 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 2,408               2,611               2,844 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   23,248              26,416              24,509 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                               5,737,310           5,616,657 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.19%              11.75%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs       750,728             440,210 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.27                0.97 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          13,162,850          11,621,512 

  



 

59 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 46 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         UM Shore Medical Easton 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         187,483,400         186,358,600         184,647,500 

              Unregulated Services                        43,572,553          39,880,874          37,070,671 

              TOTAL                                      231,055,953         226,239,474         221,718,171 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         152,823,340         149,505,473         152,889,603 

              Unregulated Services                        14,648,824          14,312,219          13,326,855 

              TOTAL                                      167,472,165         163,817,692         166,216,458 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                             814,178             918,482           3,652,293 

              Unregulated Services                         1,841,348           1,650,793             934,678 

              TOTAL                                        2,655,526           2,569,275           4,586,971 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         153,637,519         150,423,955         156,541,896 

              Unregulated Services                        16,490,172          15,963,011          14,261,533 

              Total                                      170,127,691         166,386,967         170,803,429 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         140,191,581         137,324,774         141,357,659 

              Total                                      160,828,827         156,018,117         155,789,668 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          13,445,938          13,099,182          15,184,237 

              Unregulated Services                        -4,147,074          -2,730,332            -170,476 

              Total                                        9,298,864          10,368,850          15,013,761 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                7,882,051           4,002,174          -1,952,423 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        7,882,051           4,002,174          -1,952,423 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      17,180,916          14,371,024          13,061,338 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 7,920               8,074               8,313 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   42,620              48,025              51,873 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              13,108,829          12,141,164 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.64%              11.21%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     2,207,562           2,544,508 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.04                1.10 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          26,124,017          25,055,040 

  



 

60 
 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 47 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         UM Upper Chesapeake 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 20146           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         157,472,100         290,000,800         283,588,000 

              Unregulated Services                           117,500             226,600             310,400 

              TOTAL                                      157,589,600         290,227,400         283,898,400 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         138,670,800         241,546,300         237,245,612 

              Unregulated Services                            84,900             121,000             205,200 

              TOTAL                                      138,755,700         241,667,300         237,450,812 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           1,337,000           2,938,400           1,355,018 

              Unregulated Services                         1,275,599           2,642,600           6,192,982 

              TOTAL                                        2,612,599           5,581,000           7,548,000 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         140,007,800         244,484,700         238,600,630 

              Unregulated Services                         1,360,499           2,763,600           6,398,182 

              Total                                      141,368,299         247,248,300         244,998,812 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         116,409,100         220,046,741         217,111,969 

              Total                                      122,009,400         228,970,300         225,852,000 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          23,598,700          24,437,959          21,488,661 

              Unregulated Services                        -4,239,800          -6,159,959          -2,341,849 

              Total                                       19,358,900          18,278,000          19,146,812 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                  187,500           4,122,000          -3,602,000 

              Non-Operating Revenue                          187,500           4,122,000             471,000 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0           4,073,000 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      19,546,400          22,400,000          15,544,812 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 5,940              12,589              12,968 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   67,110             130,608             123,564 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              25,243,447          23,360,469 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.77%              12.46%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     4,387,889           6,498,675 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.94                1.38 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          44,639,054          43,097,036 

                       

                                                 
6 UM Upper Chesapeake changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FYE report of 6 months. 



 

61 
 

 

HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 48 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Union Hospital of Cecil County 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         157,913,800         153,372,900         148,428,400 

              Unregulated Services                        31,936,900          35,956,700          36,898,300 

              TOTAL                                      189,850,700         189,329,600         185,326,700 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         130,347,100         125,947,900         121,323,300 

              Unregulated Services                        14,803,200          15,230,700          15,504,200 

              TOTAL                                      145,150,300         141,178,600         136,827,500 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           2,557,500           2,787,800             618,900 

              Unregulated Services                         2,080,699           2,087,100           1,916,900 

              TOTAL                                        4,638,199           4,874,900           2,535,800 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         132,904,600         128,735,700         121,942,200 

              Unregulated Services                        16,883,899          17,317,800          17,421,100 

              Total                                      149,788,499         146,053,500         139,363,300 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         117,995,300         112,982,000         106,988,700 

              Total                                      146,416,200         140,941,500         134,374,600 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          14,909,300          15,753,700          14,953,500 

              Unregulated Services                       -11,537,000         -10,641,700          -9,964,800 

              Total                                        3,372,300           5,112,000           4,988,700 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                7,438,200           4,169,500            -732,300 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        7,725,300           4,771,900            -344,500 

              Non-Operating Expenses                         287,100             602,400             387,800 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      10,810,500           9,281,500           4,256,400 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 5,045               5,750               6,347 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   44,457              47,563              50,709 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              10,347,606          10,063,684 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    10.60%              11.24%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     2,510,893           3,481,422 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.09                1.60 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          20,395,729          19,633,126 

  



 

62 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 49 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         University MIEMSS 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         202,364,100         188,680,900         181,819,200 

              Unregulated Services                         5,165,260           3,609,000           3,046,000 

              TOTAL                                      207,529,360         192,289,900         184,865,200 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         166,218,825         154,423,000         154,091,408 

              Unregulated Services                         5,165,260           3,609,000           3,046,000 

              TOTAL                                      171,384,085         158,032,000         157,137,408 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           3,126,000           3,091,000           3,263,000 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0                   0 

              TOTAL                                        3,126,000           3,091,000           3,263,000 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         169,344,825         157,514,000         157,354,408 

              Unregulated Services                         5,165,260           3,609,000           3,046,000 

              Total                                      174,510,085         161,123,000         160,400,408 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         149,776,000         136,670,900         133,571,300 

              Total                                      155,394,000         144,594,000         140,164,000 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          19,568,825          20,843,100          23,783,108 

              Unregulated Services                          -452,740          -4,314,100          -3,546,700 

              Total                                       19,116,085          16,529,000          20,236,408 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                1,500,000           1,500,000           1,500,000 

              Non-Operating Revenue                          900,000             791,450           1,500,000 

              Non-Operating Expenses                        -600,000            -708,550                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      20,616,085          18,029,000          21,736,408 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                 5,367               7,874               8,106 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   39,0797              16,780              17,536 

 

          

  

                                                 
7 University MIEMSS was approved for an outpatient center allowing for less severe cases to be charged as an outpatient rather than an 
inpatient admission. 



 

63 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 50 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         University UMCC 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                               June 2014            June 2013           June 20128 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                                   0                   0          59,320,800 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0                   0 

              TOTAL                                                0                   0          59,320,800 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                                   0                   0          51,737,776 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0                   0 

              TOTAL                                                0                   0          51,737,776 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                                   0                   0              94,000 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0                   0 

              TOTAL                                                0                   0              94,000 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                                   0                   0          51,831,776 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0                   0 

              Total                                                0                   0          51,831,776 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                                   0                   0          57,727,800 

              Total                                                0                   0          58,704,000 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                                   0                   0          -5,896,024 

              Unregulated Services                                 0                   0            -976,200 

              Total                                                0                   0          -6,872,224 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                        0                   0             349,202 

              Non-Operating Revenue                                0                   0             335,000 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0             -14,202 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                               0                   0          -6,523,022 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                     0                   0               1,534 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                        0                   0              38,043 

 

  

                                                 
8 University UMCC financials were merged with UMMS beginning with FY 2013. 



 

64 
 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 51 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         University of Maryland Medical Center 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 20139           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                       1,296,211,400       1,241,601,500       1,179,258,000 

              Unregulated Services                        10,519,886          11,074,000          11,002,797 

              TOTAL                                    1,306,731,286       1,252,675,500       1,190,260,797 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                       1,086,670,121       1,068,680,949       1,016,430,615 

              Unregulated Services                        10,407,916          10,489,051          10,714,232 

              TOTAL                                    1,097,078,037       1,079,170,000       1,027,144,847 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                          18,824,460          36,092,760          13,102,329 

              Unregulated Services                        50,534,530          43,072,240          38,305,671 

              TOTAL                                       69,358,990          79,165,000          51,408,000 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                       1,105,494,581       1,104,773,709       1,029,532,944 

              Unregulated Services                        60,942,446          53,561,291          49,019,904 

              Total                                    1,166,437,027       1,158,335,000       1,078,552,847 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                       1,060,074,815       1,054,664,631         938,351,058 

              Total                                    1,142,114,001       1,123,809,000       1,019,533,500 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          45,419,769          50,109,078          91,181,886 

              Unregulated Services                       -21,096,733         -15,583,078         -32,162,539 

              Total                                       24,323,036          34,526,000          59,019,347 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):              149,439,000          90,290,000        -114,569,797 

              Non-Operating Revenue                      149,439,000          90,290,000                   0 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0         114,569,797 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                     173,762,036         124,816,000         -55,550,450 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                26,874              26,586              27,143 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                  247,851             204,962             195,504 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                             113,559,962         100,649,960 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    15.63%              14.60%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs    34,282,646          40,583,574 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.09                1.42 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:         164,464,324         158,111,287 

 

                                                 
9 University UMCC financials were merged with UMMC beginning in FY 2013. 



 

65 
 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 52 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Washington Adventist Hospital 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            December 2014       June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         260,306,100         245,900,400         260,716,100 

              Unregulated Services                             3,791              23,951             685,558 

              TOTAL                                      260,309,891         245,924,351         261,401,658 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         209,906,016         196,111,014         203,900,463 

              Unregulated Services                             3,791              23,399             682,387 

              TOTAL                                      209,909,807         196,134,413         204,582,850 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           1,378,906           3,888,835           2,588,088 

              Unregulated Services                         3,547,691           2,651,790           3,107,623 

              TOTAL                                        4,926,597           6,540,625           5,695,711 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         211,284,922         199,999,849         206,488,551 

              Unregulated Services                         3,551,482           2,675,189           3,790,010 

              Total                                      214,836,404         202,675,038         210,278,561 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         194,645,259         199,029,900         203,178,114 

              Total                                      210,709,734         213,396,004         216,661,910 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          16,639,663             969,949           3,310,437 

              Unregulated Services                       -12,512,993         -11,690,915          -9,693,786 

              Total                                        4,126,670         -10,720,966          -6,383,349 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):               -1,500,747          -1,509,711          -1,012,274 

              Non-Operating Revenue                       -1,500,747          -1,509,711            -506,403 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0             505,871 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                       2,625,923         -12,230,677          -7,395,623 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                11,472              11,648              13,111 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   56,831              60,448              61,504 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              23,064,406          24,244,415 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.50%              12.58%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     7,362,484           7,802,369 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 1.00                1.00 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          45,984,233          45,303,339 

  



 

66 
 

 

                                       HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 

                               DISCLOSURE OF HOSPITAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

                                              FISCAL YEAR 2012 TO 2014                                 Page 53 

       ======================================================================================================= 

 

         Western Maryland Regional M. C. 

 

         FISCAL YEAR ENDING                            June 2014           June 2013           June 2012 

                                                      --------------      --------------      -------------- 

         Gross Patient Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                         317,898,800         314,237,300         308,555,800 

              Unregulated Services                        62,831,500          60,556,700          57,610,800 

              TOTAL                                      380,730,300         374,794,000         366,166,600 

         Net Patient Revenue (NPR): 

              Regulated Services                         255,447,200         253,404,600         239,944,900 

              Unregulated Services                        37,907,800          37,853,500          43,571,300 

              TOTAL                                      293,355,000         291,258,100         283,516,200 

         Other Operating Revenue: 

              Regulated Services                           5,313,699           6,605,700           2,672,900 

              Unregulated Services                         2,673,100           2,881,300           2,376,100 

              TOTAL                                        7,986,799           9,487,000           5,049,000 

         Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 

              Regulated Services                         260,760,899         260,010,300         242,617,800 

              Unregulated Services                        40,580,900          40,734,800          45,947,400 

              Total                                      301,341,799         300,745,100         288,565,200 

         Total Operating Expenses: 

              Regulated Services                         221,999,899         230,006,375         240,958,708 

              Total                                      281,594,900         289,875,700         298,432,900 

         Net Operating Profit (Loss): 

              Regulated Services                          38,761,001          30,003,925           1,659,092 

              Unregulated Services                       -19,014,101         -19,134,525         -11,526,792 

              Total                                       19,746,900          10,869,400          -9,867,700 

 

         Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss):                5,514,799           4,332,300           8,144,000 

              Non-Operating Revenue                        5,514,799           4,332,300           8,144,000 

              Non-Operating Expenses                               0                   0                   0 

 

         Total Excess Profit (Loss):                      25,261,700          15,201,700          -1,723,700 

 

         Total Regulated Inpatient Admissions:                11,805              13,029              13,814 

         Total Regulated Outpatient Visits:                   93,304              96,697             101,271 

 

 

         Readmission Charges:                              21,784,662          25,583,028 

         Risk Adjusted Readmission Percent:                    12.78%              13.70%  

         Potentially Preventable Conditions (PPC) Costs     5,052,564           9,317,773 

         Risk Adjusted PPC Rate:                                 0.84                1.37 

         Potentially Avoidable Utilization Costs:          40,278,963          49,280,850 



67 
 

HEALTH SERVICES COST REVIEW COMMISSION 
DISCLOSURE OF HOSPTIAL FINANCIAL AND STATISTICAL DATA 

FISCAL YEAR 2014-2012 
 
 
ALL SPECIALTY HOSPITALS 
 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING YEAR   2014 YEAR   2013 YEAR   2012 
     
Gross Patient Revenue 312,175,783 357,921,238 393,606,336  
Net Patient Revenue (NPR) 239,027,971 285,589,920 318,734,693  
Other Operating Revenue 1,139,359 5,057,969 3,403,284  
Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 240,167,330 290,647,889 322,137,977  
Operating Expenses 228,361,857 266,414,937 327,855,359  
Inpatient Admissions (IPAs) 16,658 18,115 18,982  
Net Operating Profit (Loss) 11,805,473 24,232,952 (5,717,382) 
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss) 16,932,104 8,279,291 (6,174,190) 
Total Excess Profits (Loss) 28,737,577 32,512,243 (11,891,572) 

 
 
 
Adventist Behavioral Health – Rockville  
 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING YEAR   2014 YEAR   2013 YEAR   2012 
      
Gross Patient Revenue 36,671,700 36,298,100 31,489,200  
Net Patient Revenue (NPR) 26,291,671 27,395,522 26,042,739  
Other Operating Revenue 66,628 444,774 165,419  
Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 26,358,299 27,840,296 26,208,158  
Operating Expenses 24,836,429 24,401,558 23,105,596  
Inpatient Admissions (IPAs) 2,949 2,705 2,738  
Net Operating Profit (Loss) 1,521,870 3,438,738 3,102,562  
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss) 3,402,912 (1,191,069) (2,598,512) 
Total Excess Profits (Loss) 4,924,782 2,247,669 504,050  

 
  



 

68 
 

Adventist Rehab Hospital of MD 
 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING YEAR   2014 YEAR   2013 YEAR   2012 
      
Gross Patient Revenue 63,183,083 59,348,989 51,233,400  
Net Patient Revenue (NPR) 31,243,964 32,969,459 28,199,348  
Other Operating Revenue 393,446 360,155 186,348  
Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 31,637,410 33,329,614 28,385,696  
Operating Expenses  34,784,403 33,160,136 29,121,717  
Inpatient Admissions (IPAs) 1,801 1,574 1,581  
Net Operating Profit (Loss) (3,146,993) 169,478 (736,021) 
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss) 103,663 2,949,432 3,854,931  
Total Excess Profits (Loss) (3,043,330) 3,118,910 3,118,910  

 
 
 
Brook Lane Health Services 
 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING YEAR   2014 YEAR   2013 YEAR   2012 
      
Gross Patient Revenue 14,512,500 14,918,100 14,051,500  
Net Patient Revenue (NPR) 11,103,500 11,758,600 11,264,200  
Other Operating Revenue 120,300 124,000 161,300  
Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 11,223,800 11,882,600 11,425,500  
Operating Expenses  14,386,700 13,962,200 12,618,800  
Inpatient Admissions (IPAs) 1677 1,775 1,973  
Net Operating Profit (Loss) (3,162,900) (2,079,600) (1,193,300) 
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss) 3,474,000 2,586,800 2,674,000  
Total Excess Profits (Loss) 311,100 507,200 1,480,700  

 
  



 

69 
 

Adventist Behavioral Health – Eastern Shore 
 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING YEAR   2014 YEAR   2013 YEAR   2012 
       
Gross Patient Revenue 2,409,200 2,508,000 2,457,650  
Net Patient Revenue (NPR) 1,896,662 2,045,654 2,101,900  
Other Operating Revenue 0 0 0  
Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 1,896,662 2,045,654 2,101,900  
Operating Expenses  576,673 616,191 1,000,156  
Inpatient Admissions (IPAs) 297 271 304  
Net Operating Profit (Loss) 1,319,989 1,429,463 1,101,744  
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss) 0 0 0  
Total Excess Profits (Loss) 1,319,989 1,429,463 1,101,744  

 
 
 
Levindale Hospital 
 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING YEAR   2014 YEAR   2013 YEAR   2012 
   *Under Acute   
Gross Patient Revenue  53,610,200 52,498,900  
Net Patient Revenue (NPR)  48,264,286 49,039,494  
Other Operating Revenue  1,779,100 1,990,000  
Net Operating Revenue (NOR)  50,043,386 51,029,494  
Operating Expenses   44,401,061 43,340,924  
Inpatient Admissions (IPAs)  1,324 1,578  
Net Operating Profit (Loss)  5,642,325 7,688,570  
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss)  (3,534,070) (7,177,520) 
Total Excess Profits (Loss)  2,108,255 511,050  

 
  



 

70 
 

Mt. Washington Pediatric Hospital 
 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING YEAR   2014 YEAR   2013 YEAR   2012 
      
Gross Patient Revenue 55,464,000 53,308,449 49,446,660  
Net Patient Revenue (NPR) 50,598,699 49,434,005 45,713,951  
Other Operating Revenue 1,356,678 2,432,381 444,185  
Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 51,955,377 51,866,386 46,158,136  
Operating Expenses  44,459,476 42,963,622 40,690,987  
Inpatient Admissions (IPAs) 795 790 691  
Net Operating Profit (Loss) 7,495,901 8,902,764 5,467,149  
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss) 893,535 (1,320,561) (3,419,720) 
Total Excess Profits (Loss) 8,389,436 7,582,203 2,047,429  

 
 
 
Sheppard Pratt Hospital 
 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING YEAR   2014 YEAR   2013 YEAR   2012 
        
Gross Patient Revenue 139,935,300 137,929,400 140,136,100  
Net Patient Revenue (NPR) 117,893,475 113,722,394 111,243,237  
Other Operating Revenue (797,693) (82,441) 206,952  
Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 117,095,782 113,639,954 111,450,189  
Operating Expenses  109,318,177 106,910,170 108,750,802  
Inpatient Admissions (IPAs) 9,139 9,676 9,389  
Net Operating Profit (Loss) 7,777,606 6,729,784 2,699,387  
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss) 9,057,994 8,788,759 (41,437) 
Total Excess Profits (Loss) 16,835,600 15,518,543 2,657,950  

 
  



 

71 
 

St. Luke Institute 
 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING YEAR   2014 YEAR   2013 YEAR   2012 
      
Gross Patient Revenue 0 0 6,213,526  
Net Patient Revenue (NPR) 0 0 6,171,824  
Other Operating Revenue 0 0 249,127  
Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 0 0 6,420,951  
Operating Expenses  0 0 7,420,561  
Inpatient Admissions (IPAs) 0 0 83  
Net Operating Profit (Loss) 0 0 (999,610) 
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss) 0 0 2,997,905  
Total Excess Profits (Loss) 0 0 1,998,295  

 
 
 
University Specialty Hospital 
 

FISCAL YEAR ENDING YEAR   2014 YEAR   2013 YEAR   2012 
       
Gross Patient Revenue 0 0 46,079,400  
Net Patient Revenue (NPR) 0 0 38,958,000  
Other Operating Revenue 0 0 (47) 
Net Operating Revenue (NOR) 0 0 38,957,953  
Operating Expenses  0 0 61,805,816  
Inpatient Admissions (IPAs) 0 0 645  
Net Operating Profit (Loss) 0 0 (22,847,863) 
Total Non-Operating Profit (Loss) 0 0 (2,463,837) 
Total Excess Profits (Loss) 0 0 (25,311,700) 



CHANGE IN UNCOMPENSATED CARE (UCC):  EXHIBIT I-a 
REGULATED OPERATIONS 

Listed in Alphabetical Order by Region 
 

72 
 

 2013 2014  

Hospital 
Area Hospital 

Gross 
Revenues 

Charity & 
Bad Debts 

UCC
% 

Gross 
Revenues 

Charity & 
Bad Debts 

UCC
% 

% Change 
UCC 

Amount 
M E T R O Anne Arundel Medical Center 541,867,800 28,229,300 5.21 554,132,400 28,030,100 5.06 -0.7 

 Bon Secours Hospital 121,044,100 21,934,644 18.12 129,714,300 18,907,653 14.58 -13.8 

 Bowie Emergency Center 13,677,900 3,095,262 22.63 16,513,400 3,176,307 19.23 2.6 

 Doctors Community Hospital 216,854,500 20,137,582 9.29 222,145,400 21,083,439 9.49 4.7 

 Fort Washington Medical Center 46,156,625 6,289,082 13.63 48,565,970 5,271,258 10.85 -16.2 

 Germantown Emergency Center 12,992,000 3,426,331 26.37 14,059,900 2,928,631 20.83 -14.5 

 Greater Baltimore Medical Center 421,137,700 13,135,500 3.12 426,965,000 14,448,600 3.38 10.0 

 Holy Cross Hospital 461,351,200 42,720,100 9.26 468,876,700 41,181,900 8.78 -3.6 

 Howard County General Hospital 278,901,600 16,701,844 5.99 281,805,600 15,945,000 5.66 -4.5 

 Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center 596,807,300 55,404,000 9.28 605,106,300 53,366,000 8.82 -3.7 

 Johns Hopkins Hospital 2,132,419,000 90,951,400 4.27 2,172,517,900 90,418,800 4.16 -0.6 

 Laurel Regional Hospital 121,542,100 17,298,770 14.23 118,865,000 13,262,786 11.16 -23.3 

 Levindale10 0 0 0 54,541,800 1,645,534 3.02 N/A 

 MedStar Franklin Square 469,792,200 33,165,956 7.06 486,467,000 28,840,763 5.93 -13.0 

 MedStar Good Samaritan 295,736,800 19,525,089 6.60 299,250,000 18,307,883 6.12 -6.2 

 MedStar Harbor Hospital 201,141,000 17,275,577 8.59 205,146,300 12,384,997 6.04 -28.3 

 MedStar Montgomery General 166,869,100 10,997,703 6.59 167,893,100 9,139,362 5.44 -16.9 

 MedStar Southern Maryland 259,132,417 17,742,561 6.85 261,812,300 21,607,448 8.25 21.8 

 MedStar Union Memorial 406,581,900 33,074,497 8.13 415,164,300 23,163,918 5.58 -30.0 

 Mercy Medical Center 470,759,600 39,008,070 8.29 489,187,300 39,462,900 8.07 1.2 

                                                 
10 FY14 is the first year that Levindale was designated as an acute care hospital by CMS. 



CHANGE IN UNCOMPENSATED CARE (UCC):  EXHIBIT I-a 
REGULATED OPERATIONS 

Listed in Alphabetical Order by Region 
 

73 
 

 2013 2014  

Hospital 
Area Hospital 

Gross 
Revenues 

Charity & 
Bad Debts 

UCC
% 

Gross 
Revenues 

Charity & 
Bad Debts 

UCC
% 

% Change 
UCC 

Amount 
 Northwest Hospital Center 248,252,700 20,881,783 8.41 249,134,500 19,327,600 7.76 -7.4 

 Prince Georges' Hospital Center 249,192,555 38,639,516 15.51 267,282,400 34,867,927 13.05 -9.8 

 Queen Anne’s Emergency Center 4,999,900 246,148 4.92 5,190,800 327,866 6.32 33.2 

 Saint Agnes Hospital 404,669,900 32,203,974 7.96 410,191,100 25,327,088 6.17 -21.4 

 Shady Grove Adventist Hospital 375,189,800 25,364,171 6.76 383,323,300 29,442,581 7.68 16.1 

 Sinai Hospital of Baltimore 684,516,800 37,059,900 5.41 699,430,000 42,571,600 6.09 14.9 

 Suburban Hospital 280,578,500 14,223,180 5.07 289,286,600 12,582,100 4.35 -11.5 

 UM Baltimore Washington 376,812,800 36,844,300 9.78 393,181,900 31,494,716 8.01 -14.5 

 UM Midtown 216,173,800 32,903,997 15.22 222,427,600 33,531,633 15.08 1.9 

 UM Rehabilitation & Orthopedic Institute 115,227,400 5,988,426 5.20 118,262,200 8,436,183 7.13 40.9 

 UM Saint Joseph 337,661,500 17,305,468 5.13 362,415,700 22,836,124 6.30 32.0 

 UM Upper Chesapeake11 290,000,800 17,640,400 6.08 157,472,100 8,242,700 5.23 N/A 

 University MIEMSS 188,680,900 42,108,564 22.32 202,364,100 40,596,352 20.06 -3.6 

 University of Maryland Medical Center 1,241,601,500 67,006,535 5.40 1,296,211,400 71,156,193 5.49 6.2 

 Washington Adventist Hospital 245,900,400 34,627,375 14.08 260,306,100 31,746,079 12.20 -8.3 

M E T R O12  12,204,223,297 895,516,605 7.34 12,543,195,870 865,171,787 6.90 -3.4 
 

                                                 
11 UM Upper Chesapeake changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FYE report of 6 months. 
12 The Metro summary line excludes Levindale and UM Upper Chesapeake hospitals. 



CHANGE IN UNCOMPENSATED CARE (UCC):  EXHIBIT I-a 
REGULATED OPERATIONS 

Listed in Alphabetical Order by Region 
 

74 
 

 2013 2014  

Hospital 
Area Hospital 

Gross 
Revenues 

Charity & 
Bad Debts 

UCC
% 

Gross 
Revenues 

Charity & 
Bad Debts 

UCC
% 

% Change 
UCC 

Amount 
R U R A L Atlantic General Hospital 99,487,100 7,638,100 7.68 102,693,200 7,165,200 6.98 -6.2 

 Calvert Memorial Hospital 138,862,900 8,548,160 6.16 141,935,300 9,268,967 6.53 8.4 

 Carroll County General Hospital 249,075,200 11,694,600 4.70 251,985,400 11,185,592 4.44 -4.4 

 Frederick Memorial Hospital 337,093,700 20,318,595 6.03 339,660,800 22,831,994 6.72 12.4 

 Garrett County Memorial Hospital 42,302,400 4,593,416 10.86 45,202,600 4,192,263 9.27 -8.7 

 McCready Hospital 17,975,600 1,495,267 8.32 16,638,000 1,412,273 8.49 -5.6 

 MedStar Saint Mary's Hospital 154,603,000 13,099,310 8.47 157,936,000 8,667,483 5.49 -33.8 

 Meritus Medical Center 301,350,700 21,682,200 7.20 305,141,600 22,551,500 7.39 4.0 

 Peninsula Regional Medical Center 412,641,500 28,334,500 6.87 416,388,900 24,743,900 5.94 -12.7 

 UM Charles Regional Medical Center 137,003,900 10,219,211 7.46 144,785,724 10,881,673 7.52 6.5 

 UM Harford Memorial Hospital13 103,499,300 12,876,361 12.44 53,719,100 5,242,600 9.76 N/A 

 UM Shore Medical Chestertown 62,791,800 6,363,467 10.13 64,508,977 6,551,013 10.16 2.9 

 UM Shore Medical Dorchester 59,897,900 4,186,127 6.99 58,994,300 5,504,997 9.33 31.5 

 UM Shore Medical Easton 186,358,600 10,916,970 5.86 187,483,400 11,857,425 6.32 8.6 

 Union Hospital of Cecil County 153,372,900 13,323,600 8.69 157,913,800 12,201,400 7.73 -8.4 

 Western Maryland Regional M. C. 314,237,300 21,637,900 6.89 317,898,800 20,653,700 6.50 -4.5 

R U R A L14  2,667,054,500 184,051,423 6.90 2,709,166,801 179,669,380 6.63 -2.4 

T O T A L15 All Acute Hospitals 14,871,277,797 1,079,568,028 7.26 15,252,362,671 1,044,841,167 6.85 -3.2 
 

                                                 
13 UM Harford Memorial changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FYE report of 6 months. 
14 The Rural summary line excludes UM Harford Memorial 
15 The total line excludes Levindale, UM Harford Memorial, and UM Upper Chesapeake Hospitals. 



CHANGE IN UNCOMPENSATED CARE (UCC):  EXHIBIT I-b 
REGULATED OPERATIONS 

Listed by Percentage of Uncompensated Care by Region 
 

75 
 

 2013 2014  

Hospital 
Area Hospital 

Gross 
Revenues 

Charity & 
Bad Debts 

UCC
% 

Gross 
Revenues 

Charity & 
Bad Debts 

UCC
% 

% Change 
UCC 

Amount 
M E T R O Germantown Emergency Center 12,992,000 3,426,331 26.37 14,059,900 2,928,631 20.83 -14.5 

 University MIEMSS 188,680,900 42,108,564 22.32 202,364,100 40,596,352 20.06 -3.6 

 Bowie Emergency Center 13,677,900 3,095,262 22.63 16,513,400 3,176,307 19.23 2.6 

 UM Midtown 216,173,800 32,903,997 15.22 222,427,600 33,531,633 15.08 1.9 

 Bon Secours Hospital 121,044,100 21,934,644 18.12 129,714,300 18,907,653 14.58 -13.8 

 Prince Georges' Hospital Center 249,192,555 38,639,516 15.51 267,282,400 34,867,927 13.05 -9.8 

 Washington Adventist Hospital 245,900,400 34,627,375 14.08 260,306,100 31,746,079 12.20 -8.3 

 Laurel Regional Hospital 121,542,100 17,298,770 14.23 118,865,000 13,262,786 11.16 -23.3 

 Fort Washington Medical Center 46,156,625 6,289,082 13.63 48,565,970 5,271,258 10.85 -16.2 

 Doctors Community Hospital 216,854,500 20,137,582 9.29 222,145,400 21,083,439 9.49 4.7 

 Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center 596,807,300 55,404,000 9.28 605,106,300 53,366,000 8.82 -3.7 

 Holy Cross Hospital 461,351,200 42,720,100 9.26 468,876,700 41,181,900 8.78 -3.6 

 MedStar Southern Maryland 259,132,417 17,742,561 6.85 261,812,300 21,607,448 8.25 21.8 

 Mercy Medical Center 470,759,600 39,008,070 8.29 489,187,300 39,462,900 8.07 1.2 

 UM Baltimore Washington 376,812,800 36,844,300 9.78 393,181,900 31,494,716 8.01 -14.5 

 Northwest Hospital Center 248,252,700 20,881,783 8.41 249,134,500 19,327,600 7.76 -7.4 

 Shady Grove Adventist Hospital 375,189,800 25,364,171 6.76 383,323,300 29,442,581 7.68 16.1 

 UM Rehabilitation & Orthopedic Institute 115,227,400 5,988,426 5.20 118,262,200 8,436,183 7.13 40.9 

 Queen Anne’s Emergency Center 4,999,900 246,148 4.92 5,190,800 327,866 6.32 33.2 

 UM Saint Joseph 337,661,500 17,305,468 5.13 362,415,700 22,836,124 6.30 32.0 



CHANGE IN UNCOMPENSATED CARE (UCC):  EXHIBIT I-b 
REGULATED OPERATIONS 

Listed by Percentage of Uncompensated Care by Region 
 

76 
 

 2013 2014  
 Saint Agnes Hospital 404,669,900 32,203,974 7.96 410,191,100 25,327,088 6.17 -21.4 

 MedStar Good Samaritan 295,736,800 19,525,089 6.60 299,250,000 18,307,883 6.12 -6.2 

 Sinai Hospital of Baltimore 684,516,800 37,059,900 5.41 699,430,000 42,571,600 6.09 14.9 

 MedStar Harbor Hospital 201,141,000 17,275,577 8.59 205,146,300 12,384,997 6.04 -28.3 

 MedStar Franklin Square 469,792,200 33,165,956 7.06 486,467,000 28,840,763 5.93 -13.0 

 Howard County General Hospital 278,901,600 16,701,844 5.99 281,805,600 15,945,000 5.66 -4.5 

 MedStar Union Memorial 406,581,900 33,074,497 8.13 415,164,300 23,163,918 5.58 -30.0 

 University of Maryland Medical Center 1,241,601,500 67,006,535 5.40 1,296,211,400 71,156,193 5.49 6.2 

 MedStar Montgomery General 166,869,100 10,997,703 6.59 167,893,100 9,139,362 5.44 -16.9 

 UM Upper Chesapeake16 290,000,800 17,640,400 6.08 157,472,100 8,242,700 5.23 N/A 

 Anne Arundel Medical Center 541,867,800 28,229,300 5.21 554,132,400 28,030,100 5.06 -0.7 

 Suburban Hospital 280,578,500 14,223,180 5.07 289,286,600 12,582,100 4.35 -11.5 

 Johns Hopkins Hospital 2,132,419,000 90,951,400 4.27 2,172,517,900 90,418,800 4.16 -0.6 

 Greater Baltimore Medical Center 421,137,700 13,135,500 3.12 426,965,000 14,448,600 3.38 10.0 

 Levindale17 0 0 0 54,541,800 1,645,534 3.02 N/A 

M E T R O18  12,204,223,297 895,516,605 7.34 12,543,195,870 865,171,787 6.90 -3.4 

                                                 
16 UM Upper Chesapeake changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FYE report of 6 months. 
17 FY14 is the first year that Levindale was designed as an acute care hospital by CMS. 
18 The Metro summary line excludes Levindale and UM Upper Chesapeake hospitals. 



CHANGE IN UNCOMPENSATED CARE (UCC):  EXHIBIT I-b 
REGULATED OPERATIONS 

Listed by Percentage of Uncompensated Care by Region 
 

77 
 

 2013 2014  

Hospital 
Area Hospital 

Gross 
Revenues 

Charity & 
Bad Debts 

UCC
% 

Gross 
Revenues 

Charity & 
Bad Debts 

UCC
% 

% Change 
UCC 

Amount 
R U R A L UM Shore Medical Chestertown 62,791,800 6,363,467 10.13 64,508,977 6,551,013 10.16 2.9 

 UM Harford Memorial Hospital19 103,499,300 12,876,361 12.44 53,719,100 5,242,600 9.76 N/A 

 UM Shore Medical Dorchester 59,897,900 4,186,127 6.99 58,994,300 5,504,997 9.33 31.5 

 Garrett County Memorial Hospital 42,302,400 4,593,416 10.86 45,202,600 4,192,263 9.27 -8.7 

 McCready Hospital 17,975,600 1,495,267 8.32 16,638,000 1,412,273 8.49 -5.6 

 Union Hospital of Cecil County 153,372,900 13,323,600 8.69 157,913,800 12,201,400 7.73 -8.4 

 UM Charles Regional Medical Center 137,003,900 10,219,211 7.46 144,785,724 10,881,673 7.52 6.5 

 Meritus Medical Center 301,350,700 21,682,200 7.20 305,141,600 22,551,500 7.39 4.0 

 Atlantic General Hospital 99,487,100 7,638,100 7.68 102,693,200 7,165,200 6.98 -6.2 

 Frederick Memorial Hospital 337,093,700 20,318,595 6.03 339,660,800 22,831,994 6.72 12.4 

 Calvert Memorial Hospital 138,862,900 8,548,160 6.16 141,935,300 9,268,967 6.53 8.4 

 Western Maryland Regional M. C. 314,237,300 21,637,900 6.89 317,898,800 20,653,700 6.50 -4.5 

 UM Shore Medical Easton 186,358,600 10,916,970 5.86 187,483,400 11,857,425 6.32 8.6 

 Peninsula Regional Medical Center 412,641,500 28,334,500 6.87 416,388,900 24,743,900 5.94 -12.7 

 MedStar Saint Mary's Hospital 154,603,000 13,099,310 8.47 157,936,000 8,667,483 5.49 -33.8 

 Carroll County General Hospital 249,075,200 11,694,600 4.70 251,985,400 11,185,592 4.44 -4.4 

R U R A L20  2,667,054,500 184,051,423 6.90 2,709,166,801 179,669,380 6.63 -2.4 

T O T A L21 All Acute Hospitals 14,871,277,797 1,079,568,028 7.26 15,252,362,671 1,044,841,167 6.85 -3.2 

                                                 
19 UM Harford Memorial changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FYE report of 6 months.  
20 The Rural summary line excludes UM Harford Memorial 
21 The Total line excludes Levindale, UM Harford Memorial, and UM Upper Chesapeake Hospitals. 



CHANGE IN TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS :   EXHIBIT II-a 
REGULATED & UNREGULATED OPERATIONS 

Listed by Alphabetical Order 
 

78 
 

 2013 2014  

Hospital 
Regulated 
Operating 

Unregulated 
Operating 

Total 
Operating 

Regulated 
Operating 

Unregulated 
Operating 

Total 
Operating 

% Change
Reg. 

Operating 

% Change 
Total 

Operating 
All Acute Hospitals22 646,386,668 -505,178,997 141,207,673 913,178,165 -516,346,047 396,832,119 41.27 181.03 

Anne Arundel Medical Center 16,002,451 -14,887,851 1,114,600 25,326,003 -13,213,903 12,112,100 58.26 986.68 

Atlantic General Hospital 9,222,349 -7,995,621 1,226,727 8,601,500 -10,086,613 -1,485,113 -6.73 -221.06 

Bon Secours Hospital 2,560,429 -13,579,925 -11,019,496 15,956,273 -13,952,517 2,003,755 523.19 118.18 

Bowie Emergency Center -945,065 -208,041 -1,153,106 1,943,397 34,401 1,977,798 305.64 271.52 

Calvert Memorial Hospital 14,541,508 -7,631,293 6,910,215 16,797,976 -8,340,143 8,457,833 15.52 22.40 

Carroll County General Hospital 25,286,993 -5,037,706 20,249,287 26,236,823 -5,435,765 20,801,058 3.76 2.72 

Doctors Community Hospital 4,422,646 -7,140,124 -2,717,478 10,251,378 -9,356,366 895,012 131.79 132.94 

Fort Washington Medical Center 1,223,777 -648,495 575,282 2,028,867 -648,722 1,380,145 65.79 139.91 

Frederick Memorial Hospital 17,216,148 -17,819,196 -603,048 16,325,142 -13,195,104 3,130,038 -5.18 619.04 

Garrett County Memorial Hospital 2,570,135 -1,284,004 1,286,131 4,171,544 -810,322 3,361,223 62.31 161.34 

Germantown Emergency Center -1,690,370 -195,557 -1,885,927 -1,882,264 -37,105 -1,919,369 -11.35 -1.77 

Greater Baltimore Medical Center 29,521,863 -14,587,186 14,934,677 30,962,700 -10,118,000 20,844,700 4.88 39.57 

Holy Cross Hospital 42,986,566 -18,836,520 24,150,046 41,046,525 -17,751,525 23,295,000 -4.51 -3.54 

Howard County General Hospital 18,538,282 -7,841,142 10,697,140 10,395,296 -6,818,406 3,576,890 -43.93 -66.56 

Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center 5,832,881 -13,886,881 -8,054,000 21,241,512 -11,823,012 9,418,500 264.17 216.94 

Johns Hopkins Hospital 17,927,223 -1,959,024 15,968,199 24,951,117 6,477,361 31,428,478 39.18 96.82 

Laurel Regional Hospital -2,910,849 -7,359,314 -10,270,163 -3,598,137 -5,637,852 -9,235,989 -23.61 10.07 

Levindale23 0 0 0 7,214,700 -3,988,800 3,225,900 N/A N/A 

                                                 
22 The All Acute Hospitals line excludes Levindale, UM Harford Memorial, and UM Upper Chesapeake Hospitals. 
23 FY14 is the first year that Levindale was designed as an acute care hospital by CMS. 



CHANGE IN TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS :   EXHIBIT II-a 
REGULATED & UNREGULATED OPERATIONS 

Listed by Alphabetical Order 
 

79 
 

 2013 2014  

Hospital 
Regulated 
Operating 

Unregulated 
Operating 

Total 
Operating 

Regulated 
Operating 

Unregulated 
Operating 

Total 
Operating 

% Change
Reg. 

Operating 

% Change 
Total 

Operating 
McCready Hospital -298,269 763,412 465,143 2,347,500 -583,451 1,764,049 887.04 279.25 

MedStar Franklin Square 26,574,956 -26,514,792 60,164 40,797,801 -19,480,307 21,317,494 53.52 35332.31 

MedStar Good Samaritan 12,773,906 -20,971,324 -8,197,418 25,433,656 -21,465,032 3,968,625 99.11 148.41 

MedStar Harbor Hospital 12,288,534 -6,504,729 5,783,805 29,901,331 -9,668,488 20,232,843 143.33 249.82 

MedStar Montgomery General 16,850,341 -9,763,710 7,086,631 14,950,082 -7,889,606 7,060,476 -11.28 -0.37 

MedStar Saint Mary's Hospital 16,308,891 -6,063,773 10,245,118 20,371,965 -8,870,208 11,501,757 24.91 12.27 

MedStar Southern Maryland -21,613,758 -6,037,146 -27,650,904 3,162,651 -8,766,828 -5,604,177 114.63 79.73 

MedStar Union Memorial 20,335,376 -26,559,115 -6,223,738 46,312,220 -31,775,042 14,537,178 127.74 333.58 

Mercy Medical Center 15,429,893 -12,365,317 3,064,576 14,111,314 -7,804,301 6,307,013 -8.55 105.80 

Meritus Medical Center 10,308,554 755,874 11,064,428 4,717,300 -220,400 4,496,900 -54.24 -59.36 

Northwest Hospital Center 19,846,980 -6,563,890 13,283,090 23,464,469 -14,008,165 9,456,304 18.23 -28.81 

Peninsula Regional Medical Center 25,869,524 -29,004,524 -3,135,000 36,419,854 -28,728,854 7,691,000 40.78 345.33 

Prince Georges' Hospital Center -2,474,588 -18,839,314 -21,313,902 4,536,729 -23,670,492 -19,133,763 283.33 10.23 

Queen Anne’s Emergency Center -3,508,488 0 -3,508,488 -3,317,840 0 -3,317,840 5.43 5.43 

Saint Agnes Hospital 55,452,969 -29,226,624 26,226,345 53,398,364 -29,462,430 23,935,933 -3.71 -8.73 

Shady Grove Adventist Hospital 28,935,249 -13,410,889 15,524,360 31,683,154 -14,534,203 17,148,951 9.50 10.46 

Sinai Hospital of Baltimore 50,470,369 -35,170,451 15,299,918 60,556,006 -32,615,013 27,940,993 19.98 82.62 

Suburban Hospital 20,495,552 13,276,817 33,772,370 17,164,544 -14,538,791 2,625,753 -16.25 -92.23 

UM Baltimore Washington 2,919,627 -7,324,899 -4,405,272 26,085,945 -9,715,260 16,370,685 793.47 471.62 

UM Charles Regional Medical Center 11,700,484 -1,700,312 10,000,172 12,894,884 -1,897,862 10,997,022 10.21 9.97 



CHANGE IN TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS :   EXHIBIT II-a 
REGULATED & UNREGULATED OPERATIONS 

Listed by Alphabetical Order 
 

80 
 

 2013 2014  

Hospital 
Regulated 
Operating 

Unregulated 
Operating 

Total 
Operating 

Regulated 
Operating 

Unregulated 
Operating 

Total 
Operating 

% Change
Reg. 

Operating 

% Change 
Total 

Operating 
UM Harford Memorial Hospital24 6,070,368 -1,886,029 4,184,339 6,252,500 -1,463,100 4,789,400 N/A N/A 

UM Midtown 17,952,942 -21,205,328 -3,252,386 22,996,711 -19,319,509 3,677,202 28.09 213.06 

UM Rehabilitation & Orthopedic Institute -698,160 -592,139 -1,290,298 1,364,808 -831,695 533,113 295.49 141.32 

UM Saint Joseph -32,370,924 -33,481,543 -65,852,468 7,708,617 -16,426,617 -8,718,000 123.81 86.76 

UM Shore Medical Chestertown 1,403,716 -1,589,533 -185,817 8,334,074 -2,753,782 5,580,293 493.72 3103.12 

UM Shore Medical Dorchester 8,347,091 -2,093,218 6,253,874 8,281,878 -1,845,477 6,436,401 -0.78 2.92 

UM Shore Medical Easton 13,099,182 -2,730,332 10,368,850 13,445,938 -4,147,074 9,298,864 2.65 -10.32 

UM Upper Chesapeake25 24,437,959 -6,159,959 18,278,000 23,598,700 -4,239,800 19,358,900 N/A N/A 

Union Hospital of Cecil County 15,753,700 -10,641,700 5,112,000 14,909,300 -11,537,000 3,372,300 -5.36 -34.03 

University MIEMSS 20,843,100 -4,314,100 16,529,000 19,568,825 -452,740 19,116,085 -6.11 15.65 

University of Maryland Medical Center 50,109,078 -15,583,078 34,526,000 45,419,769 -21,096,733 24,323,036 -9.36 -29.55 

Washington Adventist Hospital 969,949 -11,690,915 -10,720,966 16,639,663 -12,512,993 4,126,670 1615.52 138.49 

Western Maryland Regional Medical Center 30,003,925 -19,134,525 10,869,400 38,761,001 -19,014,101 19,746,900 29.19 81.67 
 

                                                 
24 UM Harford Memorial changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FYE report of 6 months.  
25 UM Upper Chesapeake changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FYE report of 6 months. 



CHANGE IN TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS :   EXHIBIT II-b 
REGULATED & UNREGULATED OPERATIONS 

Listed by Total Operating Profit/Loss 
 

81 
 

 2013 2014  

Hospital 
Regulated 
Operating 

Unregulated 
Operating 

Total 
Operating 

Regulated 
Operating 

Unregulated 
Operating 

Total 
Operating 

% Change
Reg. 

Operating 

% Change 
Total 

Operating 
All Acute Hospitals26 646,386,668 -505,178,997 141,207,673 913,178,165 -516,346,047 396,832,119 41.27 181.03 

Johns Hopkins Hospital 17,927,223 -1,959,024 15,968,199 24,951,117 6,477,361 31,428,478 39.18 96.82 

Sinai Hospital of Baltimore 50,470,369 -35,170,451 15,299,918 60,556,006 -32,615,013 27,940,993 19.98 82.62 

University of Maryland Medical Center 50,109,078 -15,583,078 34,526,000 45,419,769 -21,096,733 24,323,036 -9.36 -29.55 

Saint Agnes Hospital 55,452,969 -29,226,624 26,226,345 53,398,364 -29,462,430 23,935,933 -3.71 -8.73 

Holy Cross Hospital 42,986,566 -18,836,520 24,150,046 41,046,525 -17,751,525 23,295,000 -4.51 -3.54 

MedStar Franklin Square 26,574,956 -26,514,792 60,164 40,797,801 -19,480,307 21,317,494 53.52 35332.31 

Greater Baltimore Medical Center 29,521,863 -14,587,186 14,934,677 30,962,700 -10,118,000 20,844,700 4.88 39.57 

Carroll County General Hospital 25,286,993 -5,037,706 20,249,287 26,236,823 -5,435,765 20,801,058 3.76 2.72 

MedStar Harbor Hospital 12,288,534 -6,504,729 5,783,805 29,901,331 -9,668,488 20,232,843 143.33 249.82 

Western Maryland Regional M. C. 30,003,925 -19,134,525 10,869,400 38,761,001 -19,014,101 19,746,900 29.19 81.67 

UM Upper Chesapeake27 24,437,959 -6,159,959 18,278,000 23,598,700 -4,239,800 19,358,900 -3.43 5.91 

University MIEMSS 20,843,100 -4,314,100 16,529,000 19,568,825 -452,740 19,116,085 -6.11 15.65 

Shady Grove Adventist Hospital 28,935,249 -13,410,889 15,524,360 31,683,154 -14,534,203 17,148,951 9.50 10.46 

UM Baltimore Washington 2,919,627 -7,324,899 -4,405,272 26,085,945 -9,715,260 16,370,685 793.47 471.62 

MedStar Union Memorial 20,335,376 -26,559,115 -6,223,738 46,312,220 -31,775,042 14,537,178 127.74 333.58 

Anne Arundel Medical Center 16,002,451 -14,887,851 1,114,600 25,326,003 -13,213,903 12,112,100 58.26 986.68 

MedStar Saint Mary's Hospital 16,308,891 -6,063,773 10,245,118 20,371,965 -8,870,208 11,501,757 24.91 12.27 

UM Charles Regional Medical Center 11,700,484 -1,700,312 10,000,172 12,894,884 -1,897,862 10,997,022 10.21 9.97 

                                                 
26 The All Acute Hospitals line excludes Levindale, UM Harford Memorial, and UM Upper Chesapeake Hospitals. 
27 UM Upper Chesapeake changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FYE report of 6 months. 
 



CHANGE IN TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS :   EXHIBIT II-b 
REGULATED & UNREGULATED OPERATIONS 

Listed by Total Operating Profit/Loss 
 

82 
 

 2013 2014  

Hospital 
Regulated 
Operating 

Unregulated 
Operating 

Total 
Operating 

Regulated 
Operating 

Unregulated 
Operating 

Total 
Operating 

% Change
Reg. 

Operating 

% Change 
Total 

Operating 
Northwest Hospital Center 19,846,980 -6,563,890 13,283,090 23,464,469 -14,008,165 9,456,304 18.23 -28.81 

Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center 5,832,881 -13,886,881 -8,054,000 21,241,512 -11,823,012 9,418,500 264.17 216.94 

UM Shore Medical Easton 13,099,182 -2,730,332 10,368,850 13,445,938 -4,147,074 9,298,864 2.65 -10.32 

Calvert Memorial Hospital 14,541,508 -7,631,293 6,910,215 16,797,976 -8,340,143 8,457,833 15.52 22.40 

Peninsula Regional Medical Center 25,869,524 -29,004,524 -3,135,000 36,419,854 -28,728,854 7,691,000 40.78 345.33 

MedStar Montgomery General 16,850,341 -9,763,710 7,086,631 14,950,082 -7,889,606 7,060,476 -11.28 -0.37 

UM Shore Medical Dorchester 8,347,091 -2,093,218 6,253,874 8,281,878 -1,845,477 6,436,401 -0.78 2.92 

Mercy Medical Center 15,429,893 -12,365,317 3,064,576 14,111,314 -7,804,301 6,307,013 -8.55 105.80 

UM Shore Medical Chestertown 1,403,716 -1,589,533 -185,817 8,334,074 -2,753,782 5,580,293 493.72 3103.12 

UM Harford Memorial Hospital28 6,070,368 -1,886,029 4,184,339 6,252,500 -1,463,100 4,789,400 N/A N/A 

Meritus Medical Center 10,308,554 755,874 11,064,428 4,717,300 -220,400 4,496,900 -54.24 -59.36 

Washington Adventist Hospital 969,949 -11,690,915 -10,720,966 16,639,663 -12,512,993 4,126,670 1615.52 138.49 

MedStar Good Samaritan 12,773,906 -20,971,324 -8,197,418 25,433,656 -21,465,032 3,968,625 99.11 148.41 

UM Midtown 17,952,942 -21,205,328 -3,252,386 22,996,711 -19,319,509 3,677,202 28.09 213.06 

Howard County General Hospital 18,538,282 -7,841,142 10,697,140 10,395,296 -6,818,406 3,576,890 -43.93 -66.56 

Union Hospital of Cecil County 15,753,700 -10,641,700 5,112,000 14,909,300 -11,537,000 3,372,300 -5.36 -34.03 

Garrett County Memorial Hospital 2,570,135 -1,284,004 1,286,131 4,171,544 -810,322 3,361,223 62.31 161.34 

Levindale29 0 0 0 7,214,700 -3,988,800 3,225,900 N/A N/A 

Frederick Memorial Hospital 17,216,148 -17,819,196 -603,048 16,325,142 -13,195,104 3,130,038 -5.18 619.04 

                                                 
28 UM Harford Memorial changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FYE report of 6 months. 
29 FY14 is the first year that Levindale was designed as an acute care hospital by CMS. 



CHANGE IN TOTAL OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS :   EXHIBIT II-b 
REGULATED & UNREGULATED OPERATIONS 

Listed by Total Operating Profit/Loss 
 

83 
 

 2013 2014  

Hospital 
Regulated 
Operating 

Unregulated 
Operating 

Total 
Operating 

Regulated 
Operating 

Unregulated 
Operating 

Total 
Operating 

% Change
Reg. 

Operating 

% Change 
Total 

Operating 
Suburban Hospital 20,495,552 13,276,817 33,772,370 17,164,544 -14,538,791 2,625,753 -16.25 -92.23 

Bon Secours Hospital 2,560,429 -13,579,925 -11,019,496 15,956,273 -13,952,517 2,003,755 523.19 118.18 

Bowie Emergency Center -945,065 -208,041 -1,153,106 1,943,397 34,401 1,977,798 305.64 271.52 

McCready Hospital -298,269 763,412 465,143 2,347,500 -583,451 1,764,049 887.04 279.25 

Fort Washington Medical Center 1,223,777 -648,495 575,282 2,028,867 -648,722 1,380,145 65.79 139.91 

Doctors Community Hospital 4,422,646 -7,140,124 -2,717,478 10,251,378 -9,356,366 895,012 131.79 132.94 

UM Rehabilitation & Orthopedic Institute -698,160 -592,139 -1,290,298 1,364,808 -831,695 533,113 295.49 141.32 

Atlantic General Hospital 9,222,349 -7,995,621 1,226,727 8,601,500 -10,086,613 -1,485,113 -6.73 -221.06 

Germantown Emergency Center -1,690,370 -195,557 -1,885,927 -1,882,264 -37,105 -1,919,369 -11.35 -1.77 

Queen Anne’s Emergency Center -3,508,488 0 -3,508,488 -3,317,840 0 -3,317,840 5.43 5.43 

MedStar Southern Maryland -21,613,758 -6,037,146 -27,650,904 3,162,651 -8,766,828 -5,604,177 114.63 79.73 

UM Saint Joseph -32,370,924 -33,481,543 -65,852,468 7,708,617 -16,426,617 -8,718,000 123.81 86.76 

Laurel Regional Hospital -2,910,849 -7,359,314 -10,270,163 -3,598,137 -5,637,852 -9,235,989 -23.61 10.07 

Prince Georges' Hospital Center -2,474,588 -18,839,314 -21,313,902 4,536,729 -23,670,492 -19,133,763 283.33 10.23 
 



TOTAL EXCESS PROFIT/LOSS :   EXHIBIT III-a 
Listed by Alphabetical Order 

 

84 
 

 2013 2014  

Hospital 
Excess 

Profit/Loss 
Excess 

Profit/Loss 
% Change in 

Excess 

All Acute Hospitals30 515,138,415 867,825,669 68.46

Anne Arundel Medical Center 45,341,200 39,203,200 -13.54

Atlantic General Hospital 2,725,952 976,248 -64.19

Bon Secours Hospital -9,627,191 3,569,505 137.08

Bowie Emergency Center -1,153,106 1,977,798 271.52

Calvert Memorial Hospital 6,916,629 6,802,728 -1.65

Carroll County General Hospital 30,673,703 27,155,986 -11.47

Doctors Community Hospital -1,415,078 651,801 146.06

Fort Washington Medical Center 576,030 1,380,752 139.70

Frederick Memorial Hospital 10,738,933 16,993,038 58.24

Garrett County Memorial Hospital 2,041,070 4,238,955 107.68

Germantown Emergency Center -2,264,592 -2,327,154 -2.76

Greater Baltimore Medical Center 33,230,610 40,539,700 22.00

Holy Cross Hospital 37,428,046 46,558,000 24.39

Howard County General Hospital 19,389,706 9,886,601 -49.01

Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center -6,796,000 11,105,000 263.40

Johns Hopkins Hospital 51,063,077 66,850,174 30.92

Laurel Regional Hospital -1,570,163 -685,989 56.31

Levindale31 0 6,801,826 N/A

McCready Hospital 429,845 1,871,567 335.40

MedStar Franklin Square 425,534 21,563,555 4967.41

MedStar Good Samaritan -8,126,384 3,971,844 148.88

MedStar Harbor Hospital 6,061,104 20,739,733 242.18

MedStar Montgomery General 7,262,526 7,075,846 -2.57

MedStar Saint Mary's Hospital 12,348,616 12,271,586 -0.62

MedStar Southern Maryland -21,613,758 -5,582,219 74.17

MedStar Union Memorial -1,472,759 20,389,661 1484.45

Mercy Medical Center 31,020,207 16,016,399 -48.37

Meritus Medical Center 9,116,228 18,982,900 108.23

                                                 
30 The All Acute Hospitals line excludes Levindale, UM Harford Memorial, and UM Upper Chesapeake Hospitals. 
31 FY14 is the first year that Levindale was designed as an acute care hospital by CMS. 



TOTAL EXCESS PROFIT/LOSS :   EXHIBIT III-a 
Listed by Alphabetical Order 

 

85 
 

 2013 2014  

Hospital 
Excess 

Profit/Loss 
Excess 

Profit/Loss 
% Change in 

Excess 

Northwest Hospital Center 23,613,990 25,618,214 8.49

Peninsula Regional Medical Center 10,719,000 29,420,000 174.47

Prince Georges' Hospital Center 1,028,098 3,192,390 210.51

Queen Anne’s Emergency Center -3,458,234 -3,347,238 3.21

Saint Agnes Hospital 41,883,345 44,871,382 7.13

Shady Grove Adventist Hospital 15,263,693 18,326,992 20.07

Sinai Hospital of Baltimore 34,266,918 57,740,993 68.50

Suburban Hospital 38,134,858 16,401,687 -56.99

UM Baltimore Washington -4,380,643 19,474,047 544.55

UM Charles Regional Medical Center 4,734,172 10,169,022 114.80

UM Harford Memorial Hospital32 11,524,339 6,704,700 N/A

UM Midtown -3,684,386 3,078,202 183.55

UM Rehabilitation & Orthopedic Institute -385,298 1,802,113 567.72

UM Saint Joseph -72,512,468 -14,131,000 80.51

UM Shore Medical Chestertown 1,065,985 6,550,008 514.46

UM Shore Medical Dorchester 6,630,853 6,224,482 -6.13

UM Shore Medical Easton 14,371,024 17,180,916 19.55

UM Upper Chesapeake33 22,400,000 19,546,400 N/A

Union Hospital of Cecil County 9,281,500 10,810,500 16.47

University MIEMSS 18,029,000 20,616,085 14.35

University of Maryland Medical Center 124,816,000 173,762,036 39.21

Washington Adventist Hospital -12,230,677 2,625,923 121.47

Western Maryland Regional Medical Center 15,201,700 25,261,700 66.18
 

                                                 
32 UM Harford Memorial changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FYE report of 6 
months. 
33 UM Upper Chesapeake changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FYE report of 6 
months. 
 



TOTAL EXCESS PROFIT/LOSS :   EXHIBIT III-b 
Listed by Excess Profit/Loss 

 

86 
 

 2013 2014  

Hospital Excess Profit/Loss Excess Profit/Loss 

% Change 
in 

Excess 
All Acute Hospitals34 515,138,415 867,825,669 68.46
University of Maryland Medical Center 124,816,000 173,762,036 39.21

Johns Hopkins Hospital 51,063,077 66,850,174 30.92

Sinai Hospital of Baltimore 34,266,918 57,740,993 68.50

Holy Cross Hospital 37,428,046 46,558,000 24.39

Saint Agnes Hospital 41,883,345 44,871,382 7.13

Greater Baltimore Medical Center 33,230,610 40,539,700 22.00

Anne Arundel Medical Center 45,341,200 39,203,200 -13.54

Peninsula Regional Medical Center 10,719,000 29,420,000 174.47

Carroll County General Hospital 30,673,703 27,155,986 -11.47

Northwest Hospital Center 23,613,990 25,618,214 8.49

Western Maryland Regional Medical Center 15,201,700 25,261,700 66.18

MedStar Franklin Square 425,534 21,563,555 4967.41

MedStar Harbor Hospital 6,061,104 20,739,733 242.18

University MIEMSS 18,029,000 20,616,085 14.35

MedStar Union Memorial -1,472,759 20,389,661 1484.45

UM Upper Chesapeake35 22,400,000 19,546,400 N/A

UM Baltimore Washington -4,380,643 19,474,047 544.55

Meritus Medical Center 9,116,228 18,982,900 108.23

Shady Grove Adventist Hospital 15,263,693 18,326,992 20.07

UM Shore Medical Easton 14,371,024 17,180,916 19.55

Frederick Memorial Hospital 10,738,933 16,993,038 58.24

Suburban Hospital 38,134,858 16,401,687 -56.99

Mercy Medical Center 31,020,207 16,016,399 -48.37

MedStar Saint Mary's Hospital 12,348,616 12,271,586 -0.62

Johns Hopkins Bayview Medical Center -6,796,000 11,105,000 263.40

Union Hospital of Cecil County 9,281,500 10,810,500 16.47

UM Charles Regional Medical Center 4,734,172 10,169,022 114.80

Howard County General Hospital 19,389,706 9,886,601 -49.01

                                                 
34 The All Acute Hospitals line excludes Levindale, UM Harford Memorial, and UM Upper Chesapeake Hospitals. 
35 UM Upper Chesapeake changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FYE report of 6 
months. 



TOTAL EXCESS PROFIT/LOSS :   EXHIBIT III-b 
Listed by Excess Profit/Loss 

 

87 
 

 2013 2014  

Hospital Excess Profit/Loss Excess Profit/Loss 

% Change 
in 

Excess 
MedStar Montgomery General 7,262,526 7,075,846 -2.57

Calvert Memorial Hospital 6,916,629 6,802,728 -1.65

Levindale36 0 6,801,826 N/A

UM Harford Memorial Hospital37 11,524,339 6,704,700 N/A

UM Shore Medical Chestertown 1,065,985 6,550,008 514.46

UM Shore Medical Dorchester 6,630,853 6,224,482 -6.13

Garrett County Memorial Hospital 2,041,070 4,238,955 107.68

MedStar Good Samaritan -8,126,384 3,971,844 148.88

Bon Secours Hospital -9,627,191 3,569,505 137.08

Prince Georges' Hospital Center 1,028,098 3,192,390 210.51

UM Midtown -3,684,386 3,078,202 183.55

Washington Adventist Hospital -12,230,677 2,625,923 121.47

Bowie Emergency Center -1,153,106 1,977,798 271.52

McCready Hospital 429,845 1,871,567 335.40

UM Rehabilitation & Orthopedic Institute -385,298 1,802,113 567.72

Fort Washington Medical Center 576,030 1,380,752 139.70

Atlantic General Hospital 2,725,952 976,248 -64.19

Doctors Community Hospital -1,415,078 651,801 146.06

Laurel Regional Hospital -1,570,163 -685,989 56.31

Germantown Emergency Center -2,264,592 -2,327,154 -2.76

Queen Anne’s Emergency Center -3,458,234 -3,347,238 3.21

MedStar Southern Maryland -21,613,758 -5,582,219 74.17

UM Saint Joseph -72,512,468 -14,131,000 80.51
 
 

                                                 
36 FY14 is the first year that Levindale was designed as an acute care hospital by CMS. 
37 UM Harford Memorial changed its fiscal year end from December 31 to June 30 in 2014 and therefore has filed a FYE report of 6 
months. 

















 

John M. Colmers 
Chairman 

 
Herbert S. Wong, Ph.D. 

Vice-Chairman 
 

George H. Bone, 
 M.D. 

 
Stephen F. Jencks, 

 M.D., M.P.H. 
 

Jack C. Keane 
 

Bernadette C. Loftus, 
 M.D. 

 
Thomas R. Mullen 

 

 
Donna Kinzer 

Executive Director 

Stephen Ports 
Principal Deputy Director 

Policy and Operations 

David Romans 
Director 

Payment Reform 
and Innovation 

Gerard J. Schmith 
Deputy Director 

Hospital Rate Setting 

Sule Calikoglu, Ph.D. 
Deputy Director 

Research and Methodology 

Health Services Cost Review Commission 
4160 Patterson Avenue, Baltimore, Maryland 21215 

Phone: 410-764-2605 · Fax: 410-358-6217 
Toll Free: 1-888-287-3229 

 hscrc.maryland.gov 

State of Maryland 
Department of Health and Mental Hygiene 

TO:   Commissioners 
 
FROM:  HSCRC Staff 
 
DATE:  November 18, 2015 
 
RE:   Hearing and Meeting Schedule 
 

 
December 9, 2015  To be determined - 4160 Patterson Avenue 

HSCRC/MHCC Conference Room 
 

January 13, 2015  To be determined - 4160 Patterson Avenue 
HSCRC/MHCC Conference Room 

 
 
 
Please note that Commissioner’s binders will be available in the Commission’s office at 11:45 
a.m.. 
 
The Agenda for the Executive and Public Sessions will be available for your review on the 
Thursday before the Commission meeting on the Commission’s website at 
http://www.hscrc.maryland.gov/commission-meetings-2015.cfm 
 
Post-meeting documents will be available on the Commission’s website following the 
Commission meeting. 

 


	jobs-proposals-comment-letters-111715.pdf
	Jobs proposal comment letters 111615.pdf
	Hospital Job Program comment letters 11.16.pdf
	Health Job Opportunity Program comment letters.pdf
	2015_09_08_signed_HSCRC Response to John Colmers re Health Employment Program

	CBurrell Ltr to JColmers re Hopkins Health Employment Program (Oct21 2015)
	Jobs Proposal comment letter from Build
	1199SEIU Comments to Health Job Opportunity Program (002)
	DOCS-#181813-v1-HSCRC_jobs_proposal_letter

	BAM Letter to Colmers 11 5 1512




